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Operating Organic O
cash flow*** £492m turnover growth* 6'9%)
95% of PBITA (2011 519}

Revenue PBITA

2012 2001 2012 2011

At constant exchange rates
excluding Olympics

7297 6750 516 487

Exchanga difference

- 169 — i2

Olympic Games contract

204 47 - 3

Total continuing at actual rates

7.501 6966 516 502

PBITA margin at constant rates
excluding Olympics

71% 72%

The revenue and PBITA from the Olympic Games contract has been excluded
from the tables on pages | t0 40 The contract loss and additional costs
resulted in a total loss of £88m which was booked as an exceptional temn

* 2011 and 2012 at constant (2012) exchange rates adwsted for disposals and
discontinued businesses and excluding Olympics contract 2008-2010 as reported

excluding US Government Solutions

** PBITA s defined as profit before mterest taxation amortisation of acqusiion-refated
ntangible assets acquisition related costs and exceptional tems

*** As defined by management see Financal review page 44

+ 2011 and 2012 at constant (2012) exchange rates adjusted for disposals and
discontinued businesses and excuding Olympics contract 2008 2010 as reported
EPS attributable to equity shareholders of GaS ple was 34p in 2012 and 12 9p in 2011
For 2012 EPS attnbutable to equity shareholders indudes items of £88m related to
the Qlympic Games contract £45m of restructuring costs and a £63m loss related
10 discontinued temns For a fulireconclation see page 104




Overview

G4S is the world's leading international securtty
solutions group, which specialises in secure
outsourcing In countries and sectors where
security and safety risks are considered a
strategic threat.

We make a difference by helping people to
operate In safe and secure environments
where they can thrive and prosper and we
believe this role can only grow In importance.

GA4S is the largest employer on the London
Stock Exchange, with operations in more than
|25 countries and over 620,000 employees.

In this annual report we feature the important
work carried out by our employees across
our 125 countries. We are proud of the role
they play In securing your world.
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Overview

(G4S at a glance

Our vision

Our operating segments

Qur vision 1s to be recognised as the
global leader in providing secure
outsourcing solutions, to help customers
to achieve their own strategic goals and
to deliver sustainable growth for G45

and long-term value for shareholders

02 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

We assess and manage securty and
safety risks for bulldings, infrastructure,
materials, valuables, people and society

We segment our services into two key service lines —
secure solutions and cash solutions

Secure solutions

Integrated security solutions for commercial organisations
in areas such as risk consulting, manned security and
security systermns and a range of services including
pratection of critical national infrastructure, care and
justice services, integrated facilities services and border
pratection for governments

Cash solutions
Outsourang of cash cycle management for central banks
financial nstitutions and retalers

@ Find out more on pages 32 1o 40 for a review
of secure solutions and cash solutions

Graph removed




Our key sectors and customers

Our broad geographic reach

Our two key customer groups

are commercial businesses and
governments |nthe commeraal sector
we have a broad customer base with
thousands of commercal customers
ranging from small local companies to
large multinational corporations

The duration of customer contracts vary, from high-
profile annual contracts for securing sperting or
entertainment events to 25-year government contracts
for the construction and management of prisons

In practice, many of cur customer relationships are
tong-term and result in contracts being renewed regularly,
resulting in high customer retention rates that are above
90% averaged across the group annually

@ Find out more on our customers and key sectors
on pages 32 to 40

Graph removed

(45 has a unigue global footprint
wirth operations in over |25 countries,
incuding a strong presence in higher
growth developing markets

@ Find out more on page 15

Graph removed
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Overview

Our business characteristics

Our key strengths

Our key strengths are what differentiate us in the market.

Integrated security solutions

(45 15 able to design and manage security solutions that
bring together tts capabilities in project management,
risk consultancy secure facilities management, physical
security, inteligent systems and high quality secunity-
traned personnel to address the security challenges
faced by a broad range of customers around the werld

Strong developing markets presence

G455 global presence market share and experience of
working in developing markets constitute key strengths
Relatively hugh levels of GDP growth in certain
developing markets increasing demand for security
services and G45's ability to export its experience
from its operations in more developed markets drive
positive revenue and margin trends for the group in
developing markets

Cash solutions expertise

Understanding and managing cash cycles 1s one of the
group's core skills Central banks, commercial banks
and retaillers outsource their cash management to
(G4S asthe group has the capability and experience
to drive substantial efficiencies in the system and
achieve better returns for its customers over

the longer term

Solutions approach

Each indwvidual arez of the business 1s a driver of value
for the group But it s when they come together

that they truly make a difference Exporting G45s
government expertise to new countries, leveraging

its cash selutions model across developing markets

and using 1ts global risk management and security
capabilities to protect some of the world's best known
brands across international markets drive even greater
value for the group

Government partnerships

Governrnent outsourcing is a streng, long-term source
of growth as public sector spending remans under
pressure and governments turn to the private sector to
provide a number of outsourced services Government
contracts, which represented approximately 23% of
group revenues for the year ended 31 December

2012 tend to be long-term strategic partnerships

with recurnng revenues

04 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012




Qur investment attributes

(G4S creates shareholder value as a result of a number of core investment attributes

Growth

Organic revenue growth
Developing markets exposure
Major position in UK
Government outsourang

A GDP + growth business
Disciplined M&A

G45 has delivered strong organic growth since its creation in 2004,
performing well above global GDP growth despite recent pressure on
the economic environment We are able to do this as a result of our
sgnificant and Increasing exposure to higher growth developing markets
and leading market positions in key growth markets such as the UK
Government outsourang sector, where growth 1s strong and expected
to continue Organic growth is supplemented by discipkned reinvestment
of free cash flow in acquisttions focused on extending our developing
markets presence in key growth countries and adding capability tc help
address the needs of customers in growing sectors

¥ T 4

Resilience

Well diversified business
Defensive services

» Structural growth through the cycle

High customer retention and
visibility of earnings

Our business 5 well diversified across more than 125 countries and
numerous customer sectors, with no over-reliance on any single area
Security 15 at the core of our service proposrtion and 1s one of the areas

on which governments and commercial customers focus for cost-savings
and reductons during economically challenging times creating opportunities
for outsourang We have a growing number of fong-term contracts coupled
with excellent customer relationships and a customer service culture which
result in strong customer retention rates and good earnings visibility

y T

Strong financial disciplines

Operauonal efficiency and
margin expdansion

Free cash flow generation/
cash conversion

Discipiined and coherent M&A/
caprtal return policy

Qur track record of delivery has been achieved within a framework

of strong financiab disciphne focusing on operational efficiency to drive
margn expansion and 2 continual focus on hugh levels of cash generation
We look to achieve an appropriate balance in our capital structure
between investment in acquisitions and investment returns through

a progressive dividend policy

e

These attributes, combined with the growing reputation of 45 as the world's
leading security solutions provider, should result in superior returns for our investors
over the longer term
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Overview

Chairman’s statement

Bullding on strong foundations for the future

Image removed

This 1s my first statement 1n a G4S annual report,
having taken over from Alf Duch-Pedersen as
chairman of the board in June last year Neither
Alf nor | appreciated then the extent of the
challenges the group would have to face during
the second half of 2012 However, although my
first few months in office were something of a
baptism of fire In some respects, | am pleasedto
say that we have come through these dfficutties
and have learned a lot as well tisimportant

to keep a sense of perspective too The group
operates in so many parts of the world, providing
vital services to thousands of customers and doing
so to the very highest standards This underlying
strength in depth 1s reflected in the company's
results for 2012

06 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

As part of my planned introduction to the role of

chairman | have had the opporturity to visit a variety

of the group's operations in different parts of the world !
and have met with many of 1ts senior leaders in a range !
of forums | have been extremely impressed by the ‘
enthusiasm and professionalism of the group's managers

| have also been able to meet most of the company's
larger shareholders Keeping in touch with investors is an
essential part of my role and | intend to maintain regular
contact with them in future

Financial performance

The macroeconomic condrtions in many of our markets
continue to be difficult In much of Europe growth is non-
existent and the problems with US Government spending
are well known Against this backdrop, the group's results
in 2012 are strong, with good organic growth overall

and excellent cash conversion Our wide geographical
spread and involvement in developing markets with
higher GDP growth has stood us in good stead and in
developed markets where outsourcing trends are strang,
we continue to make good progress In the light of this
performance and i view of our confidence in the groups
strategy, the directors propose a final dividend of 5 54p
{DKK 0473) per share payable cn 4 June 2013 With

an interim dvidend of 3 42p (DKK O 322) per share pad
on 19 October 2012 the total dvidend for the year wilt
amount to 8 96p (DKK 0795) per share This represents
a 5% increase on the total dividend for 2011

Reputation and risk management

No consideration of the company’s performance in 2012
can ignore the Olympics contract it made headlines and
brought us to the publics attention especially in the UK,
and for all the wrong reasons With help from PwC the
board conducted a thorough review of the circumstances
surrounding the group s performance on delivering the
Olympics contract to ensure that the reascns for the
problems were property understood and so that any
necessary remedial actions could be indentified and taken
It was very impertant to me as the new chairman and

1o the whole board, that we took whatever steps were
necessary to learn these lessons no matter how painful
this process might be

We are satisfied that there was no systemic problem in
the way that the group operated its business and that i
was the unique nature of the Olympics contract and the
compressed timeframe in which it had to be delivered
which were at the heart of the group’s falure to deliver all
that it should have done on this occasion Nevertheless
we have intreduced stronger mechanisms for reviewing
risks in general and contract risk in particular, including
lowering the vaiue threshold for contracts requiring
board approval



Graph removed

The new strengthened, Risk Commuttee will be a focus
for this actvity and a newly created chief operating
officer role will increase the ability of the executive team
to ensure that risk management i at the heart of key
business decisions

The board review also concluded that there had been no
significant shortcomings in Nick Buckles performance, nor
any serious falings attributable to hum in connection with
the Olympics contract Consequently the board decded

it was In the company’s and its stakeholders’ best interests
that he should remain as our CEO | was and remarn
entirely confident that this was the right decision

Away from the media frenzy in the UK in the summer,
hundreds of thousands of the group's employees continued
10 provide outstanding service levels in what can sometimes
be difficult and occasionally dangerous arcumstances Any
objective assessment of the groups capabilities should of
course be based on the excellent work which the group has
always provided and continued to provide throughout 2012
We understand though that reputatons are hard won and
sometimes too easlly lost, so we are determined to repair
the damage the group suffered in the summer by continuing
to do what we do best and doing it well Rebuilding the
trust and confidence of the UK Governmentin G451s an
essential part of that process of course and the settlement
with the orgarusing cormnmitiee of the Qlympic Games and
recent contract awards by UK public bodies are indeed
good news

The board

2012 saw change on the board with the retirement of Alf
Buch-Pedersen and my appointment as his replacement
Pwould like to thank Alf for his service to the group both
as chairman since 2006 and before that as a director of
the company and its predecessors Continually refreshing
a board 1s not just a corporate governance nicety 1t s also
vitally important if a board 15 to functon as effectively

as possible The Nomination Committee has therefora
considered carefully the range of skills and expenence

which the board needs and has taken account of the fact
that, over time we wiil fose the skills and experience

of some of our current board members as they retire
or rmove on

| am delighted therefore that we have been able to recrudt.
Paul Spence and Adam Crozier and that we will shortly
be joined by Tim Weller Ther qualities will be invaluable
to the board and to the group as we continue to develop
the business

At the conclusion of this year's AGM, and having served
for nine years, both Paul Conden and Bo Lerenius wili
retire from the board The whole board will be sorry to
see them go and | am very grateful for their support in the
short time we have worked together

As usual, the board conducted a review of ts own
performance in 2012 Taking account of the conclusions
of that review, the board has set itself a number of clear
objectives for 2013 and | ntend to report in future on
how the board has performed in refation to them

The future

2013 will be a time of both change and consolidation for
the group There have been 2 number of changes at both
board and group executive committee level and there
will be new challenges involved in making our new risk
management processes a searnless part of the way we
operate and in ensuring that our services always meet

or exceed cur customers’ expectations

The group will however continue to grow and develop
and | have learned in the short time that | have been
imvolved with the company that, in this aim, it 15 well
served by dedicated and professicnal employees all over
the world

John Connolly
Chairman
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Strategic review

Chief Executive’s interview
Looking forward with confidence

Image removed

How would you sum up the group’s
trading for 2012?

In 2012, we achieved our eighth consecutive
year of underlying revenue, PBITA and dividend
growth This demonstrates that, desprte ongoing
economic uncertainty In 2012 and the challenges
of delivering the London 2012 securtty contract,
the underlying business has performed well and
the positive trading momentum 1s expected

to continue

We are confident in the future and expect

to continue our track record of growth whilst
maintaining our discipline on margins and

cash generation

08 G45 plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Despite continued economic challenges in Europe, the
overall business has performed well with an acceleration
N organic growth to 6 9% from 5 19 in 2011

Group revenues were up by 8 1% on the prior year and
the key highlights of the year were the strong growth

in the UK government and US commeraial businesses
and the continued strong performance in developing
markets Our developing markets activities achieved
organic growth of 10% and they now make up 33% of the
group's revenue

Despite the economic challenges of low GDP growth and
the smpact of low interest rates in developed markets

on our cash solutions business, we managed to mantan
margns overall through continuing to focus on keeping
costs under control and cash flow generation

What were the main highlights of
the year?

There ware a number of sigrificant highlights during 2012
which erther contributed to our performance in the year or
lad the foundations for future growth and success

Overall, we have performed strongly with organic growth
of nearly 7% against a difficult trading environment

and the distractions of the Olympics contract in the
summer We worked hard to implement substantal

cost savings durning the first half of the year, significantly
reducing our overhead costs 1o help counter the current
margin headwinds particularly in Europe resulung in us
maintaining our margins at 7 1%

Despite significant economi¢ challenges our US
Commeraazl business grew particularly strongly in 2012 as
a result of a firm focus on customer service and retention,
the expansion of a number of existing contracts and a
number of new business wins such as Google Gallagher
Bassett and Iberdaola Overall the US commercal business
grew by 11% in the year




One of the key achievermnents during the year was the
mobiiisation of a number of major contracts inthe

UK We began the facilities management of more than
340 court bulldings across the Midlands Wales and

the North of England in February this year on behalf

of the UK Ministry of Justice We cpened Oakwood
Prison, one of the largest in the UK, providing places

for over | 600 priscners i the West Midlands during
April and commenced the provision of transport and
accommodation for asylum applicants across four regions
of the UK n June In April, we also successfully mobilised
the first major support services contract with Lincolnshire
Police Authority where we provide a wide varety of back
office functions to allow the force to concentrate more
resaurces on front ine policing services — reduaing the
Police Authorty running costs by around 16% ini the first
nine months of the contract

Our developing markets businesses performed well

in the year and we continue tc focus on developing
markets for future growth We expanded our presence
in the high growth Brazihan market in the second half
of 2012 through the acquisition of Vanguarda one of
the country’s leading security providers to complement
the acquisition of Interativa which was completed late
in 2011 These acquisitions prowvide us with an excellent
platform for growth in one of the world's leading
economies and help to strengthen our service offering
and capabilities across the region to include security,
facilities management and technology

We have made excellent progress during the year in
establishing our product-specific service excellence
centres which are focused on ensuring long-term
operational efficency, mgh quality service standards
the development of technology to support service
delivery and the sharing of best pracuce across our
main service ines These service excellence centres
have already had a significant impact on the businesses
through reduction in attack losses in the cash solutions
business and assisted nine countries in identifying profit
Improvement opportunities

it 15 alsc important to recognise the efforts of our
managers and finance teams in terms of keeping the

focus on generating cash throughout the year, particularly
against a difficult economic envirenment where customers
have been looking to extend payment terms and hang

on to their cash for as long as possible Delivering 95% of
PBITA as cash in 2012 was a significant achievement

What were the biggest challenges of
the year and how did they impact
the group’s performance’

The most significant challenge of 2012 was handling the
1ssues associated with our falure to provide the contracted
number of security personnel for the Olympic Games

The Games was a huge success for Britain and as a British
company which has been an iImportant part of British
society for over 75 years we wanted to play our partin
delivering a great Games for Britain

The realisation as the Games approached, that the
workforce numbers we beleved to be in place would not
materialise was a big shock for us all and was the start of
one of the toughest periods in the group’s history

On the plus side, | was impressed with the way that
colleagues across the group ~ from both the UK and
overseas — stepped in to help resolve the issues as
soon as they came to light This meant that, in the end,
we were able to recrut around 16,000 security staff
and arcund 8,000 of them worked at the Games on
the peak day Overall we delivered around 82% of the
contracted requirement and all of the security workforce
requirements for the transition period between

the Olympics and Paralympics and throughout the
Paralympic Games

Reputationally, the group faced extreme scrutiny
particutarly from politicians and the media, which took
an enormous amount of efort and resource to manage
The detaded financial imphcations are highlighted
elsewhere in this report, but the overall impact was that
rather than mak:ng a modest profit on the contract, we
will make a loss on the contract of £70m having agreed
to refund a significant proportion of the management
fee as a gesture of goodwill to the UK Government —
an important customer for the group We also incurred
additionat costs of £11m relating to external fees and a
further £7m in sponsorship and marketing costs This all
equates to a total loss of £88m

Whilst the overali situation was extremely disappointing
for us, | am proud of the way our staff worked together
with the military and police to ensure that the Games

was safe and secure Having reached agreement on the
settlement we hope that in 2013 we can put the ssue
behind us and continue to demonstrate that G45 1s a great
company which plays an important role in societies all over
the world through the efferts of our over 620,000 loyal
and dedicated employees
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Strategic review
Chief Executive's interview continued

In November, we were faced with what seemed lke

a significant change of pelicy by the UK Government
when the Ministry of Justice anncunced that it would
not outsource a number of prisons to the private sector
and would be taking an existing outsourced prison back
under the control of the Prison Service Whilst this was
disappointing to us and to the market at the time, there
does appear to be sorne positive news as a result of the
developing UK prison policy, which will inchude a substanual
amount of cutsourcing of services such as rehabilitation,
faciliies management and other related services We are
in a good position to bid for these contracts which are
estimated to be worth around £lbn per annum

2012 was a challenging year for our US Government
Solutions business as a result of a significant reduction

in the US Federal Government spending in both the US
demestic government sector and in contracts for overseas
landmine clearance We introduced a number of cost-
saving measures during the year to mitigate the challenges
in this market and have recently anncunced our intention
to divest the business to a parent which would be able

10 add or create more value than we are able to, being

a foreign parent with imited control over the business
strategy and restricted access to impaortant commercial
data and limited ability to manage the business and share
best practice

Elsewhere, trading condttions, particularly in Continental
Europe continued to be tough with increasing margin
pressure on contract renewals across many developed
markets Early in 2012 we began our programme of
overhead cost saving measures which have helped to protect
our margins in the latter half of the year and should provide a
good basis on which to move forward in 2013

What lessons have you learned
during the year and what will you do
differently in the future as a result?

We commussioned a thorough review of our performance
on the London 2012 Olympic security contract with the
assistance of Pw( and the findings were publshed in
September 2012 The review conduded that the falures
were specific to the very special nature of the contract, but
we decided to take a number of actions to ensure that best
practices are apphed consistently across the entire group

With that in mind we are implementing a more rigorous
risk assessment for new contracts and improving contract
take-on processes and project management Board
oversight of new contracts 1s also being enhanced including
review and approval of farge or complex contracts

We are also strengthening the Group Executive team
with the appointment of a chief operating officer, whose
responsibilities will include a specfic focus on operational
procedures risk management and quality of customer

i0 G4S plc Annual Report and Accourits 2012

service and delivery Recrutment for this role 15 well
underway and we hope to announce an appointment
during the first half of this year

Elsewhere we have continued to focus on keeping

costs down and reviewing our overhead structures and
rescurces to make sure we are in good shape to weather
the ongoing eccnomic storm

What are the key elements of the
strategy for 2013 and the future?

There 1s no change to the group strategy for 2013 -
security 1s at the core of our offer and, although we may
move into related services i specific markets should
opportunities take us there we will remain true to our
security heritage

We will continue to focus on developing long-term
relationships with businesses and governments in
countries and sectors where security and safety risks
are considered a strategic threat and where we can help
customers achieve their own strategic cbjectives

With Imited medium-term opportunities for growth

in Continental Eurcpe, we will continue to look to
developing markets for enhanced growth opportunities
and to bulld on our market-leading positions in many of
these markets We will aim to export the knowledge and
expertise which we have in more developed markets to
these higher growth regions

We will drive secure solutions and cash solutions markets
through the various phases of developrment to encourage
greater outscurcing and focus cur attertion on larger
more complex bids for new business We will also focus
on effectively managing any risks associated with these
contracts by implementing enhanced contract risk
management and assessment processes

We will maintain our focus on service excelience

on retaining and growing our business with existing
customers and winning new business across a wide range
of rmarkets and sectors Our sector-focused strategy in
areas where security and safety are of wital importance i1s
a key differentiator for us and it has proved successful in
the last 12 months We will continue to focus our skills in
enhanced risk management and safety and security in key
sectors such as ports and marime aviabion oil and gas
and mirng industries

We are constantly looking to develop and refresh our
talent pipeline and we will continue to do this in the
corming year through the development of our people

10 buld their skills knowledge and behaviours and to
ensure that we have rebust succession plans in place for
the key roles across the group




How do mergers and acquisitions fit
into your future strategy?

Acquisitions continue to be an important part of the
strategy, particularty in developing markets where we can
either improve our market share or where an acquisition
can act as a catalyst to drive cutsourcing opportunities
Overall we expect to spend arcund £200m on
acquisitions each year

We believe there are substantial growth opportunities in
these markets and we are targeting 50% of cur revenues
to come from developing markets by 2019

We will also continue to be more active in terms of
divestrments where a serwvice line 1s not core to the group,
where a business could result in material reputational
damage to the group or it 15 unable to reach the group
minimum targets within a set period of tme under our
ownership or where 2n alternative parent could add or
derive more value from a business

VVhat targets or goals are you
setting for 2013?

Overall our key business objectives for 2013 are to drive
grganic growth, deliver margin improvement, ocptimise
our organisational development and to build and protect
our reputation

Key Business Objectives
Drive Deliver
organic margimn
growth improvement
Optimise Build and
organisational protect
development reputation

@ Find out more on pages 21 to 29

Maore speafically we will focus on continuing to iImprove
cur organic growth performance through customer
service, contract retention and expansion and through
winning new business in key target areas

We are aming to increase the proportion of our revenues
generated in developing markets with a six-year target

of 50% of the group total as key security markets such as
Brazil and China open up to foreign nvestment and where
we can import our expertise from more developed
markets in order to raise standards, deliver operational
best practice and help our customers to achieve their own
strategic objectives

We will maintain our disaplne an margins through good
cost control and sharing of operational best practice as
the service excellence centres continue to gan further
traction across the operation and as we keep the cost
base under constant review

We will am te upgrade our approach to contract risk
management through the development of new processes
for monrtoring major contracts and increasing board

and serior management visibility of contract issues

The addition of a new chief cperating officer to the Group
Executive team will be a key element of this focus

We are targeting strong EPS growth and believe we can
deliver that as a resuft of structural growth trends in

the secunty industry and cutsourcing trends, our strong
developing markets presence and continued focus on
margins and cash generation and are maintaining our
overall target of generating at least 85% of PBITA as cash
during the year

How would you summarise the
outlook for the group!

Despite the disappontment of the Olympics contract

i 2012 the underlying tradng across the majority of

the group remains strong The economic pressure (s
continuing to be challenging n Continental Europe
However | am cenfident about the prospects for the
group in 2013 based on cur market leading businesses,
broad customer base and centract pipeline We continue
10 see good opportunities from outsouraing in key sectors
such as government, financial nstitutions aviation ol

and gas mining and ports The breadth of our portfolio
in over 125 countries continues to present many new
growth opporturities

Nick Buckles
Chief executive officer
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Strategic review

Key performance indicators
Driving business improvement

Financial KPis

The key financial performance indicators (KPIs) for the group and G4S operational

management across both the secure solutions and cash solutions businesses are
organic growth, cash conversion (operating cash flow as a percentage of PBITA)

and PBITA margin

Graph removed

Graph removed

Organic growth 1s used as the best measurement of
growth inherent within a business and 1t 1s widely
accepted as such

GA4S revenues grew 6 9% organically excluding the
Olympics contract in 2012, up fram 5 1% in 2011 Organic
growth was assisted by strong growth across most
regions, particularly in developing markets Cur long-term
aim s to achieve organic growth above GDP Depending
on centract phasing and the economic envircnment, we
target to grow between 6% and 8% per annum in the
long term

@ See pages 2| and 22 for more detall on our
plans to drive organic growth as one of our key
business objectives

Gross margin

Cash conversion 1s used to measure the cash generation of
the group and how successful the business 1s at managing its
operating caprtal

Through continual analysis of all aspects of the operating
cash cycle to improve cash collections, we exceeded our
cash conversion target of 85% of PBITA In 2012

Graph removed

For 2013, a new KPi of gross margin has been introduced
for eperational management Gross margin is used to
measure the proportion of revenue the business retains
after incurring the direct costs associated with providing
services to customers

Excluding Olympics contract and adjusted for disposals and
discontmued operations

12 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

PBITA margin 1s used as a measure of success in cantrolling
the cost base refative to sales

The operating margin for secure solutions (82% of
revenues) was slightly lower at 70% in 2012 from 72% in
2011 due to UK Government contract phasing , whilst the
cash soluttons margin was maintained at 10 5%, resutting in
the overall margin performance for the year of 71%

@ See page 24 for more detall on our plans to improve

margins as one of our key business objectives




Non-financial KPls

HR standards and KPIs

Managers across the group are also
targeted to achieve addrtional objectives
which are agreed on an individual basis
and will usually be linked to business plan
milestones

Some examples of non-financial KPls achieved in
2012 include

*+ acquisttior of a manned security business and a security
hcence in Brazil

+ formauon of a joint venture in China and security
hcence approval

* development of a group human rights policy

All cbjectives and targets are focused on driving the
business performance forward and delivering the groups
solutions strategy over the longer term

We believe strong employee relationships
help deliver excellent customer

service To ensurethat G4S delivers

on its commitments to its employees,
businesses are required to report
monthly on key metrics relating to

Health and safety

Employee turnover and stabiity

Industrial relations

Recruitment rates

@ See pages 48.5 land 52 for some of our key
CSR KPls and our progress against them in 2012
More detal can also be found in the 2012 G45

CSR report
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Strategic review

Marketplace
Bullding on our leading market positions

The global security market

The "business to business” global securtty market 1s estimated to generate revenues of
around £96bn per annum

Based on the latest published market
research (Freedonia Report on World
Security Services, January 2013), and
G4S analysis, G4S estimates that

the global security market will grow
by around 7% per year from 2011

to 2021

Graph removed

As an integrated security provider,

we are active In all types of security
and according to the Freedonia
report, the market in 2011 was split
by service type as shown on the chart
to the right Looking at the Freedonia
forecasts, the split by service type 1s
not expected to be very different ten
years later in 2021

Graph removed

o0%

of the global security market 1s expected
to be in developing markets by 2016
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G4S major markets

Competitive environment

With operations in more than 125

countries, G45S 1s a truly global security

services provider

Total security market size

The charts below show the size of the major markets in

The global security industry consists of a
number of highly competrtive markets,
particularly in the manned security sector
where markets can be fragmented

At alocal level, G45S competes with lacal companies for

each region for G45 the provision of individual service ines At a global level
(G4S has no peer with which st competes directly in all
service ines across all geographies
UK and Ireland
Imaged UK £6000m Company Service lines Competing
remove treland £400m geographies
Loarrus Cash solutions UK Fintand
Eurcpe Securitas Secure solutions UK Eurcpe
Netherfands £1500m North America
Belgm 600
Image B Brink’s Cash solutions Canada
removed Sweden £800m Asia
Dustea £600m Smalt number
Turkey £2000m in Eurcpe
Africa Serco Government UK Australia
South Afnca £2000m outsourcing
Im
aged Kenya £150m 1S5 Secure solutions UK Scuthern Curope
remove Morecco £15Cm Asia
Nigera £600m
Mite Secure solutions UK
North Amenca
Image USA £29000m
removed Canaca €1 80Cm
Asia Middle East
India £1300m
Image Saudi Araba £1000m
removed Australa £1200m
e 3 750m Graph removed
Laun America
Brazil £6 000m
Image Argentina £1000m
removed Colombia £750m
Mexco £2000m

£24bn

Of revenues were generated by G45 in developing

rmarketsin 2012

|0%

Qrganic growth was achieved by G450
developing marketsin 2012
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Strategic review

QOur business mode]

The G4S business model is focused on
developing partnerships with customersto
move from a basic level of service delivery
and excellence in each of our core services
in phase 1, through to delivering analyss,
expertise and design capability In phase 2
and the design, project management and
delivery of fully outsourced solutions for our
customers in phase 3

As the service complexity and customer integration increases so
does the customer partnership and the longevity of the relationship
GA4S becomes an integral part of the customer s organisation
helping them to achieve their own strategic objectives A key goal

Is to encourage an increased proportion of customer relationships
which are of the type described in phase 3 in the model here

@ See pages 18 and |9 to see how the G4S business
model 1s applied to our key markets and services
to drive markets through the various phases of
development from | to 3

16 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Business enhancing

)

Ensuring comphance/reducing losses

Strategic phases

3

Manage

Delivery of
outsourced
solutions

2

Analysis and Design

Delivery of expertise
and design capability

Operate

Delivery of service
excellence in each
core service with
supervisory overlay




G4S delivery

Solutions designed to improve processes whilst reducing costs

Complex project management

Continuous improvement methodciogy

Technology integration — management information

A

Sector/subject matter expertise

Risk assessment and consulting

Solutions and bid design capability

Process re-design/cost reduction

Continuous improvement methodology

y N

Supervision/lntegration

Increasing customer partnership

Subcontractor management

Measurement and Reporting

|5
c
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=
w oo [=%] ol =143
g E 1: & & S 5o 2
3 v o a o ) =2 [E)
o a b c £ Ec oy
9 & 2 S g v EE G2
] o o O = c & [0 o
3 = S a @ 2 ES g c c
[ [ [ =) += q) L c
< g G G b o =5 5 g 3
IS] g ] - = = froat] o2 =] a
= 7 [ 9] O < o < E IS U J
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Customer needs analysis
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Strategic review

Delivering enhanced growth

By applying the G45S business model to our key markets and services, we can drive
markets through the various phases of development from the prowvision of basic
services to full outsourcing, As each market moves at a different pace, the current
opportunities for delivery of the strategy are shown in the charts below

Secure solutions

Market development In the secure solutions service ine, commeraal facihities management (FM} 1s only developed as
an extension of government outsourcing or FM capability in developed markets, whereas 1t can often be a standalone
service hine created specifically for the commeraal sector in developing markets

Market development )

Developed markets

Manned Security Integrated Government Commercial
security systems securmty outsourcing faciies
and faciitties ranagement
UK L 1 L X L2 L1 [ X ]
Australia [ X L1 (L J L 1 *®
Northern
Europe .0 o *e ® L
Southern
Europe 0 o0 L 1] ® L
us L 1] ( X o8 L L

Developing markets

Manned Security Integrated Government Commercial
securrty systems security outsourcing facities
and faciltues management
Brazil, india
and China *® L L [ 2 J o0 *e
Middle East L 1 ] L X o8 L1 *®
Eastern
Europe L 1 ] o0 o L L
Other
Developing L3 L2 ee ® L
Markets

@ Current G4S service ine @ Current market opportuntty @ Future market development opportunity @ No short to medium term market opportunity
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Cash solutions

Market development The same market development
mode! applies to the cash solutions service line Market
position in cash sclutions ts important in achieving and
maintaining market leadership We believe we are market
leader in the majority of the 70 countries in which we
operate cash solutions businesses

Market development >

Developed markets

Cash Enhanced ATM
transport ATMand cash  management
and processing and cash centre
processing services management

UK L 2 L 2 J L L

Australia [ ] ® [

Northern

Europe *e L 2 ®

Southern

Europe (L J e *®

us ® ® L]

Developing markets

Cash Enhanced ATM
transport and  ATM and cash  management
processing processing and cash centre

8razl, India

and China bt ® .

Middle East @@ [ ] [

Eastern

Europe b e hd

Other

Developing @@ L L ] o0

Markets

@ Current G45 serwice ine @ Current market opportunity
@ Future market development opportunity

Growth drivers

With strong market positions in developed and developing
markets complementing global outsourcing trends G4S has
a sustainable growth strategy The key drivers of growth
are a combination of external drivers and (G4S strengths

All G4S service Iines Growth drivers which are common
to alt G4S service hines are summarised below

= Econcmic environment and GDP growth
» Competitive environment

Regulaton and regulatory environment

* Level of customer relationship
InRovatien or continueus Improvement

= GA4S reputation and track record

» Customer satisfaction and retention

Other growth drivers are speafic to a particular service ine

Secure solutions service line The key growth drivers
are summarised below

« Customer attitude to risk management

= (45 focus on hugh growth segments

= Growth of international accounts

Increasing infrastructure investment in

developing markets

GAS ability to integrate manpower and technology

* Mulis-service or service bundiing trends in
developing markets

+ Customer focus on secunty

* Customer propensity to outsource

* Customer budgetary pressures

Cash solutions service line The key growth drivers are
summarised below

= Role and strategy of central banks

« Development phases of the cash cycle
= Appetite for outsourcing

* Product innovation

* Interest rates

* Levels of crime

@ See pages 32 to 40 for more detal on the secure
solutions and cash solutions services and customers
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Image removed

Magnus
Port of Gothenburg
Gothenburg, Sweden

f work as part of a
team which checks

and secures more than
40 midlion tonnes of
cargo and over | 5
mitlion pecple that pass
through Scandinavia's
largest port each year




Strategic review

Key business objectives
Drive organic growth

Context

In normalised market conditions, our business should be able to grow ahead of global GDP growth Depending on
contract phasing and the economic environment, we target organic growth of between 6% and 8% per annum in the

long term

Key objectives and progress

Drive outsourcing in all markets

A key element of our business model s to drive
outsourang in all of our markets whether 1t be in secure
solutions or cash solutions or with commeraal customers
or governments This leads to G4S becoming integral to
its customers' success, Increased customer partnerships
and longer term contracts, resulting in greater visibility of
future revenues

@ See pages |8 and 19 for more detal on
outsourcing opportunities by geographic region
and by business segment

Graph removed

Graph removed

Focus on high growth markets where
security and safety are key

By focusing on speafic sectors where a greater emphasis
15 placed on security and safety we are able to provide
expertise which s relevant to the specfic needs of the
market which enables us to differentiate the G45 offer
from that of our competitors This has proved successful
inanumber of key sectors such as aviation, ports, ol & gas
and mining as shown in the charts below which give the
compound annual growth rates (CAGR)

Graph removed

Graph removed
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Strategic review
Key business objectives
Drive organic growth continued

Investment i international accounts

Our continued investment in globat account management
for internationat customers and a global business
development programme allows us to leverage our unigue
footprint and service offering In 2012 as well as retaining
all managed international accounts, our international
accounts revenue grew by 12% through a combination of
existing accounts and some new wins

Global service delivery frameworks for
service consistency

One of the roles of the service excellence centres isto
ensure best practice and consistent service are delivered
to our customers This should ensure high levels of
customer retention

Increased focus on large bids and
long-term customer partnerships

We continue to invest in recrurting and training high
calbre business development resource at a country,
regional and global level The deployment of muttinational
bid teams on our largest and most complex bids has
been successful such as those with DP World and Shell
and we will continue to invest in our strategic account
management programme as part of the G45 Way

@ See page 26 for more deta on the G45 Way

Roll out of best practice sales, bidding and
account management processes

We introduced Salesforce com duning 2011 and 2012

to ensure global collaboration on international accounts
and help retan customers through best practice account
management processes Salesforce com gives visibility
around the contract pipeline so we can deploy the

best rescurces to the biggest opportunities and drive
productivity of the sales organisaiion

22 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Achieve strong customer retention

Our focus on account management and retention has
resulted in halving the rate of large customer contract
losses since 2010 Owverall the group contract retention
rate 15 around 90% per annum We will continue to use
our customer account management programme allied
to driving service consistency and standards to deliver
industry-leading customer retention levels

Target acquisitions which can accelerate
organic growth potential

Qur acquisiton strategy focuses on acquiring businesses
which can help build share in key markets (particutarly
in tigh growth developing markets), improving market
positions i the cash solutions services hnes where this 1s
a crinical success factor and adding capability which helps
to expand and extend contracts with existing customers
as weli as winning new business All of these factors are
significant contributors to long-term growth

Increased focus on

government sutsourcing

As part of our market development strategy we am to
encourage more governments to outsource services to
the private sector enabling them to reduce costs and In
many cases dehiver a better service as a result of increased
commercal competition Government contracts, which
represented approximately 23% of group revenues in
2012 tendto be long-term strategic partnerships with
recurring revenues




Image removed

Shiva
Abu Dhabi, UAE

As part of the event
security team for the
Abu Dhab Grand Prix,
| help to ensure the
safety and security of
40,000 fans who enjoy
this major motor sports
event each year
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Strategic review

Key business objectives
Deliver margin improvement

Context

We target a long-term group PBITA margin of around 7%, depending on the business and geographic mix The group
has minimum operating margin targets for the various service lines in different types of markets

In developed markets, we target margins of 5% for manned security businesses and {0% for businesses providing
security systems, cash solutions, justice services and risk management and consultancy services

In developing markets, margn targets are higher, with a target of 8% for manned security and facilities management

and 12 5% for all other service lines

Key objectives and progress

Deliver procurement benefits

Managing costs 1s a key element of our strategy and in
some cases our businesses procure similar products
and services across multiple markets During 2012 we
undertook a major review of procurement addressing
around £500m of external spend across areas such as
vehides, uniferms, communications and travel

Ensure overheads are appropriate to
economic conditions

A key element of the overhead review process which was
conducted in 2012, was to ensure that, whilst we needed
the right resources and skills in the right places of the
organisation we were able to better manage our costs,
particularly in markets which continue to face pricing and
Margin pressures

@ See page 26 for more detal on the overhead
savings achieved during this process

Deliver service excellence and operational
best practice

In 2012, we invested around £1CGm in sales and marketing
and establishing a series of service excellence centres
(SECs) created to focus on service standards, operational
best practice and the best use of technelogy to manage
our business efficiently and effectively This effert is
focused on retaining customers through high quality
service, but 1s also key to us iImproving our gross margins
across the business In recent years during the economic
downturn gross margins have come under increasing
pressure primarily in the manned security businesses across
Contnental Europe

24 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Conduct effective business reviews and
have In place strong financial controls

We have a standardised monthly trading review process
across the whole group which goes down to branch level
and we continually review the group fimance manuzl to
enhance the business menitoring processes and to ensure
that financial controls are cptimised

Divestment strategy for non-core or
non-value creating businesses

Whilst the group continues to acquire businesses which
can add scale in key markets drive outscurang trends
or add key sector or service capabilities, we also have an
active policy of divesting businesses which do not meet
key financial or strategic targets or f better value can be
derved from an alternative parent Since 2006, we have
divested businesses in France Germany and Poland and
specific service hnes such as cash solutions in Tawwan and
Sweden, and a horme alarms business in Norway We
also announced in March this year that we are divesting
our US Government Solutions business as we felt an
alternative parent would not face the same challenges as
anon-US parent such as G45

Target increased growth in higher

margm businesses

We focus on key geographies, sectors and services
which have higher margin potential For example, we are
targeting an increase i our business in developing markets
where margns are higher than more commoditised
developed markets We focus on key commercial
sectors such as ports and ol and gas where security 1s
akey requirement and where we can add value 1o our
customers business We encourage outsourcing in areas
such as cash management and faciiues management
where we can take greater responsibility for a broader
range of services and increase the number of long-term
customer partnerships where we are more able to
control costs and drive continuous margin improvements
Targeting increased growth in speafic higher margin
businesses such as these, enables usto conmtinue to
improve group margins over the longerterm




Image removed

Andreza
Menino Jesus Hospital,
Sio Paulo, Brazil

| provide specialist
hosprtal cleaning
services to protect
400 young patients
from superbugs and
Infections — supporting
their return to health
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Strategic review

Key business objectives
Optimise organisational development

Context

We see organisational development as key to achieving the strategy — both in terms of making sure we have the
right skills, capabilities and experience and we are developing our talent in ine with strategic objectives, and also
ensuring that business units are structured appropriately and have the right resource to deliver for our customers

Key objectives and progress

Ensure appropriate orgamisational design
for strategy delivery

Curing 2012 we reviewed our organisation from top

10 bottem, trying to ensure we have the right level of
overheads at each level within the group structure — this
resulted In a reduction in group and regional overheads
of approximately | 500 positions, reflecting an annual
cost saving of around £35m  As part of that process, we
integrated the former cash salutions division into our
regional structure to ensure a greater focus on customers
at a local market level and to achieve certain back office
synergies We will keep overheads under constant review
to ensure that we have the appropriate organisational
design to deliver on the group s key business objectives

Target optimum business umit design

and overheads

We conducted an exercise during 2312 to compare
similar businesses operating In markets with comparablie
characteristics This enabled us to assess current
operational and cost structures and recommend what the
appropriate structures should be for these businesses
Thus enabled us to create a senes of best practice
operational models for businesses against which they
can assess their structures and relative performance

In 2013 we will look to drive further operaticnal
standardisation and “right-sizng’ through the next phase
of this programme
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Embed the G4S Way across the country
operating model

As our cash solutions and secure solutions businesses
have different business models and market development
phases (see pages 16 to 19}, we report their financial
performance separately Qur primary operational model
s based on a country made), however there are a number
of iImpertant group level standards and practices which
we expect businesses to adopt everywhere

The so-called ' G45 Way" incorporates a number of key
standards and practices which are shown below Each
element of the G4S Way 1s owned an¢ championed by 2
member of the Group Executive team

The six standards and practices of the G4S way

* Service excellence — service standards and best
operational systems

* Business review processes and finanaat controls
* Sales and business development processes

* Senior talent management and human
resources processes

» Legal frameworks and approvals processes
+ Ethical standards, reputation and crisis management




Constantly improve employee stability
and satisfaction

Ensuring that our employees are fully engaged and
involved in their work 15 key to delivering high levels of
customer service and customer retention Managing
labour turnover 15 an important factor in ensuring a
stable workforce About 70% of our workforce has
over one year of service with the group and we aim to
keep employee stability at or above this level through a
variety of engagement iniiatives which include training,
employee communications, appraisals, regular feedback
from employees and various forms of interaction with
employee representatives We have well established
HR standards that cur businesses must meet in their
management of employees These help to drive a culture
of respect and trust

Focus on recruting and retaining the

best people

We take great care to ensure that we only employ the
best people for our business through the use of rigorous
recrutment, selection and screening techniques We are
always aiming to improve the efficency and effectiveness
of these processes and technology and secial medra is used
increasingly to attract and engage with suitable candidates
We recruted over 260 000 employees in 2012

(3) Seepage S| of the 2012 CSR Report for more
detaill on Securing our People

Transfer expertise from more developed
markets into developing markets

We have an unrivalled geographic footprint which has
been developed over many years and 1s unique amongst
its peers Qur service standards and expertise are also
usually superior to those of local competitors This means
we are a trusted pariner for our customers, which are
keen 1o secure their people and assets and comply wath
local standards and regulations This has meant that the
range of services supplied to customers has broadened to
a mult-service offering, covering manned security, security
systems, cash sclutions, systems integration, monitoring
and response and facilities services

Ensure high standards of HR, succession
planning and talent management

Attracting and developing the right talent 1s key to our
success We have co-ordinated processes for identifying
high potential employees and plan suitable career paths

for their development and movement into more sentor
positions Cur aim is to fill 70% of Ine management
positions internally and in 2012 we filled a vacancy at Group
Executive team level through an internal promotion from
our talent pool
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Surender
Delhi, India

Every day | help more
than half a millkon
people to travel safely
on the Delhi Metro




Strategic review

Key business objectives
Bulld and protect reputation

Context

Our standards of ethics and integrity are core to the philosophy of the group and are a key differentiator,
particutarly in less developed markets The business we are in means that we can be exposed to physical and
financial risks and we work hard to make sure that we have in place acuons to rmutigate risks to the group's

performance and reputation

Key objectives

Ensure high standards of business ethics
and group policy complhiance

We play an important role in societies across the world and
we believe it 1s important that the impact we have in those
societies 15 a positive one We have in place high ethical
standards which we expect our managers and employees
to achieve across the group Those standards and pohces
are reinforced at every opportunity and we monitor
comphance with those standards through rigorous business
review audit and whistle-blowing processes

Have In place strong legal frameworks and
approval processes

In order to ensure contractual compliance, risk

mitigation and legal complance, we have in place strong
legat frameworks and approval processes across our
businesses The legal framework and approval processes
are implemented by the regional legal teams applying
group legal pohaes and guidelines which are monitored by
regular reporting and review by group internal audit

Focus on risk management and mitigation
As an internauonal business sometimes operating In
complex environments, risk management and mitigation

15 a key focus for the group Risk committees exist at a
country, regional and group levef and at the heart of ocur
risk management philosophy we have a risk assessment,
contro! and self-evaluation process which enables managers
to identify key risks and to ensure that processes are put

in place to avoid unnecessary risks or to deal with risks
should they occur In 2013, we are {urther developing our
appreach to nisk management through a new board level
nsk committee which will become the responsibility of the
newly-created COO role

@ See pages 46 and 47 for a more detalled discussion
of our risk assessment and management process

Ensure robust crisis response processes
and procedures are n place

We have 2 comprehensive crisis response process in place
which 15 adopted by all countries This ensures that in the
event of a erisis, be it physical or reputational, we are

able to react promptly and appropriately to minimise any
impact on the business or its reputation

Engage with key stakeholder groups to
build awareness of, and loyalty towards,
the organisation

Engagement with key internal and external stakehalders
helps us to improve cur business attract and retan more
customers, keep and motivate our staff and ultimately

be more successful We engage with employees through
lecal and global surveys as well as through day-to-day
interaction with supervisors and managers We have
strong relationships with unions and other employee
representative groups and work hard to ensure that we
collectively raise standards in the mdustry We focus on
customers through strong account management and
cperational 1nterfaces \n addition to ndependent surveys
We participate in industry and business associations and
trade bodies to improve markets and rase standards
We have regular dalogue with ethical and other
Investment groups to ensure that the business is clearly
understood and that we can attract the right nvestment
for the future growth of the business We build
partnerships with experts who can help us to develop our
strategies and processes in key areas such as human rights
and heafth and safety

@ See page 3| for a more detaled discussion on
stakeholder relationships and engagement
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Strategic review

Resources and relationships

Organisational structure

Employees

G4S 1s managed through a regional
structure, led by four regional
CEOs and a Regional President
The regional CEOs are members
of the Group Executive team.

At a strategic level, the CEO and CFO moniter the group's
investments and performance acress the two main service
lines of secure solutions and cash solutions, which have
different business models At an operational level, our
business 1s managed on a geographic basis

Regional performance 1s reviewed by the group CEO

and CFO on a monthly basis and a business review
process 15 implemented throughout each region to ensure
good visibiity of business performance and issues on an
ongoing basss

Cur structure enables us to deliver our strategic
objectives, maintain a strong governance framework
develop integrated solutions, target key regional markets
and build long-term customer relationships

@ See pages 58 to 61 for Group Executive
team biographies

Graph removed
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GA4S has more than 620,000 employees
and operations in over 125 countries

As at the end of December 2012, G45 employees were
located as follows

By geographical segment 012
Europe 124 100 20%
North America 58,600 9% |
Asia 207,800 34% |
Middle East 44500 7% '
Africa 111400 18%
Latin America and Carbbean 74 100 12%

Total average number
of employees

620,500 100%

Of the total workforce approximately 90% are employed
in front-line positions delivering services to customers
with the remainder working in management supervisory
and support roles

(G4S has set standards to ensure that alt employees are
treated with respect, dignity and farrness These standards
cover 1ssues such as health and safety, dversity and
inciusion, transparent and fair procedures for deahng with
disciplinary matters grievances and redundancies, reward
and recognition, and labour relations and freedom of
association Local ine and human resources managers are
respansible for ensuring compliance with these standards

(3) See pages 48 to 52 or the G45 2012 CSR Report
for more information on employee representation
and engagement

The G4S brand

The group was created in 2004 through the merger of the
security business of Group 4 Falck and Securicor Today,
Just ne years later, the (45 brand is widely recogrised as
a leader in security solutions

This s particularly the case in our major developed
markets and in some key developing markets where we
are one of the few nterrational security companies with a
local presence

Financial resources

The group continues to have strong cash flow generation
equivalent to 95% of PBITA in 2012 well above the target
of 85%, and this 15 one of the key performance indicators
for G45 management In addition the group's funding
position 15 strong, with sufficient headroom and available
committed faciities to finance current investment plans

@ See the Financial review on pages 42 and 45
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Grahame Gibson Dan Ryan
Regional CEC Regional CEQ
Americas Asia Middle East

Our role in society

Witlem van de Ven Richard Marns
Regional CEO Regional CEC
Europe UK and Ireland

Stakeholder relationships

GA4S plays an important role in society
We make a difference by helping
people to operate In safe and secure
environments where they can thrive
and prosper and we believe this role
can only grow in importance

Furthermore managing our relationships with customers,
employees and communities and mitigating our impact on
the envircnment 15 fundamental to our strategy because

it reinforces employee loyslty and helps us attract new
employees it helps us secure new customers and retan
existing ones Investors expect high standards of ethics and
responsible business practices

Qur values

Customer focus
We have close, open relationships with our
customers that generate trust and we work
in partnership for the mutual benefit of
our organisations

Expertise
We develop and demonstrate our expertise
through our innovative and leading-edge approach
1o creating and delvering the right solution

LT

Performance
We challenge ourselves to improve performance
year-on-year and to create long-term sustainability

Tm—m—m—m

Best people
We always take care to employ the best people,
develop theirr competence, provide opportunities

and nspire them to hve our values

Integrity
We can always be trusted to do the night thing

e e e

Feamwork and collaboration
We collaborate for the benefit of G45 as a whole

e ey P

GAS engages with muttiple
stakeholders on a varety of ssues

Customers

The very nature of G4S's business requires rts
management and employees to understand its
customers’ business issues and risks and prowide
appropriate sclutions Customer engagement also
helps to improve customer service and to develop new
services t¢ help customers achieve their own goals

Employees and their representatives

As a service business, 545 s judged on its service delivery
and the difference 1t can make for customers — it 1s essential
that employees understand their role in service delivery, are
trained well rewarded appropriately, have the right tools
for the job and are motivated 1o deliver a quality service

A third of the groups employees are represented by a union
or coflective barganing method GA5 works with unions,
union federations and other employee representatives to
improve standards for employees and to make sure any
1ssues are dealt with appropriately and consistently

@ See the 2012 CSR report for more detad

Investors

Attracting appropriate investment in the group enables
G45S 10 develop its business and to continue 1o Invest in its
growth strategies Ensuring that its strategies and practices
are algned to investor needs and principles 1s a core
elerent of developing investor confidence and ensuring
that the group continues to attract the investment

it requires

@ See page 68 for more detail

Industry bodies

As aninternational leader in it sector G4S willingly takes
on responsibility for establishing strong benchmarks
wherever it operates and plays a pivotal role in raising
standards in the wider industry and society as a whole
Many G4S managers and employees play an active rale in
industry bodies and asscaations across the world

Governments and legislators

In addition to creating and implementing fegislation,
governments are also some of the group's largest customers
and are therefore an important stakeholder for the group
G45S supports regulation which 15 designed to improve
standards and proactively encourages it where possible

It 1s important to ensure that legislative developments

do not create unfair competitive environments or
unnecessary burdens on business activities

Experts

Experts on specfic topics help the group to ensure that
its policies and practices are ahgned with best practice in
rany areas such as s environmental impact, health and
safety and human rights
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Performance

Operational review
Secure solutions

The secure solutions businesses provide a broad range of solutions to both

and sector expertise to encourage greater outsourcing of the security needs of

commercial and government customers They use their risk management, security ‘
:

commercial and government facilities In markets such as ports, airports, retal,
financial instrtutions and the oil and gas sector, and for government departments
such as justice, police, health, foreign affairs and border control Secure solutions
accounted for 82% of group revenue and 76% of PBITA for the year ended

31 December 2012

Services

The secure solutions segment covers a wide range of security services including !

Manned secunity services

Trained and screened security officers

Security systems

Agcess control, CCTV intruder alarms fire detection wideo analyucs and security
and building systems integration technology

Monitoring and response
services

Key holding maobile security patrol and response services and alarm receving and
monstoring facilities

Secure facilities services

Integrated faciities services for entire sites or estates for commercial customers
and governments

Risk management and
consultancy services

Rusk management consultancy services including mine detection and
clearance services

Electrenic monitoring of
offenders

Electromic tagging and monitoring of offenders at home or in the community

Police services

Back office support functions for police forces support for front ine pohcing
including the provision of custody suite services and forensic medical services

Management of juvenile and
adult custody centres

Management of all aspects of a facility and those held within the facility — similar
centres are alsc used for the detention of asylum applicants

Prisoner escorting

Transportation of prisoners and asylum applicants between courts, police stations
and custody centres
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Contracts and relationships

GA4S has a very diverse contract portfolio which 1s not
dependent on any particular customer or sector The
duration of contracts varies from high profile annual
sporting events such as the tennis championshups at
Wimbledon and the Ryder Cup to 25-year private prison
contracts However even when the contract terms are
short in practice many relationships become long term
and result in contracts being renewed year after year
This 1s demonstrated in our customer retention rates
which average above 90% across most regions

Key Performance Indicators

Graph removed

Graph removed

Strategy

We aim to
* Use our expertise and geographic presence to
dfferentiate our business

* Drive outsouraing and minimise commoditisation of
traditional securrty services

» Offer an integrated security solution to customers

Key operational highhights

* Continued strong growth in developing markets

* Excellent organic growth in North America commercial
and UK Government sectors

Risks and mitigation

A full summary of key risks and mitigations can be found
In the risk assessment and management section on pages
46 and 47

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed
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Performance
Operational review
Secure solutions continued

2012 performance

The secure solutions business performed
well with excellent organic growth of

8%, assisted by strong UK government,
US commercial and developing markets
growth Margins were down slightly at

7 0% due to the effect of UK Government
contract phasing

UK and Ireland

There was excellent organic growth of 8% in the UK and
{refand with the main growth drivers being the integrated
services business, which provides facilities services to

UK Government and a growing nurmber of commercial
organisations, and the utilities services business which 1s
consolidating 1ts position as a leading meter reading and
smart meter instaliation business

Organic growth in the UK Government sector was 3%
and included major contract wins and extensions such as

= Total facilities management far the Mirstry of Justice
at more than 340 court buldings across the Midlands,
Wales and the North of England which was mobilised in
February 2012

* The prowvision of transport and accommodation for
asylum applicants for the UK Border Agency for two
regions — the M:diands and the East of England and
the North East, Yorkshire and Humberside which
completed the transrtion from previous suppliers in
December This is a significant achievement as it was a
complex mobilisation invalving multiple stakeholders

* Outsourang services for Lincolnshire Palice — the
first contract of its kind to be awarded by a British
Police Authority This contract mobihsed in April 2012
and the transition has gone extremely smoothly with
excellent service delivery and will result in savings of
£28m over ten years as welf as enabling investment in
new techneclogies The Lincolnshire contract includes a
framework agreement for ten other police forces and
G4S 1s continuing to have discussions with a number of
police forces regarding similar cutsourcing propositions

* The opening and ongoing management of the newest
and one of the largest prisons in the UK, HMP Oakwood
which cpened in April 2812 and which now holds over
| 200 prisoners

G4S has been selected by the Department of Work &
Pensions to join only a handful of companies elgible to
compete to deliver contact centre services across the
UK In addition, a five-year contract to provide electronic
monitoring in Scotland starts in Apri! this year and
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G4S was recently granted a two year extensicn on the
Medway Youth Training Centre contract until March 2015
G4S Integrated Services has been awarded its largest FM
contract in the hezalthcare sector for the Pennine Acute
Haspitals NHS Trust in Greater Manchester and the Care
& Justice Services business was awarded a contract to
supply electronic monitoring equipment to the Ministry
of Justice in France The pipeline of UK Government
outsourcing opportunities remains strong, particularly in
areas such as rehabilitation, facilites management police
and health sectors

The UK commercial business won extensions to contracts
with major corporates such as British Airways and Shel!
the latter of which has awarded G4S security contracts at
5C addrtional sites and seven new countries in 2012 G4S
Litiity Serwices also won a number of significant smart
meter nstallation and data management contracts for
Briush Gas and other major utility providers The pipeline
of new major commeracial contracts remains strong mn the
UK, particularly within the media and financial sectors

Trading conditions in Ireland remained challenging in 2012
but the bidding pipeline especially in the area of security
systerns, looks encouraging for the remainder of the year

Continental Europe

The Continental Europe region performed reasonably
against an uncertan econemic backdrop Overall organic
grawth was 2% The European parliament contract

in Belgium ended in May 2012 but G4S Luxembourg
was successful in winning the security contract for the
European parliament in Luxembourg in April 2012
Margins were down shghtly due to challenging economic
cenditions throughout the region To counteract this

a number of efficiency intuatives were implemented
which reduced direct and overhead employee headcount
numbers by around 250 alongside a number of location
closures throughout Europe This will help support
margins in Europe over the next |8 months

Revenues for the security systems business, which
accounts for around 20% of Continental European secure
solutions revenues, were similar to the prior year

There were some notable strong performances in the
region — in Sweden, G4S won a secure solutions contract
with AB Volvo from April 2012 for three years and the
security systerns business grew strongly In addition there
were contract wins in Belgium Norway, Finland, Austria
and Denmark for customers in the government, retai
transpertation and telecoms sectors The business in
Greece has performed well desprte the challenges of the
economic crisis and several new contracts have started
recently with arganisations such as the US Embassy and
Hellenic Petroleum



Organic growth in most Eastern European markets has
now stabilised to the low single-digit level overall, but
there have been dedines in Hungary and the Czech
Republic offset by excellent growth in Ukraine and
Uzbekistan A significant contract has been won with
amajor steel manufacturer in Ukraine and contracts
have also been won recently In Slovaka for companies
in sectors such as manufacturing electronics and retail
The group divested its businesses in Poland in July

North America

Organic growth in North America was strong at 11%,
assisted by a strong performance in the US commercal
business and the start-up of the CATSA awviation contract
in Canada Margins were lower compared to the prior
year due to a dechne in major infrastructure system
projects The US security systems business warked on
a number of systems mtegration projects for Tampa
Airport, Iberdrola and the Port of Tacoma and has a
record order book representing more than 12 months'
work i hand

tn the United States the commeraal sector had sts
strongest year on record with a continuing positive
outlook and a strong visible sales pipeline Recent
contract awards have been in the technology, healthcare,
distribution, chermical manufacturing and retail sectors
G4S commenced the provision of security solutions for

a major automotive company from January 2012 valued
at $70m per annum for three years The group's largest
commercial contract with Bank of America was extended
until 2014 and G4S North America has been awarded

a secure solutions contract with Google for some of its
locations in the United States and data centres in Belgium
and Finland

Additronal examples of major contract awards include
waorldwide security services for GE — building on a
long-standing service refationship —and comphance
and investigations services for Gallagher Bassett where
G45 will staff and manage the Special Investigations
Unit responsible for investigating fraudulent workers
compensation claims

The group has already taken steps to rmitigate the cost
impact of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care

Act (PPACA) during 2013 and is evaluating the most
effective way to mitigaie tne increase to our cost base
thereafter Most of the health plans currently provided to
(A4S employees already meet the current requirements of
the PPACA and so 1t 1s not expected to have a significant
impact on US margins

2012 was a challenging year for the group's US
Government Sclutions business as a result of a significant
reduction in US federal government spending in both
the US domestic government sector and in contracts for

overseas landmune clearance The group has announced it
has decided to divest the business to a parent able to add
or create more value than G45 1s able to being a foreign
parent wrth imited control over the operations of the
business and restricted access to the data required to run
the business successfully

In Canada, the organic growth rate was more than 30%
driven mainly by the CATSA aviation security contract
which started on | November 2011 The contract 1s for
secunty at 21 airports in the Pacfic region of Canada and
has expected revenue of mare than CAD$ 400m over
the iniual five-year term

Developing markets

In Developing markets revenue growth was 15% and
organic growth was excellent at 10%, with margins
mantained overall

Orgarue growth in Asia was 9% and margins were up from
5 5% to 5 8% due to improved business performance in a
number of countries There was strong organic revenue
growth in Thaland Philippines, China and Indonesia The
business in India the largest market in the region for the
group, has refocused its actvity on high growth higher
margin contracts and achieved a good performance with
double-digit revenue growth and strongly mproved
margins In China a new joint venture has been awarded
the group’s first manned security licence in the province
of Zheyang following a change in the law to allow foreign
ownership of manned security companies The group
plans to offer a premium secunity service 1o serve

its broad multunational customer base located in the
province and penetrate the substantial local Chinese
business opportunities The group exited Pakistan during
October 2012

A manned securtty contract with the United Nations in
Papua New Guinea started in August There was modest
revenue growth in Australia with recent wins including
DP World and Bechtel and a new immagration contract
offsetting the loss of the Western Australia prisoner
transportation contract and there 1s positive growth
momentum N Australia going into 2013 The offender
menitoring contract In New Zealand was extended to the
end of 2013

Inthe Middle East orgaric growth was 5% helped by
double-digit growth rates in Lebanon and Egypt but this
was offset by weakness in some systems businesses in the
region Margins improved compared to the prior year

due to one-off government legislated payments made in
Saudi Arabia in HI 2011 Recent contract wins include an
electronic monitoring contract (in Saud Arabra and in UAE
for the Abu Dhabi Educationat Council and Dubar Awport
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Performance
Operational review
Secure solutions continued

The group exited the US Embassy contract in Kabul
Afghanistan in July

Africa performed strongly with organic growth of 9%
particularly in Kenya Morocco and DRC Margins were
lower at 8 1% due to contract losses in Nigeria however
the business appears to have stabilised there New
contracts won or renewed are mainly in key strategic
sectors such as automotive, aviation mining oil and gas
and foreign embassies, including the US embassy in the
Ivory Coast The current bidding pipeline in Africa s
very strong — particularly in financial services, mining and
embassies with increasing numbers of both multi-country,
pan-African and larger scale bids

The Latn America and Caribbean region has performed
well with organic growth of 4% and improved margins as
a result of strong performances across most countries

There have also been a number of strategic contract
wins for example n the financial services government,
mining and oil and gas sectors In September, the group
announced the extension of its presence in Brazil with
the acquisition of Vanguarda, a leading security sofutions
provider which provides G4S with a manned securty
licence in Brazil The group was also successful in ndding
for security systems contracts in Brazil, winming a
significant contract with Telebras and a contract for the
Manaus football stadium

Tortal Turnover PBITA Margns Organic prowth

£m m % %

2012 00+ 2012 01 012 200 2012

Europe 2,705 2583 190 192 70% 4% 5%

North America L3I 1182 76 73 58% 62% 1%

Developing markets 1,991 1733 152 132 76% 76% 10%

Total secure solutions 6,007 5498 418 397 70% 72% 8%
Exchange differences - 127 - 8
At actuat exchange rates 6007 5625 418 405

Europe Tumover PBITA Margms Qrganic growth

£m im % %

2012 2001 2012 2001 2012 200k 20012

UK and lreland’ 1,312 1200 15 & 88% 97% 8%

Continental Europe” 1,393 1383 75 76 54% 55% 2%

Total Europe 2,705 2583 190 192 70% 74% 5%

North Amenca Turnover PRITA Margeys Orgaric grawth

£m £m % %

2012 00 2012 201 2012 200 2012

North America 130 1,182 76 73 58% 62% 1%

Developing markets Turnover PEITA, Margns Organic grawth

£m £m % %

2002 2011 2012 201+ 2012 2018 W02

Asra 671 615 9 34 S8% 55% 9%

Middle East” 181 371 33 31 87% 84% 5%

Africa’ 357 326 29 31 81% 95% 9%

Latin Armerica and Caribbean’ 582 42l 5i 36 88% 86% 4%

Total developing markets® 1,991 1733 152 132 76% 76% 10%

At constant exchange rates.
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Nanet
Vancouver Airport,
Vancouver, Canada

By providing awrline passenger
screening services, | help to
ensure that the |7 millon
passengers who travel through
Vancouver airport each year
reach their destinations safely
and securely

G45 plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012 37

MAAIIAD)

M1 JiBa18.015

a3uBWLION3Y

DOURLLISAOD)

SIUSUFIELS EIDURLI

UOINBULIGUN 43PIOYDIRYS




Performance

Operational review
Cash solutions

The cash solutions businesses manage cash primarily for financial institutions
and retalers G4S's detalled understanding of the cash cycle ensures that cash

Is managed efficiently In an economy, allowing G4S's customers to focus on their
core businesses Cash solutions accounted for 8% of group revenues and 24%
of group PBITA for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Services

Cash solutions covers a wide range of services including

Cash transportation

Secure transportation of cash using high security vehicles, fully screened and tramed
personnel and purpase-built technaology to transport, protect, count and reconcile the cash
to customer records

Cash management

Management of cash on behalf of financial iInstitutions which includes cash transportation
the design build and management of purpose-bullt high security cash centres, counting and
reconciling cash, fitness sorting of notes for use in ATM machines, counterfert detection
and removal and redistribution of cash to bank branches, ATMs and retail customers — all
managed within strict secunity guidelines and timescales in orcer to maximise the efficiency
of the cash cydle Cash management s also used for counting and reconarfing cash from
non-financial institution customers

Cash consulung

Provision of consultancy services to central banks and commeraal banks on overall
cash management strategy, bank note production and security and all aspects of cash
cycle efficiency

ATM management

Managing ATMs on behalf of banks, retailers and independent ATM providers — ncluding
cash forecasting, cash transportation and reconciiation services first-ine mantenance and
ATM engineering services

Retail cash
management

Prowision of systems and hardware, such as CASH360 which provide an automated cash
office for retal sites to improve security of cash electromic audit trails of takings and a real
time view of retail cash balances

Secure international
transportation of cash
and valuables

Bespoke internauonal transportation and insurance of currency, gems, precious metals and
other vzluables
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Contracts and relationships

The duration of contracts in the cash solutions service
line vary, with mest being on an annual basis and those
contracts requiring a hugher capital intensity, such as cash
pracassing, being usually five years' duration

However, even when contract terms are short, in practice
many relationships become long term rolling over from
one year to the next This 1s demaonstrated in our annual
customer retention rates which average above 90% across
most regions

Key sectors

Key performance indicators

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

Strategy

Ve aim to

» Play a key role in the management of the cash cycle en
behalf of central banks, cornmercal banks and retailers
allowing them to focus on their core business

* Use our developed market cash cycle expertise and
track record to encourage central bank and financial
institution outsourang in developing markets

* Continue to implement innovative technology such as
CASH360

Key operational highlights

+ Continued strong performance in developing markets
* Continued difficult economic environment of

low interest rates in developed markets
* Improved margins in North America

Risks and mitigation

A full summary of the key risks and mitigations can be
found In the risk assessment and management section on
pages 46 and 47

Graph removed

Graph removed
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Performance
Operational review
Cash solutions continued

2012 performance

The cash solutions business delivered

a solid performance overall with

organic revenue growth of 3% despite
the continuation of low Interest rates
having a negative impact on developed
markets growth opportunities. Overall
margins were maintained at 10.5%, with
improvements in North America and
Developing markets margins offset by
the impact of contract phasing in the UK.

Europe

Organic growth in Europe declined by 9% In the UK

and Irefand, revenues declined by 1% as a result of

the loss of two ATM contracts in the rmiddle of 2011
which also impacted margins Performance began to
improve towards the end of the year as three major new
contracts commenced and as a result of a cost reduction
programme n Ireland The new contracts are for financial
Instrtutions providing outsouraing of cash processing and
cash machine replerushment and engineering at bank
branches and remote sites The engineering 1s provided on
a full 24/7 basis — an industry first The outlook for 2013 1s
also positive with a sohd pipeline of outsourcing contracts

Qutside the UK, margins improved through strong
underlying business performance and cost cutting
measures In Sweden, the cash solutions business was sold
in February 2012 Elsewhere in Continental Eurcpe, organic
growth was positive, helped by product development in
the Netherlands, strong performances across all services in
Belgum, and productivity improvements in Finland Serbia
achieved double-digit growth

North America

In North America, the performance of the cash solutions
business in Canada was improved through stronger
ahgnment in key sectors with the Canadian secure
solutions business in the first half of 2012 This has resulted
In contract awards and extensions with key customers in
the retail and financial services sectors

Developing markets

Organic growth in Developing markets was good at

i0% and margins improved sightly overall due mainly

to an improved performance in the Middle East cash
solutions businesses In particular the businesses in Sauds
Arabia and UAE achieved an improved performance

and excellent growth Strong margins were achieved

in Hong Kong aided by successfully negotiating price
increases with a number of key customers In Ecuador
three leading financial institutions — Banco Bolivariano,
Banco Internacional and Produbanco — have selected G45
to provide cash-in-transit services to more than 250 bank
branches around the country With services set 1o begin
in May 2013, the seven-year contract has an overall value
of £26m In South Africa, in January 2013 G4S acquired
Deposita, the South African market leader in cash devices
and related cash-in-transit, cash processing and insurance
services for the retall sector The Deposita technology will
broaden the G45 Cash360 technclogy offering especially
in other Developing markets

Total Turnover PBITA Margins Organic growth

£m im % %

012 2011 2012 2011 pi 7] 2011+ 2012

Europe’ 780 785 78 83 100% 106% -1%

North Arnerica 114 106 5 2 44% 1 9% 8%

Developing markets® 396 361 52 47 13 1% 1309% 10%

Total cash solutions 1,290 1252 135 132 10 5% 105% 3%
Exchange differences - 42 - 5
At actual exchange rates 1,290 1 294 135 137

*At constant exchange rates
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Bart-fan
Nieuwegein,
near Utrecht,
MNethertands

Each week | service
more than 250 ATM
machines across central
Holland to make sure the
one millon people using
them have round-the-
dock access to their cash
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Performance

Financial review

Iimage removed

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are presented in accordance

with applcable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards, as adopted by the European Union (“adopted
IFRSs™) The group’s significant accounting policies are
detalled in note 3 on pages 8% to 94 and those that are
most critsical and/or require the greatest level of jJudgement
are discussed i note 4 on page 95

Operating results

The overall results are commented upon by the chairman
in hus statement and operational trading 1s discussed in the
operating review on pages 32 to 40 Profit from operations
before amorusation and impairment of acquisition-related
intangible assets and exceptional items (PBITA) amounted
to £516m, an increase of 2 8% on the £502m in 2011 and an
increase of 5 3% at constant exchange rates

Acquisitions and acquisition-related
intangible assets

Investment in acquisitions in the year amounted to £93m,
all pad n cash during the year This investment generated
goodwill of £76m and other acquisition-related intangble
assets of £3Im In addition, the group incurred acguisition
costs of £7m which have been expensed

The group undertook several acquisitions in the current
year, the most significant of which was the purchase of the
entire share capital of Vanguarda, a security persennel,
security systems and monitoring services provider iy Brazil

The group undertook several acquisthons in the prior
year, the most significant of which were the purchase

of the entire share capital of Interativa, a faciities
management business in Brazil, Munt Centrale BV a con
management service company based in the Netherlands,
and The Cotswold Group Limited the UK s market
leader in surverllance fraud analytics, mtelligence and
Investigatrons services
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tn 2041 the group also acquired the offender monitaring
technology operations of Guidance Limited and certain
contracts from Chubb, bothin the UK, and the group
purchased the remaining non-controfling interest in its
security business in Turkey

The contribution made by acquisitions to the results of the
group during the year i1s shown in note 17 on pages |05
and 106

During the prior year the group neerred £55m of aborted
acquistion and legal costs The aborted acquisition costs
related to the proposed acquisition of 155 A/S which

was terminated on | November 2011 and included debt
underwriting fees financing and hedging costs

The charge for the year for the amortisation of acquisition-
refated intangible assets other than goodwill amounted

to £86m Goodwill 1s not amortised Acquisition-

related ntangible assets included in the balance sheet at

31 December 2012 amounted to £2 123m goodwill and
£204rm other

Financing items

Finance income was £94m and finance costs £209m giving a
net finance cost of £/15m Net interest payable on net debt
was £10Im This is an increase of 2% over the 2011 cost of
£3%9m due princepally to the increase in the group's average
gross debt The group's average cost of gross borrowings in
2012 was 4 3% compared to 4 9% n 2011 The cost based
on prevaiking interest rates at 31 December 2012 was 3 9%
compared to 3 8% at 31 December 2011

Also included within finanaing are other net interest costs
of £6m {201} net income £4m), and a net cost of £8m
(2011 net income of £3m) in respect of movements in the
group’s net retirement benefit obligations



Restructuring costs

During 2012 the group undertock a detalled review of

the overhead structure across all reporting levels and
geographies in arder to maximise efficency and ehminate
duphication Restructuring generated a headcount reduction
of over 1,500 positions This resulted in an exceptional cost
of £45m in the year as follows

People Other  Toul

Headcount Costs costs costs

reducton m m £m

UK 58 3 - 3
Continental Eurcpe 257 iz 8 20
North America 132 4 - 4
Developing markets 1019 10 3 13
Heaa Office 48 2 3 5
Total I.5t4 3! 14 45

This restructuring will result in annualised cost savings of
around £35m, whilst an additional £i0m has been invested
in the Service Excellence Centres The group plans to
achieve further cost savings in the medium term through
procurement efficencies and business process redesign

Taxation

The taxation ¢charge of £90m prowided upon profit from
operations before amortisation of acquisition-related
intangible assets, acquisition-related expenses and
exceptional items, represents an eflective tax rate of 22%,
consistent with 2011 The cash tax rate is 22 9% compared
to 18 5% in 201

The groups target is to mairtain the effective tax rate in
the short term The amortisation of acquisition-related
irtangible assets gives rise to the release of the related
properticn of the deferred tax lability estabhshed when
the assets were acquired, amounting to £25m

Disposals and discontinued operations

The group disposed of its cash solutions business in Sweden
in February 2012, its businesses in Poland in September
2012, its electronic monitoring businesses in North America
in April 2012 and rts security solutions busmess in Pakistan in
October 2012

During the prior year the group disposed of its business-to-
consumer alarms business in Norway in December 2011
and of itsinterest in an 5PV i the UK in December 2011

Busmesses classified as held for sale at 31 December 2012
related manly to the US government salutions business
which the group expects to sell during 2013 The assets of
this business have been written down to ther recoverable
value by way of a £35m impairment charge to goodwill

Businesses classified as held for sale at 31 December 2011
included the secure solutions and cash solutions businesses
in Poland and the cash selutions business in Sweden

The Afghanistan-based business of UK Risk Assessment
Services was classified as a discontinued business in the 2011
accounts However, following the retention of the UK Kabul
embassy contract in 2012 the business has been classified as
continuing as at 31 December 2012

The total consideration from business disposals receved n
2012 was £19m

The loss from discontinued operations of £63m (2015 £6m)
relates 1o the post-tax trading of discontinued businesses
and losses and associated costs relating to business disposals
completed during the years as well as the write down of the
US government solutions business's assets

The contribution to the turnover and operatng profit of
the group from disconunued operations i1s shown in note 6
on pages 96 to 99 and thewr contribution to net prefit and
cash flows s detalled in note 7 on page 99

Profit for the year
Profit for the year was £70m, compared to £198mn 2011,
due primarily to the following movements in the year

2012 2000 Movement
PBITA 518 502 14
Amortsation and impairment (86) (96) G
Acquisiuon-related expenses ()] @ 5)
Total loss on Clympics (88) - (88)
Restructuring costs (45) - {45)
Aborted acquisition ¢osts - {55) 55
Net finance costs (115) (92 (23)
Total tax charge (42) 53 I
Loss from discontinued
operations (63) %) (57)
Profit for the year 70 198 (128)

The total loss on the Olympics contract of £88m consists
of an overall loss on the contract of £70m, addiional costs
relating mainly to charitable donations and external fees of
£11m, and further sponsorship and marketing costs of £7m,
all of which were taken as an exceptional charge in 2012

Non-controlling interests

Profit attnibutable to non-controling interests was £22m

in 2C12, an increase on £47m for 2011, as non-controling
partner shares inthe group s organic and acquisitive growth
increased during the year

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and
discontinued operations were 3 4p compared to 12 %p
for 2011

Adjusted earnings, as analysed in note 16 on page 104
excludes the resutt from discontinued operations,
amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets
acquisition-related costs, exceptional items and retirement
benefit obligatiors financing items, all net of tax ang better
allows the assessment of operational performance the
analysis of trends over time, the comparison of different
businesses and the projection of future performance
Adjusted earnings per share was 2t 2p compared to 21 3p
for 2011 or 20 5p at constant exchange rates
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Performance
Finanoal review continued

Dwidends
The directors recommend a final dwsdend of 5 54p (DKK
04730) per share This represents an mcrease of 8% upon

Free cash flow ss reconciled to the total movement in net
debt as follows

the finai dwvidend for the year to 31 December 281t of 5 11p 2%3, 20{21
(DKK 04544) per share The intenm dividend was 3 42p
(DKK 0 3220) per share and the total dwidend, if approved Free cash flow 75 B
will be 896p (DKK 07950) per share representing an Discontinued operations and
increase of 5% over the 8 53p (DKK 0 5624) per share total ~ €xceponal tems (220) “2)
dividend for 2011 Addtional retrement benefit

contributions (37 “0)
The proposed dividend cover s 24 times (2011 27 umes) Net cash outflow on acquistions (86) (159)
on adusted earmngs The group's miention 1s that dwdends

Net cash inflow from disposals 16 -
will continue to increase broadly in ine with normalised
adusted earnings Net cash flow from assocates 3 4

Dmdends pad to non-controlling
Cash flow nterests {19 (10)
The primary cash generation focus of group management 15 Transactions with non-cantrofing
on the percentage of operating profit corwerted inte cash nterests 3 (18}
The group’s target conversion rate is 85% Operating cash

Share 1ssues less share purchases (6) (13
flow as defined for management purposes, was as follows

Dvidends pad to equity holders of

2012 201 the parent (120) {114)

PRITA W 2 oo 2 _

Movement in net debt in the year (186) (l16h)
Deprecation and amortisation of F " la
intangible assets other than acquistion- Oreign exchange transiaton
related 140 16 Adustmentsto net debt - (29)
Mavement in working capital and Net debt at | January (1.616) (1426)
Provisions (27 (73) Netdebtat 3] December (1.802) (1,616}
Net cash flow from capital expenditure {137) {134)
Operating cash flow 492 421 Net debt represents the group's total borrowings less cash,

cash equivalents and hquid nvestments The components of
Operating cash flow as a percentage of
group PBITA 95% gaw, et debt are detaled n note 3% on page 128

Qverall operating cash generation for the year was
excellent as a result of the maintenance of financial
disciphine across the organisation

The management operating cash flow calculation is
reconciled to the net cash from operating activities as
disclosed in accordance with 1AS7 Cash Flow Statements
as follows

2012 201
{m £m

Cash flow from operating actwities
(1AS7 defirmion) 287 372
Net cash flow from caprtal expenditure (137) (134
Discontinued operations and
exceptional items 220 66
Add-back addiienal retrement benefit
contributions 37 40
Add-back tax pad 85 77
Operaung cash flow (G45 defintion) 492 421

The group's free cash flow, as defined by management
15 anzlysed as follows

2012 2001

m £m

Operating cash flow 492 421
Net interest pad (e (102)
Tax paid (85) (7
New finance leases (2H 1y

Free cash flow 275 231
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Flnancmg and treasu ry activities

The groups treasury function s responsible for ensuning
the availability of cost-effective finance and for managing
the group’s financial risk arising from currency and interest
rate volatility and counterparty credit Treasury s nota
profit centre and 1s not permitted 1o speculate In financial
mstruments The treasury departments policies are set by
the board Treasury is subject to the controls appropriate to
the risks 1t manages These risks are discussed i note 33 on
pages L6 to U9

The group's funding position 1s strong, with sufficient
headroom against available commuitted facilities with no
significant debt matuning before 2016

The group's primary sources of bank finance are a £1 [bn
multicurrency revolving credit faclity provided by a
consortium of lending banks at a margin of 0 95% over
LIBOR and maturing 10 March 2016

On § March 2007 the group completed a $550m private
placement of unsecured senior loan notes, maturing at
various dates between 2014 and 2022 and bearing interest
at rates between S77% and 6 06% The fixed interest rates
payable have been swapped imo floating rates for the term
of the notes, at an average margn of 0 60% over LIBOR

On |5 Juby 2008, the group completed a further $514m and
£69m private placement of unsecured senior loan notes,
maturing at various dates between 2013 and 2020 and
bearing interest at rates between 6 09% and 7 56% The
proceeds of the 1ssue were used to reduce drawings against
the revolving credit facility $265m of the US dollar receipts
have been swapped into £]34m fixed rate sterlng for the
term of the notes




On 13 May 2009 the group issued a £350m note bearing an
interest rate of 775% and maturing in 2019

On 2 May 2012 the group 1ssued a euro 600m note bearing
aninterest rate of 2 875% and maturing in 2017 Euro

325m was swapped nto £266m fixed rate stering and the
Interest rate on euro 90m was swapped to a ficating rate
linked to 6 month EURIBOR

On 6 December 2012 the group 1ssued a euro 500m note
bearing an interest rate of 2 625% and maturing i 2018
Euro 350m was swapped into £284m fixed rate sterling and
the interest rate on euro 120m was swapped to a floating
rate inked to 6 month EURIBOR

The groups net debt at 3| December 2012 was £1,802m
The group headroom at 31 December 2012 was £856m
The group has sufficient capacity to finance current
investment plans

Credit rating

On 9 March 2009, the group obtained a BBB Stable credit
rating from Standard & Poor's This credit rating supported
the group's access to funding from the public bond the
private placement and the bank markets

Following the G45 board Olympics contract review, Standard
8 Poors, on 5th November 2012, downgraded the credit
rating of G45 plc to BBB- with 2 Stable outlock The board
intends that the group should continue as an investment
grade entity and will keep the rating under review

Interest rates

The group's investments and borrowings at 31 December
2012 were at a mix of fixed rates of interest and floating
rates of interest linked to LIBOR and EURIBOR The
private placement notes in March 2007 and July 2008 and
the public notes in May 2009, May 2012 and December
2012 were all 1ssued at fixed rates, whilst its investments
and bank borrowings were all 2t variable rates of interest
inked to LIBOR and EURIBOR The groups interest risk
policy requires treasury to fix a proportion of its interest
exposure on a shding scale in US dollars sterling and euro
using the naturat mix of fixed and floating interest rates
emanating from the bond and bank markets and by utilising
interest rate and cross currency swaps The proceeds of
ihe private placement notes issued in March 2007 and part
of the pubhc notes issued in May 2012 and December 2012
were swapped to floating interest rates and accounted for
as far value hedges with a net gain at 31 Decernber 2012 of
£73m The market value of the pay-fixed receive-variable
swaps and the pay-fixed recewve-fixed cross-currency swaps
outstanding at 3|1 December 2012 accounted for as cash
flow hedges, was a ret gan of £2im

Foreign currency

The group has many overseas subsidiaries and associates
denominated in various different currencies Treasury
pohcy 1s 1o manage significant translation risks i respect of
net operating assets using foreign currency denominated
loans, where possible The group no longer uses foreign
exchange contracts 1o hedge the residual portion of net
assets not hedged by way of loans The group believes
cash flow should not be put at risk by these instruments in
order to preserve the carrying value of net assets given
the changed quidity envircnment followtng the global
crecit crisis At 31 December 2012, the group's US dollar
and euro net assets were approximately 85% and 60%
respectively hedged by foreign currency loans

Exchange differences on the translation of foreign
operations included in the consohdated statement
of comprehensive income amount to a loss of £95m
(2011 £65m})

Cash management

To assist the efficient management of the group's interest
costs and its short-term deposits, overdrafts and revolving
credit faclity drawings the group operates a global cash
management system At 3! December 2012, more than
140 group companies participated in tne poo! Debit and
credit balances of £360m were held within the cash pool
and were offset for reporting purposes

Retirement benefit obligations

The group's primary definred benefit retirement benefit
scheme operates in the UK, but it also aperates such
schemes in a number of countries particularly in Europe
and North America The latest completed full actuaral
assessment of the three sections of the UK scheme was
carried out as at 5 April 2009 The full actuarial assessment
asat 5 April 2012 15 in progress The three sections of

the UK scheme are the Group 4 scheme (approximately
8,000 members). the Secuncor scheme (approximately
20,000 members) and the GSL scheme (approximately
2000 members) acquired in 2008 This assessment and
those of the group's other schemes have been updated to
3| December 2012 The groups funding shortfall on the
valuation basis specified in IASI9 Employee Benefits was
£436m before tax or £335m after tax (2011 £295m and
£212m respectively)

The net pension obligation has increased by £141m since
31 Becember 2011 mainly due to a net actuanal loss as a
result of the decrease in the discount rate used from 5 0%
to 4 5%, although this was partly offset by an increase in
inflation assumptions Additionat company contributions of
£37m were paid Into the scheme

The group believes that, over the very long term in which
retirement benefits become payable, investment returns
should eliminate the deficrt reported in the schemes in
respect of past service habilities However, in recognition

of the regulatory obligations upon pension fund trustees to
address reported deficits, the group's defictt recovery plan
will see additional cash contributions made to the scheme
of approximately £38m in 2013 Future contributions will be
agreed with the trustees when the 2012 actuarial valuation
15 completed

Corporate governance

The groups pohaies regarding risk management and
corporate governance are set out in the Corporate
governance statement on pages 65 to 71

Going concern

The directors are confident that after making enquines and
on the basis of current financial projections and available
facilities they have a reasenable expectation that the

group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this reason they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements

Trevor Dighton
Chief financial officer
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Performance

QOur risk assessment and
management process

The group operates around 160 businesses spread over
mere than |25 countries and across a range of product
areas Most of the risks identified below are market
specific and so the diversity of the group's operations
means any particular issue should have a kmited impact

Resk commutiees
Group
Manzgerment
rmetigs RisYs identlfied
Regions and escalated
(and clusters) hased o
matertality

Company
{and business funcuons)

/ \

Risk reporting system

Price competition

Risk and potential impact to KPI

The security industry comprises a number of very
competitive markets In particular manned secunty markets
can be fragmented with relatively low economic barniers

to entry and the group competes with a wide variety of
operators of varying sizes Actions taken by the group's
competitors may place pressure upon 1ts pricing Margins
and prefitabiny

Mitigation

Group management continually monitors competitor
activity to ensure that the group can react quickly to
any competitor actions which would directly affect the
group's results

All business plans and strategic planning includes competitor
and SWOT analysis and the priang strategy for contracis s
managed through business urut and regional price approval
levels Significant price reductions require group capex
committee approval
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Poor operational service delivery
and crisis management

Risk and potential impact to KPI

Failure to meet the operational requirements of its
custarmers and/or failure 1o respond to a crisis could
significantly impact the group's reputation, contract
retention and growth

Mitigation

Group-wide operational procedures and standards for
crisis management and communication are 1n place and
adherence to them is tested in all business units There
is also a rabust supervision structure which allows
management to monitor the progress and delivery

of the group's contracts and customer relationships

The group Crisis communications process 1§
reviewed regularly

Inappropriate sourcing of staff

Risk and potential impact to KPI

Poor selection processes when recrurting staff could
have materal mplications grven the critical nature of the
services undertaken by the group There could also be
nisks assocated with any failure to carry out periodic
re-screening of existing employees

Mitigauon
Minimum group staff vetting standards maintained and
regularly reviewed and updated




Major changes in market dynamics

Financing

Risk and potential impact to KPI

Such changes in dynamics could include new technologies,
government legislation, pelitical or economic volatility or
customer conschdation and could particularly if rapid or
unpredictable, )mpact the group's revenues and profitabiity
Security can be a high profile industry There 1s a wide
and ever-changing vaniety of regulations applicable to

the group's businesses across the world, with a recent
development being an increase of restriction of foreign
ownership In seme countries Failure, or an inability, to
comply with such regulations may adversely affect the
group's revenues and profitability

Miugation

The group performs strategic and business planning

at group, region and business unit level to ensure that
specific local regulation requirements are met Monthly
business unit trading reviews ensure that market changes
are identified quickly and actions taken to maintamn
performance and ensure that business objectives continue
to be achreved

The group also monitors local markets and engages with
governments around the world to ensure adherence to
regulatory requirements, to identify any restrictions that
could adversely impact the group’s activities and take
appropnate actions

Cash losses

Risk and potential impact to KPI

The group 1s responsible for the cash held on behalf of

its customers Increases in the value of cash lost through
¢rirminal attack may increase the costs of the group’s
insurance Were there to be falures in the control and
reconciliation processes surrounding customer cash, these
could also adversely affect the group’s profitability

Mitigation

The group has formal systems and policies in place
documenting physical security procedures and directives
and adheres to a security framework to help reduce the
risk of cash losses

The group also cperates a captive insurance business unit to
mitigate aganst the financial risk of losses and attacks

All transactions are subject to strict authorisation lirmits and
regular reconahations of cash balances are performed for
both cash in ATMs and cash held on customers’ behalfl In
addrtion there 1s regular reporting of any cash lossesfattacks
and audits of security are performed in branches

The group has in place regionat cash reconciiation managers
to increase the focus on cash reconciliations globally

Risk and potential impact to KPI

If due to adverse financial market condrions, insufficient or
only very costly financial funding were avallable, the group
might not be in a pesition to implement its strategy or
invest in acquisitions or capital expenditure This includes
possible bank insolvency loss of headroom particularly from
movement of exchange rates, unavadlability of bank, bond
or other sources of finanang and downgrading of the G45
credit rating These could adversely impact G4S revenue
growth and profitabihity

Mitigation

The group treasury department monitors and follows
pohaes to mitigate aganst iquidity, refinancing and
currency/exchange rate risks Refer to note 33 to the group
accounts for more details

The group’s historical main source of funding has been

a revolving bank facility of £1 |bn which was renewed in
March 2011 untul 2016 The group has sought to diversify its
sources of finance by issuing a number of private placement
bonds in the US and public bonds in the UK and Europe

These have spread out the refinanaing requirements

over the next ten years to ensure the group has access 1o
sufficient funds to meet its business and strategic plans

IT

Risk and potential impact to KPI

Cyber attacks and incidents on G45 and client systems and
services, especially around critscal national infrastructure
could result in fiinancial loss, breach of contract, legal action
and reputational damage

Mitigation

The group employs [T specalists at all tevels and has in

place mandatory mimimum secunty controls {relating to

35 specfic controls) In addition penetration testing of
networks and systems 1s performed regularly to ensure that
key systems are robust

Onerous contractual obligations

Risk and potental impact to KPI

The group could commit to sales contracis specifying
disadvantageous pricing mechanisms unachievable service
levels unacceptable operational feasibility or delvery

risk or excesstve habiity This could impact 1its margins

and profitability

Mitigation

Any new contracts entered into are subject to a defined
approval process Standard contracts are used where
practicable Non-standard contracts which expose the
group to material risk are subject to risk assessment and
depending on the fevel of risk exposure are referred for
regional or group legal department review
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Performance

Corporate Social Responsibility

(G4S plays an important role in socety We make a difference by helping people
to operate in safe and secure environments where they can thrive and prosper
and we believe this is a role that can only grow in importance.

CSR performance in 2012

Strategic developments
* Increased membership of the C5R Committee

* Development of a new human rights policy and
guidance framework for all G4S businesses and employees,
based upon the UN Guiding Principles on Business &
Human Rights

* Active commitment to the Principles of the
UN Global Compact and alignment of our CSR and
UN Global Compact Communication on Progress
reporting requirements

* Continued participation in the development of
the International Code of Conduct for Private
Security Providers

Safeguarding our integrity
* Performed |50 business-completed risk audits and
a further 46 on-site internal risk control audits

* Following implemenitation of ant-bribery controls, we
have cormpleted 37 business ethics compliance audits

= Completed implementation of * Safe2Say” the group’s global
24 hour freephone whistle-blowing hotfine
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Securing our people
* Reduced work-related fatalities by 22% from 76 1o 59

* Made good progress in the implementation of action plans
from Critical Country Reviews of health and safety

* Formation of a road safety steering group and development
of an action plan to reduce accidents

* Representation of wornen in management increased from
21% to 22 5% and in front hne roles from 10 7% 10 125%

* Development of new induction, training and apprassal tools
to improve engagement with employees and provide better
feedback to managers

Securlng our environment
* The total carbon footprint of G45 in 2012 was
612,000 /COre

+ Achieved overall reduction in carbon intensity of 4 3%
n 2012

* Achieved a | 6% reduction in carbon intensity between
2009 and 2012 aganst a target of |3%

Securlng our communities

* Invested over £2 milhon in charitable community
programmes and welfare of employees facong health
or financial hardship

* Through the G45 4teen programme, we successfully helped
five young athletes to achieve ther ambition of competing
at the London 2012 Olympic Games




Why CSR matters to G4S

CSR management

G4S 15 one of the world's largest private employers and
the nature of our business and the countries and markets
in which we operate mean that we form an important part
of many societies and impact the lives of millions of people
all over the world — it 1s our responsibility to make sure that
the impact 1s a positive one

There are many benefits of having an embedded

CSR strategy and operating to high ethical standards

CSR helps to 2tiract and retan staff, helps to win business
In a competitive environment where we need to stand out
from others 1t helps to attract investment to support the
growth of the company and, most of al, it helps to generate
pride in the company from everyone connected to 1t
Ultimately CSR enables us to do better business

“CSR1s an important part of the cufture
of the company and | have been proud
to be associated with its development
through the CSR Committee ™

Mark Elhott
Non-executive director and chairman of the
CSR Commttes

Our CSR strategy

We have conducted a CSR matenality exercise to assess
the views of senior managers within G45 and those of
external stakeholders to ensure that we focus on the most
iImporiant rssues for the group

Recognising the nature of G45's business our large
workforce and our geographic diversity 1t 1s understandable
that the materiality exeraise highlighted business ethics
(including anti-corruption), human rights employee
engagement and health and safety as priorities for the
group, as these are the areas which would have the mast
material effect on business performance or reputation if
they were not managed carefully

Our CSR strategy includes a much broader range of
topics, but these are the areas where management and
the CSR Committee focus the majonty of therr efforts
The CSR Committee will regularly review these 1ssues in
hight of changing circumstances and stakeholder pricriuies

Reflecting the value we place on CSR and on our
reputatron our CSR Commuttee has been a full board
committee since 2011, compnising a number of experienced
non-executive directors who meet regularly to discuss
CSR-related matters The commuttee is chared by Mark
Elott a G4S ple non-executive director with extensive
experience of CSR issues from his 40 years in international
business Elements of our CSR strategy are also a regular
subject for discussion at group executive and board
meetngs

Duties of the C5R Committee include

* Review agree and establish the companys CSR strategy
to ensure that it remains an integral part of the groups
overall strategy

* Develop and recommend for acceptance by the board,
policies on all aspects of CSR

* Recewe reports and review activities from executives and
specialist groups managing CSR matters

* Montor comphance with the CSR policies and review
performance aganst targets

* Review the integration of CSR processes with
risk management programmes and reputation
management priorities

* Develop and encourage effective two-way communicabion
concerning CSR issues

* Ensure CSR-related ssues are considered during acquisiuon
due-diligence

* Review best practice and benchmark where appropriate
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Performance
Corporate Social Responsibility continued

Engaging stakeholders

We continuously work to improve our communication and
engagement with key stakeholder groups to ensure that
our strategy s aligned to their needs and that as our CSR
programmes develop, we seek nput and advice from those
around us in 2012 we

* Sought input from leading independent human rights
experts including NGOs and SR analysts to adwise on the
development of our new global human rights policy and
guidance framework.

* Continued our invalvement :n the development of the
International Code of Conduct for Private Securrty
Prowiders which sets out principles for securty operations
in so-called "complex environments”

» Continued to recerve customer feedback through account
management, operaticnal reviews and customer surveys

Safeguarding our integrity

Integrity 1s one of the group's core values — being a
responsible business partner, employer, customer or
supplier 1s an important part of our strategy and forms an
essential foundation on which we carry out our business

What we’re doing

Business ethies

To ensure that our employees understand how they can
play their part in delivering high ethical standards across
the group, we continue to enforce a group-wide Ethics
Code that sets out how we expect our employees to
behave in order to "live” our value of integrity The code 15
supplemented with a Business Ethics Policy which provides
a more detailed summary of the group's ethical standards
of operation The code and policy are reviewad each year,
incorporating evolving legistation and evaluating any risks to
the group's ntegrity To ensure compliance with the code
and pelicy we also ask businesses, as part of the G4S risk
assessment process, to assess their business ethics rnisks and
comphance with the ethics policy

Human rights

We recognise the growing importance of human rights as
a material business issue and we believe that G4S can play a
positive role in respecting human rights around the world
OQur businesses can contribute positively to the realisation
of human rights by the range of services we offer to protect
people and enable them to enjoy their rights We also
recognise that we have a duty to ensure that we are not

at risk of violating human rights through the services we
provide, the customers we work with and the suppliers we
use and through the fair and appropriate treatment of our
own employees and others who are in our care
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Last year we began a project to evaluate the human rights
fandscape in relation to the G4S businesses and to develop
a polcy and guidance for managers which set out clearly
the group's expectations of managers and empioyees in
upholding human rights standards

Foliowing extensive internal and external consultation, we
completed the new human rights policy and guidance for
managers and launched them early in 2013 as part of our
annual process of renewing and refreshing our Business
Ethics Policy

Looking forward our next challenge 1s to ensure that the
policy and guidance are embedded across the organisation
at every level We are approaching that challenge in a
number of ways, from the introduction of an awareness
programme 1o make sure everycne is aware of the key
human rights issues and their responsibility to uphold
standards to the introduction of a systematic approach

10 human rights anzlysis, due-diligence and monrtoring

How we're performing

 Completed | 50 business risk assessments and 146 on-site
internal risk control audits

= Conducted external extended assurance work on financial
contrals in six of our UK businesses

* Completed 37 country audits to measure cempliance with
G4S business ethics controls

* Completed implementation of "Safe?5ay’ the group's
global whistle-blowing hotline

* Implemented a iocal hotline service in India, serving our
129,300 employees across the country

Graph removed

Priorities for 2013
* Criticafly review risk assessment process to ensure it
continues to meet our requirements

* Improve overall co-ordination of corporate audrt with
other auditors across the Group

* Further enhance reporting of combined audit and
assurance activities 1o management

* Implement any additional audit requirements in relation to
new hurman nghts policy and gurdelines

* Coninue to promcte whistle-blowang facilities to all
staff through multiple channels

* Introduce grading system for calls recewed
10 the whistle-blowing facility and ensure they are
investigated appropriately




Securing our people

As a service provider, our customers rely on us 1o have a
motivated and healthy workforce Keeping cur employees
safe looking after their interests and treating them farrly 1s
therefore vital to our ongoing success

What we're doing

Health and safety

The protection of our people remains a paramount
concern Empioyees on the front line often face risks to
their health and wellbeing which we are constantly seeking
to reduce, remove or regulate The most prevalent risks
ta the heaith and safety of our employees continues to

be from work-related attacks and road traffic inadents
Although the total number of work-related fatalities has
reduced since 2011, our aim s to ebminate them altogether

Employee engagement

We see the role of our first ine managers as critical In
increasing levels of employee engagement During 2012
we introduced new training materials relating to the
PRIDE model to develop their skills in this impertant
area Gathering feedback from employees on the factors
impacting their levels of engagement is vital in shaping
our plans Work s ongoing following the global employee
engagement survey in 2011 and in 2013 we will conduct
our next survey

Protect ther basic needs
Respect them as :individuals
Invalve them in the business
Develop therr skills and potential
Engage them fully

How we're performing
*+ A 22% reduction in work related fatalities from 76 1n
2011 10 5%

* Establishment of an online forum for health and safety
practrtioners to gather knowledge and share best practice

* Good progress with the implementation of the action
plans from the Critical Country Reviews of health and
safety (CCRs)

* A reduction in work-related fatalities in eight of the
|3 countries where CCRs were conducied

* Improvement in the representation of womean in
management from 21% to 22 5% and in front line
roles from 107% 10 12 5%

* An increase in the number of senior management vacancies
filled through internal promotion to over 50%

* Maintenance of an employee stability rate of 72% towards
retenticn of cur employees

Graph removed

Graph removed

Priorities for 2013

* Gathering of lost time incident data to identfy and respond
more proactively to potential health and safety risks

* Further health and safety Criticat Country Reviews and
menitoring of action plans to ensure continued reduction
of work-related fatahities

* Implementation of the road safety action plan in
priority countries

* Review cf training content and methodclogy for
middle managers

* Work with specific businesses to improve representation
of women in supervisory positions i the talent pipeline

« Conduct our third global employment engagement survey

= Continue to develop constructive unton relationships
across our business

@ For further XPls on our people, see the 'resources

and relationships” section on page 30
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Performance
Corporate Socal Responsibility continued

Securing our environment

Securlng our communities

Our customers and employees demonstrate mereasing
concern for environmental ssues Whilst our ervronmental
impacts are not significant relatrve to other businesses of
comparable size, it remamns important to us to be efficent

in our use of resources such as energy and, in doing so,
curtailing our greenhouse gas emissions

What we're doing

Carbon and energy

Since we launched our Chmate Action Strategy in 2009,
our carbon intensity has decreased by 16% per £lm of
revenue This reduction in carbon intensity translates

to a real reduction of | 5% in carbon emissions against

a 13% growth in the business during the same period
much of which includes carbon emissions from services
which our customers have outsourced to G4S Thisis a
positive achievement which recognises the efforts made to
introduce energy efficency measures across the business

The most significant contributory factor to our carbon
footprint 1s our fleet of more than 30 000 vehicles To nelp
mitigate this impact, we have since 2009 introduced a range
of fuel efficiency measures nto our fleet management
These range from eco-drver training and real-time satellite
tracking and monitoring of driver behaviour to nvestment
in new technologies such as solar cells to power anallary
vehicle systems and the introduction of new and more
efficent vehicle types into our fleet

How we're performing
* The G4S 2012 total carbon footprint equates to some
612,000 t'COue

+ Achieved an overall reduction in carbon intensity of
43%in 2012

* Exceeded our target for reduction of carbon intensity,
with a | 6% reduction from 2009 1o 20172

Carbon intensity

2009 2010 2011 2012

Carbon intensity {tonnes

CCue per £m) turnover B33 823 775 742

Priorities for 2013
* Continue o implement energy efficency strategies to
reduce carbon intensity by 20% between 2009 to 2014

* Continue to develop our measurement of waste and water
consumption and introduce targets for reduction
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We recognise that our ability to provide a safe and

secure environment around the world depends on the
relationships we have with the communities and people
with whom we work We are therefore committed to
working with charity and community partners to tackle
ssues which aflect local communities, especialiy relating to
health, education and welfare of children and young people
We have a long history of nvesting in the communities in
which we live and work and to which we provide services,
and we recognise the importance of this role

What we're doing

We seek to make a positive Impact en the local
communities in which our employees, customers and
suppliers ve and work The sowal and economic impact
reaches well beyond our working environment and touches
the lives of millions around the world

How we're performing
Buiiding on the partnershups and investrment that we have
made in previous years, in 2012 we

* Through the G45 4teen programme, G45 successfully
helped five young athletes te achieve their ambition of
competing at the London 2012 Olympics

= Invested over £2m in charitable community programmes
and welfare of staff facing health difficulties or financial
hardships In developing countries

Comprised of

— Provision of goods, services and financial investment in
to more than 360 community programmes across 60
countries with a combined value of almost £1 38 000

- Increased investment of £641,000 into projects to
support the long-term welfare and development of
employees In developing countries

* In addition we also donated £2 5m to military charities
in the UK as a gesture of thanks for the support of the
milizary in delivering the securrty of the Londen 2012
Olympic Garnes

2012

Corporate

Corporate donations of money £921,700
Corporate donations of goods and services £459,500
Employee

Employee and third party donations facktated

by G4S £72,000
Employee welfare and development £641,000

Prioritues for 2013
* Evatuate a new communny-based programme for 2013
to be launched in the second half of the year

* Build on our wider community investrent 1o demonstrate
greater impact on the people we strive to support
* Parnaipate i an academic study of the direct and indirect

social and economic impacts of G45 within a number of
key markets, starting with the UK




Image removed

Michael
Milton Keynes, UK

Every month, | install
over |20 smart meters
across three counties
of England which

help our customers
manage their energy
usage better
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Governance

Board of directors
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Nick Buckles

John Connolly

Mark Seligman

Executive director

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Chief executive

Chairman of the board

Deputy charman

Member — Risk Committee

Key strengths Long experience of the
group and its predecessor companies with
a background as a commercial manager
before taking on line management roles
and then divisional and group executive
responsibilities In addrion to his board
role, particepates regularly m Nomination
and Remuneration Committee meetings,
chairs the Executive Committee

Joined G4S board May 2004

Previous experience Joined Securicor
in 1985 Became managing director of its
UK cash solutians business in 1996, chief
executve of Its securtty dvsion in 1999 and
was appointed 1o the board of Secuncor ple
in 2000 before becorning s chief exeautive
in 2002 He was the company’s deputy chief
executive and chief operating officer from its
formation in 2004 and was appointed chief
executive in 2005 He also served asa non-
executive director at Arriva Group plc
from 2005 until 2010

Current external commitments

Chairman of the Ligue Internationale des
Societes de Survelllance, the international
association of leading security companies
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Chairman — Nomination and Risk
Committees

Key strengths Extensive experience of

waorking in a global business environment
and in sectors of strategic importance to
the group

Strong relationships with major investors
and wide involvement within G4S at group
and regional meetings

Developing the board and 1ts governance
of the group

Jomned G4S board June 2012

Previous experience A chartered
accountant john spent his career until May
2011 with global professioral services firm
Deloitte was Global Chairman between
2007 and 2011 and prior to that, Global
Managing Director between 2003 and
2007 He was Senior Partner and CEOQ

of the UK partnership from 1999 until hus
retirement from the partnership

Current external commitments
Chairman of AMEC plc and of a number
of private companies, beyond commercal
business roles, he is also on the Board of
Governors of London Business School, a
member of the CBI President’s Advisory
Council and of the Briush American
Business International Advisory Board
He 15 also chairman of the appeal board
for The Centre for Children's Rare
Disease Research at Great Ormond
Street Hospital

Chairman — Audit Committee

Member — Remuneration Committee

Key strengths Extensive financial and
management experience having worked
inthe financial services secton, with a
particular focus on investment banking
Takes particufar interest i the financial
performance of the company, including
its financing and transactional activity

Joned G4S board January 2006

Previous experience Quahfied as

a chartered accountant with Price
Waterhouse Senior roles at $G Warburg
& Co Ltd and Barclays de Zoete Wedd,
Mead of UK Investment Banking at

CSFB, Chairman of UK Investment
Banking at Credit Suisse member of the
Credit Suisse Global Investment Banking
Executive Board and senior adwisor

to Credit Suisse Europe

Current external commitments
Alternate member of the Panel on
Takeovers and Mergers, member of the
Regional Growth Fund Adwvisory Panel,
non-executive director of BG Group
plc and senior independent director of
Kingfisher plc



Image removed
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Trevor Dighton

Lord Condon

Grahame Gibson

Executive director

MNon-executive director

Executive director

Chief financiad officer

Senior independent director

Regional CEQ — Americas

Member — Risk Committee

Chairman — Remuneration Committee

Key strengths Wide krowledge of both the
group and other serwice businesses as weil
as the accountancy profession In addion
to his board role, participates regufarly in
Audit Committee meetings as well 23 sitting
on the Executive Committee

Joined G45 board May 2004

Previous experience An accountant, be joned
Securicor in 1995 having previously worked
in the accourtancy profassion and in industry,
including five years in Papua New Guinea,
three years in Zambia and seven years with
BET plc After joining Securicor s vehicle
services division in 1995, was appointed
finance director of 1s securtty division in
1997 and becarne rts deputy group finance
director n 2001 Appeinted o the board

of Securicor plc as group finance director

11 2002, he became the company s CFO
when it was formed in 2004

Current external commitments None

Key strengths Extensive experience of
high profile security 1ssues the workings
of the public sector and law making Has
broad involvement with the UK businesses
within the group, particularly those serving
public secter customers

Joined G4S board May 2004

Previous experience Seror
appaintments in the UK police force,
ncuding Chief Constable of Kent and
Commissioner of the Metropolitan
Police, as well as at the British Security
Industry Association and the International
Cricket Councail's anti-corruption unit

Current external commitments Cross
bench member of the House of Lords
occasicnal adwvisor on sports integrity to
the International Olympic Committee and
Deputy Lord Lieutenant for Kent

Key strengths Extensive knowledge of

the group and s predecessor companies In
many different markets and in a number of
executive funchions In addition to hus beard
role 15 also CEC of the Americas region

Joined G4S board Apri 2005

Previous experience Joned Group 4

in 1983 starting as finance director (UK}
followed by a number of senior roles,
including deputy managing director (UK),
vice president (corporate strategy), vice
president {finance and administration),
vice president operations (central and
south eastern Europe and UK) and

chief operating officer of Group 4 Falck
A/S In 2004 he became the company's
dvisional president for Americas and
New Markets and became chief operating
officer in 2005

Current external commicments Board
member of the Ligue Internaticnale des
Soaetes de Surveillance the wterpatonal
assocraton of leading security companies
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Governance
Board of directors continued
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Clare Spotuswoode

Adam Crozier

Paul Spence

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Member — Remuneration and CSR
Committees

Member ~ Audit and Nomination
Committees

Member — Audit, CSR and Risk
Committees

Key strengths Considerable experience
in the public sector, the energy markets
and the financial services sector as well
as setting up and managing her own
businesses Has particular involvement
with the group's businesses in the UK
and Africa region

Joined G4S board June 2010

Previous experience A mathematician
and economist by training, worked for the
UK Treasury, director general of Ofgas the
UK gas regulator, pohcyholder advocate for
Norwich Urion's with-profits policyholders
at Aviva non-executive director of Tullow
Ol plc and a member of the Independent
Commission on Banking and the Future of
Banking Comrmussion

Current external commitments
Chairman of Gas Strategies Group
Energetix Group and Magnox Limited
non-executive drector of EnergySolutions
Inc lika plc Enquest ple and RBC Eurcpe
Limited, and independent director of the
Payments Counal
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Key strengths \Wide-ranging experience
of business transformation in a number of
publc and private sector organisations in
the meda, logistics and retail sectors

Joined G45 board fanuary 2013

Previous experience Started his career
with Mars before joirming the Daily
Telegraph followed by Saatchi and Saatchy,
where he became joint chief executive
He then became chief executive of the
Football Assocation and was subsequently
appomnted dmel executive of the Royal
Mait Group where he oversaw an
extensive programme of modernisation
and change to enable the business to
compete in the UK and international
marketplaces Since Apri 2010 he has
been chief executive of ITV plc and was a
non-executive director of Debenhams plc
untll 2012

Current external commizments Chief
executive of ITV plc

Key strengths In-depth knowledge

of outsourcing in both the public and
prvate sectors and extensive international
experience n key developing countries
such as India China and Brazit

Joined G45S board January 2013

Previous experience A graduate of

the Wharton School at the University of
Pennsylvaria with a degree in economics and
deasion saences, served a 30-year career
with Capgemni and its predecessors Having
started in the US and becorne rmanaging
partner of mid-Atantic information and
technology for Ernst & Young he went an
1o gain significant international experience
for 16 years as managing partner of Ernst

& Young Consutiing Australia, CEQ of
Capgemini Emnst & Young in Asia and CEC
Capgemini Ernst & Young UK He then
spent eight years serving on Capgermini's
executive management committee during
which time his roles included deputy

group CEO and CEO of Capgermini Global
Qutsourang Services

Current external commitments None
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Bec Lerenius

Winnie Kin Wah Fok

Mark Elliott

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Member — Audit and CSR Committees

Key strengths Extensive international board
and executive management expenence Has
a great deal of knowledge of the ports sector
and of rmary European markets

Has particular involvement with the
groups businesses in Europe

Joined G45 board May 2004

Previous experience Chief executive of
Ernstromgruppen AB a Swedish bulding
materials company chief executive and
chairman of Stena Line AB, group chief
executive of Associated British Ports
Holdings ple, non-executive director of
Land Securities Group ple, non-executive
director and charman of Mouchel Group
plc, non-executive director of Thomas
Cook Group ple

Current external commitments
MNon-executive chairman of Kright
Infrastructure I, holding company of
Koole Tanktransport BV non-executive
chairman of Brunswick Rail Limited and
senior advisor to the infrastructure fund
of Swedish venture caprtat group EQT,
member of the board of the Swedish
Chamber of Commerce for the UK,
non-executive director of Bishop
Infrastructure |1 holding company

of Westway Group LLEC

Member — CSR and Remuneration
Committees

Key strengths International board and
senior management experience with
extensive knowledge of Asian markets
and strong involvement 1n Scandinavia

Has particular involvement in the groups
businesses in Asia

Joined G4S board October 2010

Previous experience An auditor by
traning, was involved in management
positions in finance, audit and corporate
advisory work and a wide range of roles
i asset managerment firms investing with
a focus in Asia Senior partner of EQT
and CEQ of EQT Partners Asia Limited
managing director of CEF New Asia
Partners Limited

Current external commitments Sentor
adwvisor 10 Foundation Administration
Management Sweden AB, non-executive
director of Volvo Car Corporation
non-executive director of AB SKF Kemura
Oy and HOPU Investments Co Ltd

Chairman — CSR Commuttee

Member — Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Key strengths Extensive nternational
board and executive experience having
held a number of semor management
positions in [BM, including leadership of
IBM's operations in Europe the Middle
East and Africa with responsibility for
operations in more than 110 countries

Has particular invelvement with the
group's businesses in the Americas region

Joined G45 board September 2006

Previous experience. General Manager
IBM Global Solutions Managing Director
of IBM Europe, Middle East and Africa,
member of the board of IBAX, a hospntal
software company (ointly cwned by IBM
and Baxter Healthcare chairman of

the Dean's Advisory counal of the Kelly
School of Business, Indiana University

Current external commitments
Non-executive charman of QineuQ
Group plc, non-executive director of
Reed Elsevier PLC and chairman of Reed
Eisevier's remuneration commitiee
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Governance

Executive management team
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Nick Buckles

Trevor Dighton

Seren Lundsberg-Nielsen

Chief executive

Chuef financial officer

Group general counsel

MNick has worked in the security industry
for 28 years focusing throughout this time
on the commercal and strategic aspects
of all areas of security services

After a variety of commeraial roles
throughout the group he was
responsible for driving significant profit
Improvements In many Securicor
businesses throughout the 1990s as a
business unit managing director and
divisicnal chief executive of the securty
division He was alsc instrumental

in the development of Securicor’s
security sector focus, becoming group
chiel executve n 2002, and in bringing
together Group 4 Falck and Securicor to
create the combined group Nick becarme
chief executive of G4S in July 2005

Nick 1s chairman of the Ligue
Internationale des Societes de Surveillance
the international associztion of leading
security companies
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Trevor has worked :n the security

industry for 27 years After several years
In both the accountancy profession and
comrnerce waorking 1 the finance function
and general management he jomed BET in
1986 as finance director of its security and
communications division

Trevor joined Securicor in 1995 and
following a number of years as finance
director of the security division, he was
appointed to the board of Securicer plcin
June 2002 as group finance director He
became chief financial officer of G451
July 2004

Trevor s a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants

Seren began his career as a lawyer in
Denmark and since (984 he has had a wide
range of legal experience as general counsel
for international groups in Denmark
Belgium and the US before joining Group 4
Falck in 2001 as Group General Counsel

Seren has been involved in a wide range
of successful mergers and acquisitions
during his career, ncluding the acquisrien
of Wackenhut and the Group 4 Falck
merger with Securicor

Seren has overall responsibility

for all internal and external legal
services for G45 as well as the group's
Insurance programme

Seren 15 a member of the Danish Bar and
Law Society, 2 member of the adwisory
board of the Darush UK Chamber of
Commerce and author of the book

Executive Management Contracts ,
pubfished in Denmark
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[rene Cowden

Group HR director

Debbie Walker

Group communications director

Irene has spent her career in

R management, speciahising in
employee relations organisational
development, talent management and
compensation 1ssues

She has been involved in major change
projects including the cuhtural and
integration aspects of mergers and
acquisitions, as well as large scale
organisationa change involving workforce
restructuring, working in partnership with
major trade unions

irene has worked in the security industry
for 35 years and has held director level
positions at business unit, divisional and
corporate level She was appointed to the
board of Securicor plc in 2002 as group
HR director

Irene 15 a Fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Personnel and Development (FCIPD)

Debbie s group communications director,
heading the corporate communications
team which focuses on the groupss key
audiences — investors media government,
employees and customers Debbie s

also responsible for the group’s CSR and
human rights strategies

Debbie has a broad range of experience
i marketing, corporate communications,
brand development and mplementation,
and crisis communications Prior to

the merger between Group 4 Falck

and Securicor, Debbie was employed

in a number of semor marketing and
communications roles within the Securicor
group from 1993 to 2004

Debbie 15 also vice chairman of the

CBI South East Regional Counal {the
representative body for all CBI member
comparues based in the South East of
England and the Thames Valley), having
previously served as chairman for

two years
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Governance

Executive management team continued
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Graham Levinsohn

Group strategy &
development director

Graham has mare than 19 years'
experience in the security industry, having
joined Securicor Cash Services m 1994 as
general manager — marketing

Since then Graham has held a number
of commercial and line management
positions In both the cash and security
bnes of business Graham was responsible
for the creation of the UK cash cenires
outsourging business in 2001 as managing
directer, before moving on to become
divisional managing director for G45 Cash
Services UK, and then regional president
- Nordics

He became group strategy and
development director in 2008 and joined
the Executive Committee in 2010
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Grahame Gibson

Regional CEQ — Americas

Richard Morris

Regional CEO — UK and Ireland

Grahame has been involved in the securrty
industry for 30 years having joined Group
4's UK operating company in 1983 as
finance director

Since that time, Grahame has held a
number of operational management and
board positions in the UK USA Denmark
the Netherlands and Austria

His broad experience of the security
industry and management of businesses
across a diverse range of cultures has
been invaluable to the greup throughout
its development

Grahame jomed the board of G4S ploin
April 2005

Grahame 15 a board member of the Ligue
Internationale des Socetes de Survelllance

Richard joined Securicor in 2003 as a
commercal director, after spending the
early part of his career in a vanety of
accountancy roles within Royal Mail and
subsequently the faclities management
industry He was appointed as a business
unit managing director n 2007 and was
responsible for driving stigrificant growth
and profit improvement

In early 2014 Ruchard became group
managing cirector for G4S Care and
Justice Services In October 2012 Richard
was appointed regional CEQ ~ UK

and lreland

Richard 15 an Assoaate of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants
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Willem van de Ven

Dan Ryan

Regional CEO — Europe

Regional CEQ - Asia Middle East

Willem has served G4S and its corporate
predecessors in Holland for 20 years

He started out in the former Randstad
group where he became regional director
Willem then served as HR director and
managing director of the Netherlands
security company Randon which was
subseguently acquired by Securicor

In April 2003, Willem was appointed as
Securicor s regional managing director
{Africa) becoming the regional president
for G4S Africa (Sub-Sahara) in 2004

in July 2010, Willern was appointed
Regional CEOQ - Europe

Dan joned G4S in August 2010 from
global logistics and transportation
company Neptune Orient Lines (NOL)
where he held a number of senior
management positions including regional
president for Greater China for NOUs
APL and APLE. divisions, regional president
for the Middle East for the APL division
and regional president for Europe for
the group's APL Logistics dvision He
was a member of the NOL group
executive team

He also held various managing director
positicns for NOL including Middle East,
Hong Keng/South China and Indonesia and
was a regional head for the Middle East a
during his 20-year career with the group

Oan 15 a charter member of the Middile
East Logistics/Supply Chan Management
Forum Hang Kong Liner Shipping
Association and the American Chamber
of Commerce — Shanghai
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Governance

Report of the directors

For the year ended 3| December 2012

The directors have pleasure in presenting therr Annual Report
together with the audited financial statements of G435 plc and
the consolidated financial statements of that company and its
subsidiaries, associated undertakings and jomnt ventures (“the
group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012

G4S ple has 1its primary histing on the London Stock Exchange
and a secondary lisung on the NASDAQ OMX exchange
in Copenhagen

[ Principal activities of the group
GA4S pke is a parent company with subsidiaries, associated
undertakings and joint ventures

The principal activities of the group comprise the provision of secure
salutions {including manned security services care and justice services
and securrty systems} and cash solutions (including the management
and transportation of cash and valuables) as well as the undertaking
of other outsourced business processes In sectors where security and
safaty risks are considered a strategic threat

2 Group results
The consolidated result for the year s shown in the consolidated
Incorme statement on page 84

Detars of the development and periormance of the group's
business during the year 1ts position at the year end future
devetopments, prinapal risks and uncertanties and prospects of
the group and other information which fulfils the requirements
of a management report for the purpose of DTR 4 | 8R are
contained on pages 8 1o 47 and are incorporated in this report
by reference The Cerporate Governance Statement set out on
pages 63 to 71 is also iIncorporated in this report by reference
The group's financial risk management objectives and policies in
relation to its use of financizl nstruments and its expaosure to
price, credit, iquidity and cash-flow risk, to the extent materal,
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated finanaal statements on
pages tl6to 19

3 Dividends

The directors propose the following net dividend for the year

* Interim deadend af 3 42p (DKK G 3220) per share pad on
9 October 2012

« Final dwidend of 5.54p (DKK 0 4730) per share payable on 14 June 2013

Shareholders on the Damish VP register wili receive their dividends
in Danush kroner Sharehelders who hold their shares through CREST
or in certificated form will receve their dvidends in sterling unless
they prefer to receive Danish kroner, in which case they should apply
In writing to the Registrars by no later than 15 May 2013
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4 Significant business acquisitions,

disposals and developments

In February 2012, G4S Cash Solutions (Sverige) AB was disposed
of In Sweden

In April 2012, the pedestrian meter reading business and assets of
Utility Metering Serwvices Ltd were acquired in the UK

In April 2012, the automated meter reading business of Utility
Metering Services Ltd was acquired in the UK

In April 2012 DML Fire Systems Limited was acquired in Ireland

In April 2012 G4S Justice Services LLC and certain intellectual
property assets and ather personal property assets from G45
Justice Services (Canada) Ltd were disposed of in North America

tn May 2012, a €600millicn, 2 875% bond maturing n May 2017
was 1ssued by G45 International Finance pic

In June 2012 The Fachties Management Group (Pty) Limited
(FMG) was acqurred in Botswana

In june 2012 Inzetbaar BV was acquired in the Netheriands

In September 2012 Vanguarda Seguranga e Viglancia Lida was
acquired i Brazl

In Septembrer 2012, the group's businesses in Poland were
disposed of

In October 2012 Wackenhut Pakistan (Pvt) Limited was
disposed of in Pakistan

In October 2012, Antwerp Safety Centre NV and ASC Safety
Services BVBA were acquired in Belgum

In December 2012, a €500mithon 2 625% bond maturing in
December 2018 was issued by G45 International Finance plc

In January 2043, Deposita Systems (Pty) was acquired in
South Africa

In February 2013, a settlement agreement was entered into with
LOCOG in the UK in relation to the Olympics contract

5 Caprtal

The authorised and issued share capital of G4S plc at

31 December 2012 15 set out on page 126 {note 37 to the
corschdated financial statements) There were | 410,668,639
shares in issue as at 12 March 2013

Resolutions granting the directors power, subject to certain
conditicns to allot and make market purchases of the company s
shares will be proposed at the company’s annual general meeting
The resolunions are set out n the Notice of Meeting on pages 142
to 145 and further explanation s provided on pages 146 and 147
At 31 December 2012 the directors had autherity in accordance
with a resolution passed at the company s annual general

meeting held on 7 June 2012 1o make market purchases of up 1o
141,066,000 of the company s shares



The company does not hold any treasury shares as such However
the 7,589,853 shares held within the G45 Employee Benefit

Trust ("the Trust™) and referred to on page 127 {note 38 to the
consoldated financial statement) are accounted for as treasury
shares The Trust has warved its nght to receve dividends in
respect of the company’s shares which it held during the period
under review

6 Research and development expenditure

Research in connection with the development of new services and
products and the improvement of those currently provided by
the group 1s carried out continuowsly Research and development
written-off to profit and loss during the year amounted to £5m
(2011 £6m)

7 Payment of supplers

ft 15 the companys and the group’s policy to pay suppliers in accordance
wrth the payment terms negotiated with them Thus, prompt payment
is normally made to those supplers meeting their obligations The
company and the group do not follow any formal code or standard
on payment practice

Transactions with trade creditors are processed through the
company's wholly-owned subsidiary G4S Corporate Services
Limsted Therefore, at 31 December 2012 the trade creditors of the
company represented nil days (2011 nil days) of annual purchases

At 3| December 2012 the consolidated trade creditors of the
group represented 42 days (2011 39 days) of annual purchases

8 Employees

With over 620,000 employees worldwide employee engagement

s a crucial driver of business success which helps improve employee
stability and increase employee motivation to deliver excellent service
to customers leading i turn to better business performance

To ensure that levels of employee engagement are a constant
focus for managers, key performance indicators like employee
turnover, stability and health and safety are measured and
monitored on a monthly basis In 2012 first ine management
training and development materials were aligned te the group’s
employee engagement model, PRIDE (Protect, Respect Involve
Develop and Engage} These materials provide managers with the
tools and knowledge to put the PRIDE model into practice

In support of the group's engagement strategy, the rnvolvement of
employees s sought in a number of ways In 2013 the third global
employee engagement survey will be completed and all employees
will be invited to partiapate, share their views an the group's
performance against the PRIDE model, and provide suggestions
on how the business can improve further

About a third of employees are covered by the terms of a
collective agreement Bespoke partnership agreements such
as the Ethical Employment Partnership help 1o creaie a stable
operating environment and provide another important avenue
for employee involvement consultation and feedback

Bringing new talent into the organisation 1s wital for the group's
future growth and success To attract recrurt and retain the
best people from the widest pool of applicants the group's
employment policies do not discrminate Instead they are
intended to promote an inclusive working environment where
people from all backgrounds can share their perspectives new
ideas and help foster stronger relationships with customers

The group emplays disabled pecple and offers the same
opportunites for training development and promouon making
reasonable adustments where necessary to support new
employees or those who have become disabled during the course
of ther employment with G45

Further information on the group’s employment policies and
practices can be foundin the groups 2012 CSR report

9 Political and charitable contributions

The group remains comnwtied to the support of charities the
community, job creation and training Charitable contributions
by the group during the year amounted to £2,887 000

(2011 £344,000)

Charitable contributions made by the group in the UK amounted
1o £2,624,000 The purposes for which such contributions were
made and the amount donated te each purpose were child
welfare £8,000, health and medical £21 000 local communities
£51,000, poverty relief £4000, environment £1 000 prisoner
welfare £9,000 sports £30000, and army welfare £2 500.000

In addition, businesses throughout the group are encouraged to
play therr part in engaging with and helping to improve their local
communities In 2012 the group completed its second annual
measurement of its regional and country managed community
investment activity around the world These reviews have
helped understand the true level of G4S community investment,
identifying more than 360 community programmes across 60
countries suppertng health, education, welfare and development
of children and young people i those commurnities Further
detalls regarding community prograrmmes can be found in the
groups 2012 CSR report

The company and its subsidiaries have made no contributions
during the year to political parties carrying on activities, or to
candidates seeking election within the EU nor anywhere else
in the world

10 Substanuial holdings
The company had been noufied under DTR 5 of the following
interests in the ordinary capital of G4S plc

As at 31 12 2012
Irvesco 198,966 277 (14 10%)
Prudential plc group of comparies 89325538 (6 33%)
BlackRodk, Inc 70812109 (5029}
Harris Assocates LP 69 584044 (493%)

Legal & General Group ple 42320310 (3%)

Between | 1 2013 and 12 3 2013

tnvesco 212071075 (1503%)

11 Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit Ple, chartered accountants,
as audrior 10 the company and for their remuneration 1o be fixed
by the directors will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting

12 Directors

The directors, biographical details of whom are ¢ontained on
pages 54 1o 57, held office throughout the year with the exception
of John Connolly who was appointed to the board on 8 june 2012,
and Adam Crozier and Paul Spence who were both appointed to
the board on | January 2013 Alf Duch-Pedersen retired from the
beard on 7 June 2012
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Governance
Report of the directors continued

Mr Lerenius and Lord Condon have announced therr mtention to
retire from the board after the Annual General Meeting due to
take place on 6 June 2013

Tim Weller will join the board on | Aprilt 2013 An accountant

by traming Mr Weller joned KPMG in 1985 where he gained
significant experience of the energy sector before joining Granada
plc as director of financal control in 1997 Bapween 2002 and
2010 M- Weller held chsef financil officer (CFO) positions with
Innogy {cne of the UK's leading integrated energy companies at
the time) RWE Thames Water {the world's third largest water
and wastewater service company) and United Utihties Group PLC,
a UK-based water and wastewater service company He was CFO
of Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc between 201C and 2011 and
1s currently CFQ of Petrofac Limited, the FTSEICO international
oil and gas service provider and a non-executive director of BBC
Worldwide and the Carbon Trust

In accardance with the code provisions on re-election of directors
in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2010, each of the
directars continuing in office will offer themselves for re-efection
(or, n the case of John Connally Adam Crozer, Paul Spence

and Tim Weller, election) The board believes that the directors
standing for re-election possess expertence and experuse
relevant to the company's operations, that they continue to be
effective, that they are commutted to the success of the company,
and that they should be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting

Messrs Cannally, Crozier Spence and Weller have ar will have
been appointed to the board since the last Annual General
Meeting and so they would, in any event, be required to retire

in accordance with the company's articles of association Being
elgble they offer or will offer themselves for election The board
beleves that Mr Cannolly's extensive experience of working

in a global business environment and in secters of strategic
importance to group, Mr Crozier s wide-ranging experence

of business transformation In a number of public and private
sector organisations In the media logistics and retail sectors,

Mr Spence's in-depth knowledge of outsourang in both the

public and private sectors and extensive international experience
in key developing countries such as (ndia, China and Brazil, and

Mr Weller s broad knowledge of the energy and utilities sectors
together with hus experience of leading complex projects In strong
international businesses, will add significant value 1o the board and
therefare recommends that each of them is elected at the Annual
General Meeting

The contracts of service of the executive directors have no
unexpired term since they are not for a fixed term They are
terminable at 12 months notice None of the non-executive
directors has a contract of service
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The company has executed deeds of mdemnity for the benefit of
each of the directors in respect of habiliues which may attach to

thern i their capacity as directors of the cornpany These deeds are
qualfying third party indemnity provisions as defined by section 234 of
the Companies Act 2006 and have been in effect since 3 November
2006 for each of the directors cther than Ms Spottiswoode and Ms
Fek (whose indemnities have been in effect since 14 June 2010 and

| Ociober 2010 respecively), Mr Connolly (whose indemnity has
been in effect since 8 june 2012) and Messrs Spence and Crozier
(whose indemnities have been in effect since | January 2013) A deed
of ndemnity will be entered into with Mr Weller with effect from

his appointment as a drector on | April 2013 Copies of the forms

of ndemnity are available on the company’s website In addon,
indemnities have been granted by the company in favour of certain of
the drectors of certam of the group's subsidianies n Germany and the
MNetherlands. The company has mantained a directors and officers’
liability insurance polcy throughout the year under review

Details of directors’ interests (including their family's interests)
in the share capital of G4S plc and of the directors’ remuneration
are set out on pages 72 to 8l

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this
directors report canfirm that, 50 far as they are each aware, there
15 no relevant audit information of which the company s auditor 15
unaware and each director has taken all the steps that he or she
ought to have taken as a director to make him or herself aware of
any relevant audit nformation and to establish that the company's
auditar 1s aware of that mformanan

None of the directors had a material interest m any contract
significant to the business of the group during the financial year

By erder of the board

Peter David
Secretary
12 March 2013

The Manor

Mancr Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RHIO SUN




Corporate governance statement

“Ensuring that our businesses are governed effectively, with
strong controls, but without being constrained unnecessanly,
1s the challenge we set ourselves It 15 vital that we ensure
this philosophy operates throughout the group Creating
an effective board 1s part of that process and if the board
15 1o do 1ts job well it needs to reflect the diversity of the
organisation It governs, it must contnually refresh and renew
wtself through planned succession and it must measure its own
performance as well as momitoring the performance of the
group In line with these principles, a number of steps have
been taken Two non-executive directors are due 1o reure
after the company's Annual General Meeting on 6 June 2013
and the board has welcomed new members The committees
and their memberships have been reviewed and changes made
In addition, the Risk Committee has been made a full board
committee This report explains how the principles of the UK
Corporate Governance Code are applied as part of the way in
which we seek to achieve these aims ™

John Connolly, Chairman

Compliance with the UK Corporate

Governance Code

The board's statement on the company’s corporate governance
performance is based on the UK Corporate Governance Code published
in June 2010 ("the Code"") which 1s avallable on the Finanaal Reporting
Counals website (https iwww frc org uk/our-work/publications/
corporate-governance/the-uk-corporate-governance-code aspx)

The Listing Rules require companies to disclose how they apply
the Code s mamn principles and report how they have done so
The Code recognises that alternatives to fellowing its provisions
may be pstified in particular arcumstances «f good governance
can be achieved by other means prowided the reasons are
explained clearly and carefully In such cases, companies must
akso lllustrate how their actual practices are consistent with the
principle in question and contribute to good governance

The company complied throughcut the year under review with
the provisions of the Code This section of the report sets out
how the company has applied these provisions

Our governance framework

Image removed

The board sits at the top of the company's governance framework,
setung broad strategic targets. monitoning progress approving proposed
actions and ensuning appropriate controls are In place and effective

Management decisions, development of strategies and policies and
implementation of board deasions fzll to the executive committee

Regienal management teams have responsibility for businesses within
therr regions and are tasked wrth implementing policies and controls
at business levels as well as ensuring they meet agreed financial goals

The presence of a majortty of independent non-executive directors
on the board ensures objectivity chalienge and debate It s the
primary respensbikty of the board to prowide effective leadership
for the group and this 15 done by, amongst other things ensuring that
deciston making is conducted throughout the group within a strong
nternal control framework — and by setting values and standards

There 15 a detaled schedule of matters reserved to the board which
15 set out under |2 separate categories strategy and management,
structure and capital financizl reporting and controls, internal
controls contracts communication board membership and other
appointments, remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate
governance matters policies and other By way of example,
board approval s required for major investments, including the
acquistion or disposal of any business worth more than £5m,
entering into a sales contract where annual revenue 1s to be

more than £50m, any changes to the groups long-term objectives
and commercial strategy and the annual operating and capstal
expendiiure budgets

The board fulfils a number of its mast important functions through
its committees Deseriptions of the work of four of these committees
are set out elsewhere In this report
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Governance
Corporate governance statement continued

In addition the board has constituted a new Risk Committee
which reports to both the chief executive and to the board, has
nen-executive director representation and i1s chared by the
chairman of the board Its activities will be reported on in greater
detail in the company’s 2013 annuaf report

The terms of reference of the above committees are available on
the company’s website www g4s com

Board balance

Board composition

The board comprises the non-executive charman (John Connolly)
eight other non-executive directors, the chief executive (Nick Buckles),
the chief financial officer (Trevor Dighton) and the chief executive
for the Americas region (Grahame Gibson) The board considers
all the non-executive directors to be independent The senior
independent director is Lord Condon

The diractors bring a wide range of skills and experience to the board
This experience and therr roles onthe board is described in more
detail on pages 54 to 57

Succession

John Connclly succeeded Alf Duch-Pedersen as chairman on

8 June 2012 Adam Crozier and Paul Spence were appointed to
the board as non-executive drectors wath effect from | January
2013 Tim Weller who has a broad knowledge of the energy and
utiliies sectors together with his experience of leading complex
projects in strong internaticnal businesses, will join the board also
as a non-executive director, with effect from } Apri 2013 Tim

15 an accountant by training and was a partner at KPMG before
joining Granada plc as director of finanwal control Thereafter,
he held CFO positions with Innogy, RWE Thames Water United
Utiities Group PLC and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc He s
currently CFOC of Petrofac Limited, the FTSE {00 internationat oil
and gas service provider

Having completed nine years' service as non-executive directors,
Lord Condon and Bo Lerenius will retire from the board at

the conclusion of the company’s AGM in 2013, at which tme
Mark Ellott will take on the role of senior ndependent director
The board will then comprise three executive directors, the
non-executive chairman and six other independent non-
executive directors

The process for selecting the new chairman was conducted by
the Nomination Committee led by Lord Conden and assisted by
an external recruitment consultant (Zygos) Mr Duch-Pedersen
was not involved directly i the selection process for his successor
The process for selecting the three other new non-executive
directors was also conducted by the Nomination Committee
assisted by a different external recruitment consuftant (Spencer
Stuart) Mark Seligman, &s deputy chairman, was co-opted

onto the committee for the purposes of both exercses

Director re-election

The company's articles of association require that all continuing
directors are subject to election by shareholders at the next
Annual General Meeting following their appointment and that
they submit themiselves for re-election at least every three
years and that at least one-third of the directors not standing
for election for the first tme stand for re-election at each
Annual General Meeting However, In accordance with the Code
provision on re-election of directors, all the continuing directors
will stand for re-election at that meeting
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Conflicts of interest

Each of the directors has disclosed 10 the board any situations
which apply to them as a result of which they have or may have an
interest which conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the
company In accordance with the cempany’s artides of assocation,
the board has authorised such matters The affected directors
did not vote when their own positions were considered Where
the board deemed 1t appropriate, such authorisation was given
subject to certan conditions The board reviews such matters

on a regular basis

Board meetings, information flow, development
and induction
Meeting attendance in 2012

Scheduled Unscheduled
meetings meetngs
Executive directors
Nick Buckles (CEQ) 77 5/5
Trevor Dighton (CFO) 77 5/5
Grahame Gibson (COO) 77 3/5
Non-executive directors
Alf Duch-Pedersen (chairman) 414 /%
Jehn Connolly (chairman) 313 44
Mark Seligman (deputy chairman)  7/7 5/5
Lord Condon (senior
ndependent director) 717 5/5
Mark Elliott 77 515
Winrie Fok 7 4/5
Bo Lerenius 7 4/5
Clare Spottiswoode 7 575

Board meetings and information flow

Seven scheduled board meetings were held during the year ended
3| December 2012 and there were a further five additional full
board meetings These additional meetings were mostly called

at short notice and nt was not always possible for all directors to
attend Because of the aircumstances surrounding the Olympic
Games contract a number of other conference calls and meetings
were attended by many of the directers, albert such meetings did
not constitute full board meetings

One of the scheduled board meetings was an extended strategy
review session at which presentations on development and
implementation of the company’s strategy were made to the
board by senior executives and the board debated the company’s
strategy and business plans To further their understanding of
the group and their relationship with the operating businesses,
some nen-executive directors were able to attend meetings and
conferences held by various regions and business units, following
which they reported back to the board on matters of interest

Prior 1o each meeting, comprehensive board papers are crrculated
to the directors addressing not only the regular agenda items

on which the executives will report, but also details of any areas
requinng approval or deasions such as significant acquisticns or
important market issues



At each meeting, the board then receves reports from the
chairman, the chief executive, the chief financial officer and the
company secretary, an HR report which includes sumraries

of developments on HR and health and safety matters and an
mvestor relations report which includes analysts’ reviews and any
comments recerved from major shareholders since the previous
board meeting After meetings of the board committees, the
respective committee charmen report to the board on the
matters considered by each committee In addition each month the
board receves managerment accounts trading and financial updates
investor relations and HR reports

There are seven board meetings scheduled for the current year,
including a two-day board and strategy meeting

Induction and professional development

When new non-executive directors are recruted they have the
opportunity to spend time with the executive directors and other
semor executives t© understand the business (ts structure and
people as well as the company s strategy and financia! performance
In March 2013, Messrs Crozier, Spence and Weller met the Regional
CEQs who each presented an overview of their region This was
followed by a question and answer session also attended by the
chief executive officer and the chief financal officer

In addition the new directors are given the opportunity to visit
businesses, usually within a number of countries so they can

begin to understand the groups operations In January 2013, John
Connolly and Nick Buckles, visited the regional management team
i the Asia and Middle East Region in Hong Kong and Delhi before
attending the regional conference of the Middle East in Dubai

at which they met the regional and country management teams

In February 20!3 John Connelly Mark Ellett and Paul Spence
attended the North American regional management conference
in Miami Pricr to the conference, as part of his induction,

Mr Spence attended a session with the Americas regional
management team, who provided an overview of the businesses
in region as well as opportunities and challenges there

Meet:ng regionat and country staff continues throughout a
director s time on the board, as does continuing professional
development, usually In areas where the director has specific
committee responsibility

Risk management and internal control

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the groups
systern of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness
The system 1s designed to manage rather than ehminate the
risk of fallure to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against matersal
misstatement or loss

The risks associated with the group's activities are reviewed
regularly by the board, which assesses the group's risk appetite/
tolerance, censiders major risks and evaluates theirr impact on
the group Polcies and procedures, which are reviewed and
monrtored by the head of group internal audit, are in place to
deal wrth any matters which may be considered by the board
to present sigruficant exposure

The key features of the group’s risk management process, which
was In place throughout the year under review and, subject to
the changes to the Risk Committee described elsewhere in this
report since, are

A common risk management framework* 15 used to provide
a profile of those risks which may have an impact on the
achievernent of business objectives

Each significant risk ts documnented showing an overview of the
risk, how the risk 1s managed, and any improvement actions
Rask appetiteftolerance 1s consilered in the cortext of the net (after
controls and miigation) risk with a particular focus on High'” net nsks
To be categorised as "High” a risk must meet at least one of the
following critera,

— major impact on the achievement of the business strategy;
- serious damage t0 business reputation

— severe business disruption,

— impact of > 5% (£25m) on operating profit or assets

The nisk profiles ensure that internal audit rewiews of the adequacy
apphcation and effectiveness of risk management and internal
controls are targeted on the key risks

Risk management commitiees have been established at regional and
group level The regional committees rmeet at least annually and the
group committee met quarterly A standard agenda covenng risk
and cortrol issues 1s considered at each meeung and nsk profiles are
reviewed and updated at each meeting

Risk and control self-evaluation exercises are undertaken for
each operating cormpany for most companies at least twice a
year and updated risk profiles are prepared Similar exercises
are undertaken as part of the integration process for all major
acquisitions The resufts of the company risk evaluations are
assessed by the regional risk management committees*

The process, which is reviewed regularly by the board n accordance

with the internal control guidance for directors in the UK Corporate
Governance Code 1s carried out under the overall supervision of

the group risk committee This committee incluces alf the members

of the group executive In 2013, a new Risk Committee, which
reports to the board and the chief executive has been constituted

Both the divisionaf risk management committees and the group risk

committee recerve internal audit reports and regular reports on

risks They monitor the actions taken to manage risks

The internal control system includes clearly defined reporting lines
and authonsation procedures a comprehensive budgeting and

monthly reporting system and written polices and procedures
In addition to a wide range of internal audit reports, senior

management also receve assurance from other sources ncluding
secunity inspections, third party reviews, company financial
control reviews external audit reports, summaries of whistle-

blowmng activity, fraud reports and risk and control self-evaluations

The group has in place robust internal control and risk

management systems for financial reporting The group has a

single global consolidation system which 1s used for both internal

management reporting, budgeting and planning as well as external
reporting The group has a comprehensive budgeting process
with the budget being approved by the board Forecasts for the

year are reported at least quarterly Actual results at business

unit, region and group level are reported monthly and vanances

are reviewed A programme of business internat financial reviews s

performed by a finance team from erther region or group to check
the accuracy of financial reporting and compliance with the group

finance manual

*Because G45 Government Solutiens, Inc. ( ‘GSI”) s governed through a proxy agreement
under which the group s excluded from access to operational nformation, & 5 not subject to
the same rsk managerment process as 1s apphed to other group companies. The board has
however satisfied dself as to the adequacy of the internal control pr ocesses adopted by G5
wiich inchude a risk review by an externat advisor
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Governance
Corporate governance statement continued

The Audit Committee undertakes a high level review of risk
management and nternal control each year As well as the above
processes and sources of assurance the Audit Committee also
considers the following year end reporting in conducting this review

Summary of 2012 internal audit work including update on all open
audits with 2 deficient rating, analysis of resufts by region common audit
findings and areas identified for improvement in internal controls

.

Summary of 2012 Internal financial Reviews including
sigmificant accounting or finznoal control 1ssues and common
concerns identified

* Overview of year end financial control status reports completed
by all businesses confirming adherence to group standards with any
exceptions reported

A broad overview of the general nsk managerment and internal
control systems in place during the year

Year end group risk profile

External audit year end reporting on financiai controls
and accounting

The Audit Committee has confirmed that 1t 15 satisfied that the
group's risk management and internal control processes and
procedures are appropriate

The board has reviewed the group’s risk management and internal
control system for the year to 31 December 2012 by considering
reports from the Audit Committee and has taken account of
events since 31 December 2012
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Board performance review

In 2012, the performance of the board and its commitiees was
evaluated using a questionnare-based self assessment process
which was then interpreted and reported on by the external
consultancy {Lintstack) which conducted an externally faclitated
evaluation of the board and its committees’ performance in

2011 Reports generated by this process were considered by the
board the chairman and by each of the Audit, Remuneration,
Nemination and CSR committees

Following consideration of the reperts, the board has agreed a
set of primary objectives for its worlk n 2013 which will include

— effectively transitioning to the revised board membership,
— articulating clearly the company’s strategy,

— reviewing senior executive succession planning,

— building closer relationships with shareholders,

— spending more tme understanding the operations undertaken
by the group,and

— reviewing the approach to providng information to the board

In addition the reports considered the performance of the
chairman and each board member and were used to inform
the discussion about the chairman'’s performance which was
conducted by the senior independent director without the
chairman being present The chairman has also conducted
discussions with individual directors which, amongst other
things, allowed the chairman to review directors’ training
and deveicpment needs

The chairman also held meetings with the non-executive directors
without the executives being present

Relations with shareholders

The company actively seeks to engage with shareholders and
during 2012, serior management had extensive contact with
shareholders representing more than 63% of the share register
via more than 200 individual meetings and 100 telephone
conversations if index/passive fund shareholders are excluded
senior management had contact with more than 80% of the
share register in 2012 In May the chief executive chief financial
officer and regional CEOs presented to nstitutional investors at
the group's annuat Caprtal Markets Day which 1s video webcast
and available on the group website Addional results meetings
are held twice a year for the prelminary and half-yearly results
announcements and conference calls are arranged for the Interim
Management Statements

Upon taking up his position as chairman in June John

Connclly met with most of the company's major shareholders
Subsequently Mr Connolly maintained contact with those
shareholders during the Olympics contract 1ssues and following
the board review intc the Olympics contract

It 15 intended that all the directors will attend and be available
10 answer questions at, the Annual General Meeting which ts
an mportant oppertunity for communicaticn between the
board and shareholders, particularly private shareholders

At the Annual General Meeting, the meeting 1s informed of
the numbers of proxy votes cast and the same information

15 published subsequently on the company s website




Board committees

The Nominaton Committee

*This year proved to be a busy one for the Nominauon
Commuttee and there have been several changes to the board
| joined the board when | took over the role as chairman after
the AGM in June 2012 In light of the forthcoming retirements
of Lord Conden and Bo Lerenius after the AGM in 2013, the
commrttee inibated an extensive selection process to dentify
suitable candidates to both replace them and to ensure that
board membership represents the wide range of skills and
expertence it needs ”

-

John Connolly

Membership and meeting attendance mn 2012

Director Meetings attended
Alf Duch-Pedersen {former

chairmany 444
John Connolly (chairman) 3/3
Lord Condon 7
Mark Eliott W7

Mr Duch-Pedersen left the committee and Mr Connolly took
over as its chairman upon Mr Duch-Pedersen’s retirement and
Mr Connolly's appointment following the company s 2012 AGM
Since 24 January 2013, the membership of the committee has
changed and Adam Crozier has joined and Lord Condon has left

Role

The Neminaton Committee is responsible for making
recommendations on board appointments and on mantaining a
balance of skills and experience on the board and its committees
Succession planning for the board 1s a matter which 1s devolved
primarily to the Nomination Committee, although the
commuttee s deliberations are reported to and debated by the
full board The board itseff also regutarly reviews more general
succession planning for the senior management of the group

Key activities during 2012

The committee led the process by which the new chairman was
appointed by the board [t has also been responsible for the
process whereby three new non-executive directors have been
recruited in order t¢ refresh the board in readiness for the
retirement of Lord Condon and Bo Lerenius and to strengthen
the board generally in light of the findings of the Olympics
contract review conducted by the board

The board committee memberships of the non-executive directers
were evaluated and proposals for changes in 2013 were proposed
The changes have now been implemented and further detals

of these changes can be found in the relevant section relating to
each commstee

The Audit Committee

"The Audit Committee oversees financial reporung and the
effectiveness of financial and regulatory compliance, controls
and systems |t also manages the board’s relationship with

the group's external auditor, which includes agreeing ns fee
and assessing 1ts ndependence and effecuveness, as well as
discussing the nature and scope of the audit and reviewing the
external auditor's quality control procedures and steps taken
to respond to changes in regulatory and other requirements
The work of the committee supports key events n the group's
financial calendar and financial reportng cycle ln addian, the
committee moniters the effectiveness of che group’s internal
audit funcuon and reviews its material findings

Mark Seligman

Membership and meeting attendance in 2012

Director Meetings atzended
Mark Selgman (chairman) 4/4
Lord Condon 414
Winnie Fok 4/4
Bo Lerenus 3/4

Mr Seligman is the member of the Audit Committee with recent
and relevant financial experience Since 24 fanuary 2013 Adam
Crozier and Paul Spence have been members of the committee
and Lord Condon and Ms Fok have left Tim Weller will join

the committee when he is appointed to the beard on | April
and Mr Lerenws will leave upon his retirement following the
company’s 2013 Annual General Meeting

Audit Committee meetings are attended by representatives of
the group auditor, the chief financial officer the group financial
controller, the head of group internal audit and the company
secretary The chairman of the board will in future attend
meetings from time to time in agreement with the chairman of
the committee

Role

The committee considers the group’s annual and half-yearly
finanoal statements as well as mternm management statements
in certam arcumstances and any questions raised by the auditer
on the financial statements and financial systems It also reviews
amongst other matters, the groups financial reporting and
internal auditing processes whistle-blowing arrangements risk
management procedures and internal controls
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Governance
Corperate governance statement continued

External auditor

The Audit Commuttee recommended that the board should
re-appomnt the existing external auditor having reviewed its
performance of audit services for the company, reports on the
performance of the firm as a whole its independence given the
non-audrt services it provides te the group and its policy and
practice on audit partner rotation as well as the cost of its services
In accordance with that policy the lead audit partiner changed
during the year On 3| December 2011, Tony Cates completed
two years as audit lead partner and five years before that as a
key pariner, and so was succeeded by John Luke as lead partner
The committee will continue to keep the matter of the choice of
external auditor under review at regular intervals

So as to ensure that the independence of the audrt 15 not
compromised the Audit Committee mantains a policy on the
prowvsion by the external auditor of non-audtt services Besides its
formal audit function, the auditor 1s permitted to provide cansultaticn
and due diligence services related to mergers and acquisitions, audits
of employee benefit plans, reviews of internal accounting and control
palies and general advice on financial reporting standards Where
the fees for such services are significant, prior approval of the
committee 1s required The auditor 1s also prohibited from providing
other services without specific permission from the Audit Committes
The provision of any non-audit services by the audt firm must in any
event comply with the requirements in that regard of the Auditing
Practices Board

Particular areas of focus
* consideration of the financal iImpact and disclosure of 1ssues
relating to delivery of the Olympics contract

» review of {he treatment of other exceptional nems

consideration of the decisions to treat certain businesses as
discontinued, and thair presentation in the financial statements

agreeing the scope of the work for both the external auditor
and the group internal audit function including the linkage to the
principal nisks dentified for the group and materialty limits to
be applied

= review of the companys status as a going concern

= monrtoring of the implementation of enhanced business ethics
policies intended to ensure compliance with the UK Bribery Act
and other relevant legislation

+ consideration of and decision on how best to use the group’s
external audrtor to supplement the groups internal audrt team in
testing key financial controls

* recemng presentations on financial controls and sgnificant issues
from the finance directors for each of the group’s regions

* recewing a presentation from the group’s directer of
reconcihations dealing with the operational integrity of the cash
solutions businesses

* receving a presentation from the groups head of IT security

The auditor has written to the Audit Commuttee confirming that
IN 1S OpIrIon 1t 1s Independent
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The CSR Committee

“The CSR Committee, established in January 2011, aims to
ensure that corporate soaal responsibility is an integral
part of the group’s strategy and that the group continues to
have a positive iImpact on people and communities, whilst
contributing to a sustamable future for the business and
everyone connected to it 2012 was a busy year for the
committee, which oversaw the preparation and roll-out

of several iIniuauves ranging from human rights to road
safety Committee members also engaged with investors on
CSR 1ssues and hosted a meeung with socially responsible
investors to update them on the group’s corporate
responsibility programme "

Mark Elliott

Membership and meeting attendance m 2012

Director Meeting attendance
Mark Elliott {(chairman) 5/5
Winnie Fok 35
Bo Lerenius 445
Clare Spottiswoode 5/5

Paul Spence joined the committee on 24 January 2013 Following
the company’s 2013 AGM, Mr Lerenius will leave the committee
when he retires from the board and Mr Elliott will also leave the
committee Ms Spottiswoode will then become its chair

Rale

The CSR Committee s duties include reviewing and agreeing the
group’s CSR strategy, developing policies on various CSR related
matters for consideration by the board, reviewing the activiues

of the executives who are responsible far matters which are

CSR related and monitoring performance of the group aganst its
policies and any associated targets It also takes responsibility for
the company’s CSR report The company's separate CSR report
for 2012 prowvides more detall on the groups CSR strategy and the
progress it has made during the year A brief summary of some the
issues which that report addresses are set out on pages 48 to 52

Key activities during 2012

The CSR Committees first meeting as a full board committee was held
in January 2012 Ht has agreed with the board ts terms of reference and
influenced the tone and content of the company’s 2011 CSR Report

It has also smilarty reviewed the content of the company's 2012 CSR
Report In addition, duning the year the committee has overseen the
groups implementation of 1ts revised busmness ethics policy, approved

a human nghts pokcy and guidelines and examined the way the group
operates whistle-blowing hotlines and s working to mprove health and
safety for ts employees and particularty in relation to road safety With
regard to road safety a number of Intatives have taken place around
the group The CSR Committee reviewed the work of a new road
safety steering group, which was set up n 2012 Its aim 1s to produce
and disseminate basic road safety guidance to employees who operate
In those countries with the highest road inaident records The scherme
1 currently being piloted In a number of countries Other initiatives
indude speed kmrters and monitoring equipment being fitted on
company vehicles




Remunerauon Committee
Membership and meeting attendance 1n 2012

Director Meeting attendance
Lord Condon {chairman) 5/5
Mark Eliott 5/5
Mark Seligman 55
Clare Spottiswoode 55

The role and work of the Remuneration Committee 1s more fully
described in the Directors’ remuneration report which appears
on pages 72 to 8l

Risk Committee
Membership

Dhrector

John Connelly (chairman)

MNick Buckles

Trevor Dighton

Paul Spence

Tim Weller will become a member of the Risk Committee when
he joins the board on | Aprif 2013

Role

The Risk Committee will advise the beoard on the group’s overall
risk appetite, develop the group’s risk management strategy,
adwise the board on nisk exposures, review the level of risk
within the group and assess the effecuveness of the groups risk
managermernt systems

Key actuvities

Since the Risk Committee did not exist as a board commiitee
until 2013, its activities will be reported on in the company's
2013 report

By order of the board

Peter David
Secretary
12 March 2013
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report

at 31 December 2012

"The Remuneraton Committee needs to ensure that the
remuneration offered to the directors provides an adequate
Incentive to retain and motsvate them, partrcularly in the context
of the challenges posed by the macro-economic conditions
affecting many of the markets in which the group operates,
and that any payments which are made withstand reasonable
and appropriate scrutiny by the company's stakeholders

The Remuneration Committee 1s increasing its focus on hnking
incentives to strategic objectives to ensure that directors are
incentvised to deliver on business strategy This n¢reased focus
resulted in an amendment to the annual bonus scheme rules for
2013 to nclude non-financial strategic objectives

For the second consecutive year (and for the fourth time n

five years), the executive directors’ base salaries will be frozen
for 2013 The board has also agreed that the fees for the non-
executive directors will not be increased when they are next
reviewed n July 2013 In addition, the committee has decided
that no bonus would be payable in respect of 2012 However, m
order to ensure that the directors continue to be appropriately
incentivised and mouvated, the committee has increased the
potentual maximum value of LTIP awards for 2013

Although, the remunerauon policy for the executive directors
and the senior management team remains broadly in hne with
previous years, In the coming year, the committee will continue
to review the company’s remuneration policy to ensure that it
continues to help attract, retain and motivate the best people

This report provides details of the company’s remuneration
arrangements and outcomes for 2012 The report will be put to
the shareholders at the company’s Annual General Meeting on
6 June 2013 and we look forward to receiving your support™

Lord Condon
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

This report 1s prepared on behalf of and approved by the
board it

* sets out the actvities of the Remunerauon Committee in the
year under review

* sets out the companys remuneration policies for the current
financial year and subject to ongoing review, for subsequent
financial years, and

* detalls the remuneraticn of each of the directors

The report will be put to the company’s Annual General
Meeting for approval by the shareholders
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Remuneration Committee

The committee 15 responsible for setting all aspects of the
remuneration of the chairman, the executive directors and the
company secretary and for monitoring the level and structure
of remuneration for other senior management of the group It 1s
also responsible for the operation of the company's share plans
its terms of reference are availlable on the company's website
www g4s com

The committee met five times during the penod under review

The members of the commuttee, all of whom are considered

to be ndependent are Lord Condon (chairman)} Mark Elliott

Mark Seligman, Clare Spottiswoode and Winnie Fok Ms Fok was
appointed to the committee on 24 January 2013 Lord Condon will
retire from the board at the conclusion of the company's 2043 AGM
At that tirme Mr Hliott will become chairman of the committee

How the committee spent its ume

* Executive remuneraton

« Calibraung incentive levels and performance metrics
* Best practice update

» Oversight of other benefits including pension

= Oversight of remuneraton for senior management
* Other

During the year the commyttee receved advice from Towers
Watson Limited as the committee's apponted advisor on executive
and senior management remuneration matters Towers Watson has
also provided management remuneration nformation and pension
adwvisory services to the group during the period under review

The committee ensures that the nature and extert of these other
services does not to affect the advisor s independence Therr terms
of appointment are available on the company's website Inaddition,
Alithos Limited has been apponted by the committee to verfy the
calculation of certain elements of payments due under the company’s
performance share plan Alithos has not prowided any other services
to the company during the penod under review

Mick Buckles chief executive, provided guidance to the committee
on remuneration packages for senior executives within the group
Further guidance was recewed from the group's HR director,
Irene Cowden Neither Mr Buckles nor Mrs Cowden participated
in discussions regarding their own remuneration

As part of an effectiveriess review for the entire board, an
evaluation of the commuttee was also undertaken The review
concluded that the committee has operated efficiently but identified
a need 1o concentrate on linking incentives to strategic ohjectives




Remuneration policy

The policy for the remuneration of the executive directors and

the executive management team aims to achieve

* the ability to attract, retain and motivate high calibre executives

* a strong Iink between executive reward and the group’s performance
* algnment of the interests of the executives and the sharehelders,and

* provision of ncentive arrangements which focus approprately on bath
annual and longer-term performance

Interms of market positioring, the overall objective is to achieve
remuneration levels which provide a market competitive base
salary with the opportunity through the company's incentive
schemes to achieve earnings commensurate with the delvery

of superior performance A significant proporuon of total
remuneration 1s therefore refated to performance through
participation in bath short-term and long-term incentive schemes

In 2012 the mix of remuneration available to the executive
directors was as follows

On target performance - CEO %

Graph removed

Maximum for stretch target performance — CEO %

Graph rernoved

On target performance — all other executive directors %

Graph removed

Maxamum for stretch target performance - all other
executive directors %

Graph removed
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Governance
Directors' remuneration report continued

In 2013, the pay-mix at each of fixed, threshold and maximum
performance will be as follows

Nick Buckles

Grahame Gibson

Graph removed

Graph removed

Trevor Dighton

Graph removed
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The commuttee believes that the current balance between base pay,
annual bonus and long-term incentives 1s appropriate given its desire to
ensure a strong Iink between performance and remuneration whilst, at
the same time, avoiding a system which might incentrise inappropriate
risk-taking The commuttee 1s satisfied that the exising long-term
incemtrve scheme allied to the claw back processes described below
and mmimum shareholding requirements which were introduced In
2009 and 2010 respectively provide suitable controls and incentives
which are designed to avoid rewarding excessive risk-taking or
behaviour aimed at short term, unsustainable gains

The balance between long- and short-term incentives, and between
basic salary and performance-related bonuses 1s however kept under
close review

The commttee is also satisfied that the incentive structure for the
board does not raise environmental socal or governance risks by
inadvertently motivating irresponsible behaviour

Bonus payments do not form part of salary for pension purposes

The claw-back mechanism

Any payment under either the annual bonus or the performance
share plan (PSP} may be clawed back from the director
concerned If the commuttee so determines and, in the case of
misstatement of accounts, where the Audit Committee concurs
The time percd in which the claw back can be made depends on
the reason for the overpayment

Arnual Perfarmance
Donus scheme share plan
Misstatement of finangal accounts uptotwo years up 10 iwo years

after payment after vesting

Fraud or reckless behaviour uptotwoyears  upio SiX years
after payment after vesting

The amount to be clawed back directly from the executive will be the
overpaid amount after netting off taxes and social security deductions




Link between pay and performance

Payouts made in previous years under the annual bonus scheme
and long-term incentive plan have been in accordance with the
agreed measures YWhere there has been a payout under the
annual bonus scheme or long-term incentive plan, the commiitee
has not exercised any discretion to increase payments above
that to which the executives were entitled under the applicable
rules The committee reserves the rght to exerase discretion
to reduce payouts under these schemes if the measures

would resuit in a payout whnch does not reflect the company s
underfying performance

Pay for group executive committee

Number in band

Base Pay (£000) 2012 2011
201 =250 2 2
251 =300 3 3
301 -350 2 |
351 -400 0 2

The masximum bonus leve! for the member of the group executive
committee s 100% of base salary

Elements of remuneration

Elements of
remuneration Avalabilty
Fixed Base salaries Avalable 1o all
employees worlkdwide
Pensions Avallable to most employees
in developed markets
Variable Annual bonus Available to all senior
managers worldwide
Long-term incentve plan - Avalable to some senior
management worldwide
Benefits Car or car allowance Avadable 1o all senior

managers worldwide

Protection nsurance Avallable to most employees

in developed markets

Avalable to all serior
managers worldwide

Heafth care

{a) Base salary and benefits

The salaries of the executive directors are reviewed with effect
from | January each year Although interim salary reviews may be
carried out followng significant changes in responsibiity, no such
reviews have taken place The salaries take account of pay decisions
across the rest of the orgarisation and the results of a bespoke
benchmarking exerase based on a robust sample of similarly sized
companies by revenue and market caprtalisation with a significant part
of their business overseas The exercise also reflects responsibility,
mdradual performance and other market informaton supphed by
Towers Watson After base salares for the executive directors were
frazen in 2009 and 2010 1n 2011 the committee took steps to more
closely ahign basic pay to the company's stated remuneration pelicy
1e competrtive mid-market Notwithstanding the consistently strong
underlying performance of the group throughout the period, the
committee has decided to freeze base salares agan in 2013 (as it
didin 2012), in view of the economic arcumstances and the pay and
employment conditions across the group

(b} Performance-related bonus scheme

For the year under review, the executive directors participated

in an annual performance-related bonus scheme payments under
which were dependent on the attanment of defined PBTA (orofit
before tax and amortisation) targets of the group, adjusted for the
effect of any exceptional tems and discontinued operations and
using constant exchange rates The maximum bonus entitlement
for the executive directors 1s an amount equal to 125% of base
salary (150% in the case of the chief executive) For 2012, 60%

of maximum bonus entitlernent was payable on achievement of

the budgeted target andthe amount of bonus Increased on a
straight ine basis up to 100% of maximum bonus entitlement for
achievernent of a stretch profit target Any bonus due above 50%
of the ndividual's maxirnurm bonus entitlement would be awarded
as deferred shares which would not vest for three years For
achievement of a threshold level of profits which is at least 95% of
the budgeted profit target a bonus payment of 35% of maximum
bonus entitlement was due, with no bonus payable for performance
below threshold

The PBTA target used for the abave scheme 15 the same as

the company's budgeted PBTA for the corresponding period
{assuming constant exchange rates) The PBTA target allows for
adjustments in respect of any material, non-budgeted changes
which take place during the year, such as acquisitions disposals etc
Thus, for example, should a planned disposal not be completed
by the year end, the committee reserves the right to re-insert the
operating profit or loss for the business in question In the actual
and budgeted PBTA targets

The Remuneration Committee has decided that no benus s
payable to the executive directors in respect of the group's
performance in 2012

Percentage of maximum bonus enutlement

% of max bonus entitlernent 2010 201 2012
Threshold profit 35% 50% 35%
Targeted PBTA 60% 75% 60%
Stretch profit 100% 100% 100%
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Governance
Directors remuneration report continued

Although the committee believes that PBTA best reflects the
various key drivers of business success within the group, it feft it
could strengthen the alignment of the annual bonus scheme with
the business strategy by introduang a number of changes for 2013
These will be to include two other finanaial measures (organic
growth and cash generation) as well as profit and non-financal
strategic abjectives linked to the business plan The maximum bonus
entitlement remains unchanged, but the payout 15 dependent on the
achievemenrtt of the financial and non-financial objectives, which are
weighted 70% of maximum bonus entrilement in favour of financal
objectives and the remainder in favour of non-financial objectives
The maximum pay-out for financial targets will only be reached when
all stretch targets are achieved

Objectves Target Maamuem score
Firangal Organic growth  Budgeted % 20

Profit Budgeted profit 35

Cash generation  Cash conversion 15
Non-financal  Strategic Agreed milestones 15

execution from business plan

Targets applicable prior to March 2011

Two thirds of each award granted

Average annual growth in EPS
periog ending on 21 December
in the third year

Proporuon of allocation vesting

Less than UK RPI + 6% pa

Nl

UK RP! + 6% pa {18% over 3 years)

25%

UKRP + 610 (1% pa

Pro-rata between 25% and 100%

Greater than UK RPI + 1% pa
(33% over 3 years)

100%

Cne-third of each award granted

Ranking against the bespoke
comparator group by reference
to TSR

Proporuon of allocation vesting

Below median

Nl

Median

25%

Between median and upper quartle

Pro-rata between 25% and 100%

Upper quartle

100%

Organisation Agreed objectves Iinked 15
to organsation pecple

CSR risk, values etc.

Each of the measures operates independently {rom the others

(¢} Performance Share Plan (long-term incentive plan)

The Performance Share Plan { PSP"') was ntroduced in July 2004
and modified in 2007 Under the plan, the executive directors
and certan cther senior executives receive conditional allocations
of the company's shares which are released to them only on the
achuevernent of demanding performance targets The company's
current policy 1s to use market purchased shares to satisfy
performance share plan awards

The maximum annual award of shares payable under the plan

15 two-and-a-half times base salary The annual award approved
by the committee for the year under review is two times base
salary for the chief executive, one-and-a-half times base salary
for the other executive directars and one times salary for senior
executives below board level For 2013, the annual award will be
two-and-half-times base salary for the chief executive, two times
base salary for the other executive directors and cne-and-a-half
tmes base salary for senior executives below board level
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In respect of awards made from March 2011 onwards, the inflation
measure appled to £PS wil be globat CA1 weghted according to the groups
geographical revenue sources rather than UK RP, and the lower end of
the range will be plus 4% per annum rather than plus 6% per annum

Targets applicable for awards made in March 2011

Two-thirds of each award granted

Average annual growth in EPS
period ending on 31 December
i the third year

Proportion of allocation vesting

Less than global CPI + 4% pa

Nil

Giobal CP1 + 4% pa (12% over 3 years)

5%

Global CP1 + 410 1% pa

Pro-rata between 25% and 100%

Greater than global CPl + 11% pa
(33% over 3 years)

100%

One-third of each award granted

Ranking against the bespoke
comparator group by reference
to TSR

Proporton of allocation vestng

Below median

NIl

Median

25%

Between medan and upper quartle

Pra-rata between 25% and 100%

Upper quartile

100%




Targets applicable for awards made in March 2012

Half of each award granted

Awverage annual growth in EPS
perod ending on 31 December
in the third year Proportion of allocation vesting

Less than global CPI + 4% pa N

Global CP1 + 4% pa (129 over 3 yearsy 25%

Global CPl + 4 to 11% pa Pro-rata between 25% and 100%

Greater than global CP1 + 11% pa

(33% over 3 years) 100%

Half of each award granted

Ranking against the bespoke

cemparator group by reference

to TSR Proportion of allocation vesting

Below median N

Median 25%

Between median and upper quartile  Pro-rata between 25% and 100%

Upper quartile 100%

At this tme, the Remuneration Commuittee continues to believe
that a combination of earnings per share growth and total
shareholder return targets is the most appropriate performance
measure for the performance share plan, as it provides a
transparent method of assessing the company s performance,
both in terms of underlying financizl performance and returns
to shareholders Other measures such as Return On Invested
Capital were considered to be less appropriate for a service
company The committee will however continue to review the
operation of the long-term incentive plan and consider whether
further improvements can be made duning the course of 2013

In respect of awards made from 2012 cnwards the extent 1o which
allocations of shares under the plan vest will be determined, as to

half of the award, by the cornpany s normalised earnings per share
growth relative 1o the global CPl over a single three-year period and
half of the award, by the company s ranking by reference to TSR using
the bespoke global comparator group, again over a single three-year
penod See page 78 for the list of companies that, in addition to G45
make up the comparator group

Participants in the PSP will receive a further share award with a value
equivalent to the dividends which would have been pad in respect of
future PSP award vesting at the end of the performance period

There will only be a transfer of shares under the element of
the award attrbutable to TSR f the Remuneratien Committee
15 satisfied that the company s TSR performance 15 reflective

of the company s underlying performance

The company calculates whether the EPS performance targets
have been achieved by reference to the company s audited accounts
which provide an accessible and objective measure of the company s
earnings per share whilst TSR ranking will be determined by Towers
Watson whose findngs are venfied by Alithos

Awards will not normally vest where an employee ceases to be
employed within the group unless cessation of employment 1s due
to death, nyury, disability, redundancy retirement or following

a change of control, or sale outside the group, of his or her
employing company In these situations, vesting will occur in the
normal course and the performance targets will need to be
sausfied Only a proportion of the award, based on the tme which
has elapsed from the award date to the end of the last complete
month in which the employee was employed, will vest in these
crcumstances in most cases | he Remuneraton Committee does
however retain the ability to allow for a greater award to vest If
it considers it 1o be appropriate in excepticnal arcurmnstances

Share retention

The committee believes that continued sharehoiding by executive
directors will strengthen the alignment of their interests with
sharehelders interests Accerdingly, the current pohcy requires
executive directors 1o retain 50% of after-tax PSP vestings until 2
total shareholding equal to 100% of base salary (150% for the chief
executive) s achieved This policy has been extended to senior
management but the minimum shareholding is set at 2 lower fevel

Minumum Shareholdrgasal  Retention

shareholdng Value of shares held® 3| Decernber 2012 policy met?
MNick
Buckles 150% of salary £4699208  566% of salary Yes
Trevor
Drghton 100% of salary £3219306  631% of salary Yes
Grahame '
Gibson 100% of salary £1807517  287% of salary Yes

*Based on shareholding (excluding deferred shares) as a1 3! December 2012 and share price

of £2 565 as at that date
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Governance
Directors' remuneration report continued

Fees, service contracts and letters of appointment

The fees of the non-executive directors, which are set by the chairman and the executive directors, are subject to periodic review which takes into
account comparative fee levels in other groups of a smilar size and the antiopated time commitment. Their fees were not increased in 2012, the
previous increase having been made in July 2011 (5%) Mr Connolly was appointea as non-executive charman on 8 June 2012 and his fee was
agreed with effect from that date

The service contracts of those who served as executive directors during the period are dated as follows
MNick Buckles 2 June 2004

Trevor Dighton 2 June 2004

Grahame Gibson 6 December 2006

The service contracts are terminable on 12 months' notice by erther the company or by the executive dectors There are no kquidated
damages provisions for compensation payable upon early termination, but the company reserves the right to pay salary In heu of notice The
directors’ contracts do not provide for the payment of a guaranteed bonus in the event of termination It s the company's policy that it
should be able to terminate service contracts of executive directors on no more than 12 months' notice and that payments for termination
of contract are restncted 1o the value of salary and other contractual enutlements for the notice pericd The Remuneration Committee
would consider the application of mitigation obhigations in relation to any termination payments The committee is satisfred that the current
arrangements are appropriate and were in ine with best practice at the time the executive directors were appointed

The chairman and the other non-executive directors do not have service contracts but letters of appointment

Period of appontment as at

Date of appointmant Extended until 31 Dacember 212

lohn Connally 8 June 2012 {or 2 years f morths
Lord Condon 19 May 2004 AGM 203 Byears 7 months
Adam Crozer | January 2013 for 2 years -
Mark Elhott | Septernber 2004 31 August 2013 & years 4 mariths
Winnie Fok | Octaber 2010 | October 2014 2 years 3 months
Bo Lerenius 19 May 2004 AGM 2013 8 years 7 months
Mark Seligman | january 2006 31 December 2012 7 years
Paul Spence | January 2013 for 2 years -
Clare Spottiswoode {4 june 2010 13 June 2044 2 years 6 months

All continuing directors are required to stand for re-election by the shareholders at least once every three years, although they have
agreed to submst themselves for re-election annually in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

It I1s the company's policy that executive directors may each hold not more than one external non-executive appointment and may retain
any associated fees None of the executive directors currently holds an external non-executive appointment

Performance graph

The performance graph below shows the total cumulative shareholder return of the company over the five years o the end of
December 2012 based on a hypothetical shareholding worth £100, compared with the return achieved by the FTSE-100 constituent
companies over the same perniod The directors believe this to be an appropnate form of broad equity market ndex against which

to base a comparison given the size and geographic coverage of the company and the fact that the company is itself a member of the
FTSE 100 The graph also compares the company's performance over the same period with the bespoke group of companies which is
used now for comparative total shareholder return purposes in the company’s performance share plan The values attributable to the
bespoke comparator group companies have been weighted in accordance with the market caprtalisation of the companies calculated
at spot exchange rates as at each year end

The peer group currently** ncludes G45 and the following

companies
Atkns (WS)  Brambles Ind  Brinks Bunzl Captta
Compass Rexam Hays MITIE Prosegur
Rentokl Intal - Loorms* Securitas AR Serco Sodexo

* Loorms added n respect of awards made from March 201 | anwards
Graph removed

** Garda inchided in the comparators until 2012
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The following information has been audited

Base salaries and bonuses

Value of benefits Pzyment m heu Perforrmance
Salary and fees {excl pensions) of percion relatec bonu. 2012 Total 2011 Total®
Executive Directors £ £ £ £ £ £
MNick Buckles 830000 23,551 332000 - 1,185,551 1023920
Trevor Dighton 510000 31749 204000 - 745,749 697695
Graharme Gibson (see netes 2 & 3 below) 630286 37223 252 114 - 919,623 918,789
Semor
Ingependent Char of
Base fee Drrector Cemmittee Deputy Chair 2012 Total 2011 Total
Non-execuuve directars 8 £ [ £ £ [4
Alf Duch-Pedersen 126409 126409 280000
john Cornolly 195412 195412 -
Lord Condon 56800 10500 17550 84 850 124 600
Mark Eliott 56800 17550 74350 64225
Winnie Fok 56 BOC 56 800 55450
Therlef Krarup
{retired January 201F) - - 4508
Bo Lererus 56800 56800 55450
Mark Selgman 56800 17550 46 800 12150 82355
Clare Spottiswoode 56,800 56 800 55450
Total 3623494 3362442
Notes

| The 20! totals in the above table have been restated to include the payment m lieu of pension recewed by Nick Buckles from July
2011, by Trevor Dighton from April 2011 and by Grahame Gibson throughout the year

2 The company paid air fares amounting to US$40,608 for flights between the UK and the USA for Mr Gibson's wife and children
Thus sum € taxable in the USA and nat included in the figures above

3 Mr Gibson receives part of his salary in sterling and part in US$ The US$ element has been translated into sterling for the purposes
of s salary at the exchange rates prevaling in each month in which Mr Gibson was paid

The arnual base salar:es of the executive directors and the annual fees of the non-executive directors at 31 Decernber 2012 were

Executive directors

MNick Buckles £830000
Trevor Dighton £510000
Grahame Gibson £53,444 and USEII7 112

Non-exectitive directors

Jehn Connoliy {chairman) £348000
Lord Condon £84 850
Mark Ellett £74 350
Winnie Folc £56 80O
Bo Lereniss £56 800
Mark Seligman £121150
Clare Spotuswoode £56 800
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Governance
Directors remuneration report continued

Directors’ interests in Performance Share Plan

Shares awarded
Conditional shares conditonally an  Face value of 2012 Conditiona! ehares
Executsve directors helgat 31 12 1 1903 12 awards * 2009 awards heid at 31 1212
MNick Buckles 2059132 598996 2 umes salary (820032) 183809%
Trevor Dighton 958978 276043 15 times salary (383877) 851 144
Grahame Gibson 1036756 290084 | 5times salary {420298) 906 542

*Market price at date of award was 277 13p

The conditions subject 1o which allocations of conditional shares vest under this plan are described under () Performance Share Plan on

pages 76 and 77

During the year under review the performance share plan awarded in March 2009 vested in March 2012 The vesting percentage 15

14 403%, spit as follows

Critera Splt  Actual performance Vesting level
Earnings per share 23 253% 0%
Total shareholder I3 Between7th 4321%
retum and Bthina
groupof 15
other caompanies

The number of shares from the performance share plan that vested
in March 2012

Condional Addtional shares  Shares released

shares awarded Number of arising from before PAYE

in March 2009 shares vested dradends deductions

Nick Buckles 820032 18 1i2 nfa* na
Trevor Dighton 383877 55291 nfa* na
Grahame Gibson 420298 60,538 4858 65356

Market price at date of vesting (16 3 2012) was 276 3p

*Addtional shares arming from dividends since the date of the award will be added when the
shares are released

Drrectors’ interests in shares of G4S plc (unaudited)
Interests shown below exclude shares awarded conditionally under
the performance share plan as shown above

Executive directors Asat 31122012 Asat 31 122011
Nick Buckles Deferred shares* 370,568 252455
Shares 1,832,050 | 832050
Toral 2,202,618 2084 505
Trever Dighton Deferred shareg* 100,452 145 16}
Shares 1,255,080 1255050
Tota! 1 455,542 1400 251
Grahame Gibson Deferred shares® 67,869 150 527
Shares 704,685 706 509
Total 772,554 857036
John Connclly 100,000 -
Paul Condon 2,029 2029
Mark Efliott 25,000 25000
Winnie Fok 20,000 20000
Bo Lerenius 16,000 16000
Mark Seligman 75496 75496
Clare Spotuswoode - -

*The deferred shares are those granted and held in trust, induding those that have vested
but have not yet been released but do not inchude the further shares with a value equivalent
to the: dradends which would have been pad

There have been no changes in the executive directors’ holdings
since 31 December 2012

As at 3| December 2012 each of Nick Buckles, Trever Dighton and
Grahame Gibson also had a deemed interest in 7,589 853 ordinary
shares held in the G4S Employee Benefit Trust
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Directors’ pension entitlements
The exacuuve directors have ceased accruing pensions under the defined benefit scheme A salary supplement in lieu of pension at the rate
of 40% of basic salary 1s paid instead The dates from which the cessation of pensionable service took place are set out below

Date
MNick Buddes 5 Juty 2011
Trevor Dighton 6 Apnil 2011
Grahame Gibson 6 Apnl 2006

For death before retirement a capital sum equal to four times pensionable salary 1s payable together with a spouses pension of 50% of
the member's accrued pension plus a return of any contributions paid prior to the admission to the non-contrbutory category For death in
retirement a spouse’s pension of 50% of the member’s pre-commutation pension is payable

Pension entitlements and corresponding transfer values during the 12 months ended 31 December 2012 (all figures are in £'000s) are

shown below
Gross inarease Increase in acerued Total accrued Value of net Total change Transfer value of Transfer value of
n accrued pension net of pension at nCigdse naccrudl n transfer value accrued pension accrued pension
Executive directors pension nflation (CPI) 3212 cver period durg serod a3z at 32N
MNick Buckles 9 - 412 - 8I8 9523 8705
Trevor Dighton - - 128 - 158 3408 3250
Grahame Gibson - - 20 - 23 338 315

Notes

(1) Mr Buckles' accrued pension s still inked to salary but as the pensionable salary did not increase during the year his accrued pension
15 based on the deferred pension at the date he ceased accrual (5 July 201 1) increased 10 the year end i hne with an inflation index.

(1) In 2011 Mr Gibson transferred the majority of his benefits to a private pension arrangement leaving a residual preserved benefit

of £20k pa payable from age &0

{7} ™Mr Dughton 15 over the normal retirement age of 60 and hence, consistent with last years disdlosure the transfer value 1s caleulated
on the assumption that he retired at the end of the year

(v} Mr Dighton’s accrued pension represents that ameunt accrued to 6 April 2011 before the application of any later retirement factor

(v) Pension accruals shown are the amounts which would be paid annually on retirement

{v1) Transfer vatues have been calculated In accordance with the current transfer value basis adopted by the trustees of the G45S Pension

Scheme in May 201 |

Lt Eonden

Lord Condon

Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee

12 March 2013
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
annual report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with apphcable
law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent corpany financial statements for each financial year Under that law

they are required to prepare the group financial staternents in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and apphcable law and have elected
to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directars must not approve the financial statements unfess they are sausfied that they give a true and far view of the state
of affars of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that penod In preparing each of the group and parent company financial
statements the directors are required to

* select suttable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
= for the group financial statements state whether they have been prepared in accordance 'with IFRSs as adopted by the £U

» for the parent company financial statements state whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it (s inanpropriate 1o presume that the group and the parent company wilt
continue tn business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent companyss transacuons and
disclose with reasonable accur acy at any time the financial position of the par ent company and enable them to ensure that 1ts financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the zssets
of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other rregularities

Under applicable law and regulations the directors are also responsible for prepanng 2 directors report directors remuneration report and
corporate governance statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The director s are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and finanaal information included on the companys websiie
Legislation in the UK gover ming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Fach of the directors the names of whom are set out on pages 54 16 57 of this annual report wonfierm that 1o the best of his or her knowledge the
financial statements in this annual report have been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and give a true and fair view

af the assets liabifties, finanaial position and profit of the company and the group taken as a whele, and the directors report including the Business
Review on pages 8 1o 47, Includes a farr review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the group
taken as a whole together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face

The statemnent of directors responsibilities was approved by a duly authorised committee of the board of directors on 12 March 2013 and signed
onits behalf by Trevor Dighton chief financial officer

Trevor Dighton
Chuef financial officer
12 March 2013
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of G4S plc

We have audited the financial statements of G45 ple for the year ended 31 December 2012 set out on pages 84 to (41 The financal reparting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements 1s applicable law and International financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been apphied in the preparation of the parent company
financiat staternents 15 apphcable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce)

This report is made solely to the company s members as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companes Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent perrmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 10 anyone other than the
company and the company s members as a body for our audit work for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fulty in the Directors Responsibilities Staternent set out on page 82 the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they gve a true and fair viaw Our responsibility 15 10 audit and express an opmion on the financial
staternents in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Audiung (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audtt of financial statements 1s provided on the Financial Reporung Councils website at wwaw re orgukfauditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements
In Qur opiuan

« the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the state of the groups and of the parent companys affars as at 31 Decermnber 2012 and of the
groups profit for the year then ended

* the group financial statements have been proper y prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the ELU

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compamies Act 2006 and as regards the group financial
statements Article 4 of the JAS Regulation

Opmnion on other matters prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006

In our opihion

* the part of the Directors Remuneration Repart to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and

« the information given in the Directars Report for the financial year for which the financal statements are prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Ve have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 10 report to you if in our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company or returns adequate for our audnt have not been recerved from branches
nct visited by us or

* the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report 1o be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns or

= certan disclosures of directors remuneration specfied by law are not made or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review’

* the directors statement set out on page 89 n refation to gong concern

* the part of the Corporate Governance Staternent on pages 65 1o 71 refating 10 the cornpany’s cormphance with the nine provisions of the
UK Copperate Govermance Code specified for our review and

to shareholders by the board on directors’ remuneration

enior Statutory Auditor)

d on behalf of KPMG Audtt Plc, Statutory Auditor
rtered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

El45GL

12 March 2013
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 3| December 2012

2012 2012 2012 2011
Ex Olympscs Olympics Total Total
MNates im £m £m £m
Conunuing operatons
Revenue 56 7,297 204 7.501 6966
Prefit from operations before amorusation and impairment
of acquisition-related intangible assets and exceptional
1items (PBITA) 6 516 - 56 502
Amortisation and impairment of acquistion-related intangible assets (86} - (86} )]
Acquistion related experses 7 - 7 2
Exceptional tems:
- Net loss on Olympics contract - (70) (70) -
- Other costs on Olympics - {10 (1 -
- Sponsorship costs on Olympics - (7} (7) -
— Restructuring costs {45) - (45) -
— Aborted acousition and legal settlement costs - - - (55)
{45) (88) (133 (55)
Profic/{ioss) from operations before interest and taxauon (PBIT) 68 378 (88) 290 349
Finance income 12 94 - 94 1l
Finance costs 13 (206) (3) (209) (203)
Profit/(loss) before taxation (PBT) 266 l)) 175 257
Taxanon
— Before amortisation and impairment of acqguistion-related
intangible assets and exceptional nems (20) (92)
~ On amortisation of acquistion-related imtangible assets 25 25
- On acquistion-related expenses 2 1
— On exceptional tems 2 13
t4 (42) (53)
Profit after taxation 133 204
Loss from discontinued operations 7 (63) (6)
Profit for the year 70 198
Attributable to.
Equrty holders of the parent 48 181
Non-controling nterests 22 \7
Profit for the year 70 198
Earnings per share attrbutable to equity shareholders
of the parent 16
For profit from continung operations
Basic and diluted 79 133p
For profit from contnuing and discontinued operations
Basic and diluted 34p 2%
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 3| December 2012

2002 0N

Note tm fm
Prafit for the year 70 198
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations (95) (65)
Change in farr value of netinvestrment hedging financal instruments 4) -
Change in fair value of cash flow hedging financial instruments {6 8
Actuanal kosses on defined retrement benefit schemes (77 (73)
Tax on rtems taken directly to equity 14 37 9
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (245) (12n
Toral comprehensive Income for the year (175) 77
Antributable to
Equity holders of the parent (194) 62
Non-controling interests 19 15
Total comprehensive income for the year {175) 77
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Attnbutable to equity holders of the parent

Share Share Retained Other NCt Teral
capstal premum earnIgs reserves® Toual reserve reserves
£m £m im im £m

At | January 2011 353 258 420 546 1.577 46 1623
Total comprehensive income - - 110 (“8) 62 15 77
Dwdends dedared - - (H4) - (114) {10} (124)
Own shares purchased - - - (I3} (13) - (13
Gwn shares awarded - - 9 9 - - -
Transactions with non-controlling interests - - {19 - {15} ()] 20}
Equrty-settled transactions - - 1 - | - |
At 3| December 2011 353 258 389 494 | 494 50 1 544
At | January 2012 353 258 389 494 1494 S0 1 544
Total comprehensive income - - (126) (68) (194) ] {I75)
Dividends declared - - {120y - {1209 (18) (138)
Own shares pyrchased - - - &) (3] - 6)
Own shares awarded - - (2} 2 - - -
Transactions with non-cortrolling interests - - 2 - 2 4 6
At 3t December 2012 353 258 143 422 1,176 55 1,231

*See Note 318
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 3] December 2012

012 201
Notes &m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 19 2123 2205
Other acquisiucn-related intangible assets 19 204 269
Other irtangble assets 19 87 87
Property plant and equipment bl 512 531
Investment In associates 22 3 9
Trade and other recevables 25 129 162
Deferred tax assets 3% 179 157
& 3,237 3420
Current assets
Irvertones 3 128 123
Investments 4 56 70
Trade and other recevables 25 1,497 i 546
Cash and cash equwvalents 28 469 433
Assets dassfied as held for sale 27 29 35
2,379 2207
Total assets & 5616 5677
LIABILITIES
Current labilkties
Bank overdrafts 28 29 {17 (53)
Bank loans 29 {18) 7
Loan notes 29 (40) -
Obhgatians under finance leases 30 (18) (16)
Trade and other payables 31 {1.196) {1250
Current tax lzbilties (4n 48
Proviions 35 (32) (30)
Liabilities asscoated with assets classified as held for sale 27 (52) {(29)
(1,484} (1474)
Non-current habiliues
Bank loans pi] (327) (883)
Loan notes 29 (1,999 (1180)
Oblgations under finance leases 30 {43) (48)
Trade and other payables 31 (18) (19
Retirement benefit oblgatians 3 47 {344)
Provisions 5 (45) “1)
Deferred tax habinies 3 (68) 92)
(2.971) (2.605)
Total habilities 6 (4,385) (4083)
Net assets 1,231 I 544
EQUITY
Share caprtal 37 353 353
Share premium and reserves 38 823 [RE]
Equrty attributable to equrty holders of the parent LI76 1494
Men-controfling interests 55 50
Total equity 1,231 1544

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for 1ssue on 12 March 2013

re signed on 1§ beha\f
/ —T. —~ ﬁ(

They

Nick Buckles Trevor Dughton
Drrector Director
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Consolidated statement of cash flow
For the year ended 31 December 2012

012 2011
Notes £m £m
Profit before taxauon 175 257
Adjustments for
Finance income (94) mn
finance costs 209 203
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment 121 120
Amorusaton and imparment of acquisition-related intangble assets 86 96
Amortsation of other intang ble assets 24 17
Acquistion-related expenses 7 2
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-refated 3 (mn
Prafit on disposal of subsidiaries (2} (33)
Equrty-settled transactions - |
Operauing cash flow before movemenis in worlang caprtal 523 541
Increase In nvertaries (14) (20
frcrease in recervables n7) {123)
Increase In payables [ 77
Decrease In provisions {5) N
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations {37) 40)
Net cash flow from operaung activivies of conunuing operations 356 428
Net cash flow from operating acuvities of discontinued operations 16 2|
Cash generated by operatucns 372 449
Tax paid (85) (77)
Net cash flow from operating acuvines 287 372
Investing activinies
Interest recenved 6 17
Cash flow from assocates 3 4
Purchases of property plamt and equipment and inangible assets other than acquisitor-related (160) (Y73)
Proceeds on disposal of property plant and equipmerntt and
intangble assets cther than acquistion-related 23 31
Acquisiion of subsidianes (on (165)
Net cash balances acquired I5 6
Disposal of subsidiares 19 37
Sale of investments - 10
Net cash used in investing actvities {195) (233}
Financing activiues
Dindends paid to non-controlling inerests (19) {10y
Dmidends paid to equity shareholders of the parent (120) (4
Other net movernent in borrowings 324 239
Transactions with non-controlling interests 6 (18
Interest paid {17 {19y
Repayment of abligations under finance leases (22) (7
Own shares purchased {6) {i3)
Net cash flow fromf{used in) financing actvizies 46 52
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 39 138 87
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year 370 306
Effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (36) (23)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 28 472 370
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement

| General information

(45 plc1s a company incorporatad in the United Kingdemn under the Comparies Act 1985 The consclidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of tne company and entibies (its subsidiaries) controlled by the company {coliectvely comprising the group) and the group s
Interest in associates and jontly controlled entities made up to 31 December each year The group operates throughout the world and in a wide
range of functional currencies the most significant being the euro the US dollar and sterling The groupss financial staternents are presented in
sterling as the groups primary listing 15.n the UK The address of the 1 egistered office 1s given on page 150

In preparing the financial staterments this year the format and layout of certain disclosur es have been revised in regard to the princicles set out in
the Financial Repor ting Councal's publication Cutting Clutter These rewsions have been implemented to make the financial statements easier to
follow and to provide readers with 2 clearer understanding of the financial performance of the group

2 Statement of complance

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accorgance with International financal Reporting Standar ds adopted for
use n the European Union (adopted IFRSs) The company has elected to prepare tts parent company financal statements in accor dance with UK
Generally Accepied Accounting Practice (LIK GAAP) These are presented on pages 132 10 141

3 Significant accounting pohicies
(a) Basis of preparauon

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the going concern basis and using the historical cost basis except for
the revaluation of certain non-current assets and financial instruments The prinaipal accounting policies adopted are set cut below Judgements
made by the directors in the application of these accounting policies which have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment are discussed In note 4 The directors are confident that, after making enguiries and on the basis of current
financial projections and available facilties they have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to contmue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future Further information on the going concern assessment Is given in note 33 on pages 16 1o 119

The comparative income statement for the year ended 3| December 2011 has been re-presented for operations qualifying as discontinued
during the current year Revenue from continuing operations has been reduced by £556m and PBT has been decreased by £22m compared to
the figures published previously Further details of discontinued operations are presented within note 7 In addition the comparative consolidated
statement of financral position as at 3| December 201t has been restated to reflect the completion during 2012 of the imbial accounting in respect
of acquistions made during 2011 Adjustments made to the provisional calculation of the fair values of assets and llabilities acquired amount to
£9m with an equivalent increase in the reported value of goodwill The impact of these adjustrents on the net assets acquired 1s presented in
note 17 The prior year statement of changes In equity has been restated 1o show the movements wn the reserve for non-controlling nterests
The prior year cash flow statement has been restated to show own shas es purchased within financing activities rather than irvesting activities

(b) Basis of consohdation

Subsiciaries

Subsichar 1es are entities controlled by the group Control is achieved where the group has the power 1o gover n the financial and operating
policies of an investee entity 5o 25 to obtan benefits from its actwities determined erther by the groups ownership percentage, or by the terms
of any shareholder agreement

On acquistion the assets and labilities and contingent habities of the acquired business are measured at their farr values at the date of
acquisition The cost of acquisition 1s measured as the acquisition date far values of the assets transferred to the vendor and does not include
transaction costs Any excess of the cost of acquistion over the farr values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1 recognised as goodwill Any
deficiency in the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (12 discount on acquisition) 1s credited to the
income statement in the year of acquision

The cost of acquisiuon includes the present value of deferred and contingent consideration payable, ncluding that in respect af put eptions

held by nen-controlling sharehofders, as estmated at the date of acquisttion For acquisitions prior to | January 2010 subsequent changes ta the
present value of the estimate of contingent consideration and any difference upon final settlerment of such a lability are recogised as adjustrments
to the cost of acquisiion For acquisitions after | january 2010 such changes are recognised in the income statement with respect to contingent
consideration and in other comprehensive income with respect to put options Non-coniralling interests are stated at their proportion of the
far values of the assets and liabilities recognised Profits and losses are applied in the proportion of their respective ownership 1o the interast of
the parent and to the non-controling interest

The results of subsicharies acquired or disposed of during the year are ncluded i the consolidated inceme statement from the effectve date of
control or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate

Joirit ventures
A joint venture « a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject ta joint control in that
strategic financial and oper ating decisions reguire the unarimous consent of the parties

The groups interest in joint ventures is accounted for using the proportionate consohdation method, whereby the groups share of the results
and assets and labihives of a jontly-controlled entity 1s combined hine by line with similar iterns in the group s consclidated financial staternents
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies continued
(b) Basis of consolidauon continued

Associgtes
An associate 15 an entity over which the group 15 in a posiion to exerase significant influence but not controd or Joint ¢ontrol through participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

The results and assets and labilities of associates are incorporated in the groups consoldated financial staterments using the equity method of
accounting Investments in assocraies are carmed in the consolidated statement of financial posttion at cost as adjusted by post-acquistton changes in
the group’s share of the net assets of the associates less any imparment in the value of individual investments Losses of the associates in excess of
the group’s interest in those associates are not recogmsed

Transactions efimmated on consolidation
All intra-group transactions balances income and expenses are eliminated ¢n consolidation Where a group company transacts with a joint venture
or associate of the group profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group's nterest In the relevant jont veniure ot associate

{c) Foraign currencies

The financial statements of each of the groups businesses are prepared in the functional currency apphcable to that business Transactions n
currencies other than the functional currency are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance
sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on thai, date
MNon-monetary assets and labilities carred at fair value which are denominated in other currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined Non-monetary tems measured at historical cost denorminated in other currencies are not retranslated Gains
and losses ansing on retranslation are mchided m the ncome statement for the penod

On consohdation the assets and habilities of the groups overseas operations, ncluding goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on ther acquisition
are translated into sterhng at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and expenses are translated into sterling at the average
exchange rates for the period (unless this 15 not a reascnable approximation of the cumulative efiect of the rate prevading on the transaction

dates in which case iIncome and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions) Exchange differences arising are recogrised in other
comprehensive Income together with exchange differences arising on monetary tems that are in substance a part of the groups net investment in
foreign operations and on borrowings and other currency Instruments designated as hedges of such nvestments where and to the extent that the
nedges are deemed 10 be effective On disposal transiation differences are recogmsed n the imcome statement in the period in which the operaton
15 disposed of

(d) Denvauve financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with 1ts treasur y policy the group only holds or issues dernvative Tinancial nstruments 10 manage the groups exposur e to financal risk
not for trading purposes Such financial risk includes the inter est 11sk on the groups var able-rate borr owings the fan value risk on the groups fixed-
rate borrewings commodity rsk in relation to its diesel consumption and foreign exchange risk on transactions on the translation of the groups
results and on the translation of the groups net assets measured In foreign curvencies The group manages these msks through a range of dervative
financial mnstruments including interest rate swaps fixed rate agreements commadity swaps commodity options forward foreign exchange contracts
and currency swaps

Dervative financial nstruments are recognised in the consolidated siatement of finanaial position as financal assets or habilities at faur value

The gan or loss on re-measurement to far value (s recognised immediately n the ncome statement unless the dervatives qualify for hedge
accounting Where derivatives do quaify for hedge accounting, the treatment of any resultant gan or loss depends on the nature of the ntem being
hedged as described below

Fair value hedge
The change In the far value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged item 1s recognised immediately in the income
staterment

Cash flow and net irvestment hedges

The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging nstrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised n equity and
sybsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged cash flow or hedged net investment impacts the ncome siatement. The ineflective
parton of the far value of the hedging mstrument is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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3 Significant accounting policies continued
{e) intangible assecs

Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by the application of the acquisition methed Goadwill arising on consolidation represents the excess
of the cost of acquisition over the groups interest i the fair vatue of the identifiable assets and labilties and contingent habrlities of a subsidiary
associate or jointly-controlled entity at the date of acquistion No goadwill anses on the acquisiion of an additicnal interest from a non-controlling
interest in a subsidiary as this ts accounted for as an equity transaction Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
tested annually for imparment or more frequently if there are indications that amounts may be impaired On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or
jontly controlled entsty the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposa

Acquisition-related intangible assets

Intangible assets on acquistions that are either separable or arising from contractual mghts are recognised at far value at the date of acquistion

Such acguisiion-related intangible assets include trademarks, technology customer contracts and custormer refationships The fair value of acquisition-
related intangible assets 1s determined by reference to market prices of similar assets where such information 1s avallable or by the use of
appropriate valuation techniques including the royalty relief method and the excess earnings method

Acquistion-related intangible assets are amortised by equal annual Instalments over their expected economic ife The directors review acquisition-
related intangible assets on an ongoing basis and where appropriate, prowde for any imparment in value

The estimated useful lives are as follows

Trademarks and technology up to a maximum of five years
Customer contracts and customer relatronships up 1o a maximum of ten years

Other intangible assets

Development expendriure represents expenditure incurred in establishing new services and products of the group Such expenditure is recogrised
as an intangible asset only if the following can be demonstrated the expenditure creates an identfiable asset its cost can be measured reliably, it is
probable that 1t will generate future economic benefits rt 15 technically and commercially feasible and the group has sufficient resources to complete
development In all other instances the cost of such expenditure 1s taken directly to the income statement

Caprtalised development expenditure s amortsed over the penod during which the expenditure s expected o be revenue-produdng up to a
maximum of ten years The directors review the caprtalised development expenditure on an ongoing basis and, where appropriate provide for any
imparment. in value

Research expenditure is written off in the year in which 1t s incurred

Capitahsed computer software 15 stated at cost net of amartisation and any provision for impairment. Amortisation is charged on software 50 as
to write off the cost of the assets to ther esumated residual values by equal annual instalments over therr expected useful economic lives up to a
maximum of eight years

{f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any prowision for impairment Depreciation 1s provided on all
property plant and equipment other than freehold land Depreation s calculated so as to write off the cost of the assets to their estmated residual
values by equal annual instalments over their expected useful economic ives as follows

Freehold and Jong leasehold buitdings up to 50 years
Short leasehold buildings (under 50 years) over the life of the lease
Equipment and motor vehicles two to ten years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their expected useful economic lives or the term of the relevant lease

Where significant the residual values and the useful economic Iives of property. plant ang equipment are re-assessed annually

(g) Financial nstruments

Financial assots and financial habilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Trade recenables

Trade recewvables do not carry nterest and are stated inttially at therr farr value The carrying amount of trade recervables 1s reduced through the
use of a bad debt allowance account. The group provides for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that are past due in accordance with local
condrtions and past default experience

Service concession assets

Under the terms of a Private Finance Intiative (PFI) or sirular project the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset reman largely with the
purchaser of the associated services In such cases the groups interest i the asset s classified as a financial asset and included at its discountad value
within trade and other recewables to the extent to which the group has an uncondrtionat right to recerve cash from the grantor of the concession
for the construction of the asset To the extent that the group has the right to charge for the use of such an asset. conditiona! upen the extent of the
use the group recognises an intangible asset
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Significant accounting policies continued
(g} Financial instruments contmued

Current gsset investments
Current asset Investments comprise Investments 1n securities, which are classified as held-for-trading They are initially recogrised at cost including
transaction costs and subsequently measured at far value Gains and losses arising from changes 1n fair value are recogrised n the income statement

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
groups cash management are included as a compenent ¢f cash and cash eguivalents for the purpase of the cash flow statement

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing bank overdrafts loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds receved net of direct issue costs Finance charges
including prem:ums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are recognised in the iIncome statement on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method

Trade payables
Trade payables are not Interest-bearing and are stated inttially at far value

Equity nstruments
Equrty instruments ssued by the group are recorded at the value of proceeds receved net of direct (ssue costs

{(h) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents expenditure incurred in the ordinary course of busingss in
bringing nventones to their present condition and location and includes appropriate overheads Cast 1s calculated using erther the weighted average
or the first-in-first-out method Net reahsable value 15 based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion
and dispesal

(1) lmpairment

The carrying value of the groups assets with the exception of inventories and deferred tax assets 1s reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication
of impairment and if any such indication exists the assets recoverable amountt 15 estimated An impairment loss s recognised in the ncome
stalement whenever the carrying value of an asset or 1ts cash-generating unit exceeds s recoverable amount

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill s not reversed In respect of any other asset an mparment loss is reversed If there has been a change In
the estimates used to determine its recoverable amount The amount of the reversal 1s imrsted such that the assets carrying amount does not exceed
that which would have been determined (after depreciation and amortisation) if no impairment foss had been recognised

(1) Employee benefits

Retirement bensfit costs

Payments 10 defined contrbution schemes are chaiged as an expense as they fall due Payments made 10 state-managed 1 etrement benefit schemes
are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the groups obligations under the schemes are equivalent 1o those ansing In a
defined contr ibution rett ement benefits scheme

The retrement benefit obkgation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial posiion represents the present vakue of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost. reduced by the far value of scheme assets Any asset resutting from this calcutation 1s
imred 1o unrecogrised past service cost plus the present value of avalable refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme

The expecied finance income on assets and the finance cost on liabilties are recogmised in the Income statement as components of finance income
and finance cost respectively Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period inwhich they occur and presented outside the iIncome
statement In the statement of comprehensive Income

Share based payments

The group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certan employees The fair value of share-based payments s determined at the date of
grant and expensed, with a corresponding iIncrease in equity on a straight-ne basis over the vesung period based on the groups esuimate of the
shares that will eventually vest The arnount expensed 1s adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the estmate of the number of shares that
will eventually vest save for changes resutting from any market-related performance condrions

(k) Prowvisions

Provisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive obligation exists for a future liability in respect of a past event and where the amount
of the obligation can be estimated reliably

Where the time value of money s matenal provisions are stated at the present value of the expected expenditure using an appropriate
discount rate
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3 Significant accounting policies continued
{l) Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue represents amounts recenvable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business and 1s measured at the fair value of the
consideratuon recewved or recenvable net of discounts VAT and other sales related taxes Revenue for manned securtty and cash solutions products
and for recurring services in security systems products s recogmised to reflect the period in which the service 15 provided Revenue on security
systems installations 15 recogmised erther on completion in respect of product sales, or 1n accordance with the stage of completion method in respect
of construction contracts

Construction contracts

Where significant secur ity system installations with a contr act duration in excess of one month are accounted for as construction contr acts Where
the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated rehably, revenve and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date This 1s measured etther by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work to date bears to the
estimated totaf contract costs or by the proportion that sales value of work completed to date bears to the total sales value Variations in contract
work claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that it is Ikely that they will be agreed with the customer

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated rehiably contract revenue 1s recogrised 16 the extent of contract costs incurred
that are deemed likely to be recoverable Contract costs are recognised as expenses as they are incurred Where it 1s probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expecied loss s recogrised immediately as an expense

Construction contracts are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus profit recogrised to date less provision for
foreseeable lasses and less progress billings Balances are not offset

{m} Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs in respect of major outsourang contracts incurred after the point at which the group achieves preferred bidder status at which
point it 1s considered probable that the contract will be obtained are caprtalised and expensed over the life of the contract (subject to recoverability
criteria) Costs incurred pror to this paint are expensed as incurred Caprtalised costs are expensed immediately in the event that the bidder status
15 not followed by the award of the contract

(n) Interest

Interest ncome 1s accrued on a tme basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable This s the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected hfe of the financial assets net carrying amount Borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the income statement

(o) Profit from operations

Profit from operations s stated after the share of results of associates but befor e finance income and finance costs Exceptional items of particular
signvificance by quantum or nature including major 1estructuring costs and other one off tems are included within profit fiom oper ations but are
disclosed separately

{p) Income taxes

Tax 15 recognised in the Income statement except to the extent that it relates ta items recognised m equity in which case it 1s recogrised in equity
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because 1t excludes
rems of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes rtems that are never taxable or deductible
The groups hapility for current tax s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recaverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance
sheet hability methag Deferred tax labities are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the
exient that i is probable that taxable profits will be avalable aganst which deductible temporary differences can be unlised

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures except
where the group 15 aple to control the reversal of the temporary difference and t 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying amount of each deferred tax asset 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s measured based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

3 Signfficant accounting pohicies continued

(q) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transier substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other leases are classified as operating leases This classification can be a matter of fine judgement

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the nception of the lease at thewr far value orif [ower at the prasent vatue of the rminimum lease
payments The corresponding hiabiity to the lessor 1s included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance tease obligation Lease
payments made or receved are apportioned between finance charges or income and the reduction of the lease hability or asset so as to praduce

a constani rate of interest on the outstanding balance of the hability or asset

Rentals payable or recevable under operating leases are charged or credrited to ncome on a straight-ine basis over the lease term as are incentives
1o enter INto operating leases

(r) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
MNon-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value fess costs to sell

MNon-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale If ther carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use This condrtion 1s regarded as met only when the sate 15 highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for mmediate sale in its present condriton The group must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the groups business that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations
or 15 a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale that has been disposed of has been abandoned or meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale

(s) Dividend distribution

Dnidends are recognised as distributions to equity holders in the periogd in which they are paid or approved by the shareholders in general meeting

{t} Adopuion of new and revised accounung standards and interpretauons

A number of new standards amendments to standards and interpretations became effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 but none
of these had a material effect on the consohdated finanaal statements of the group The group has not adopted early any standard amendment
or nterpretation A number of new standards amendments to standards and interpretations have been announced but are not yet effectve for
the year ended 3| Decernber 2012 One of these amendments s 1o 1ASIS Employee Benefits The amendment makes changes to recognition
measurement and disclosure of defined benefit expense in particular requiring that the return on nvestment assets recognised in the income
statement be calculated at the same interest rate as that used for cakculating the finance cost on the abligations and to the disclosures of
employee benefits None of the new standards 5 expected 10 have a material effect on the consolidated finanaial statements of the group
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4 Accounting estimates, [udgements and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements n conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of the groups accounting policies which are described i note 3 with respect to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities at the
date of the financial statements the disciosure of contingent assets and habilites at the date of the financal statements and the reported amounts of
income and expenses during the reporting period These judgements estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the arcumstances including current and expected economic conditions and in some
cases actuarial techriques Although these jJudgements estimates and assocated assumptions are based on managements best knowledge of current
events and arcumstances the actual results may differ

Estmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate s revised and in any future periods affected

The pdgements estirmates and assumptions which are of mast significance to the group are detaled below

Valvavon of acquired businesses

The initial accounting for an acquisttion involves identifying and determining the fair values o be assigned to identfiable assets labilities and
contingent fhiabilities as well as the acquisition cost In some instances this Inftial accounting can only be determined provisionally by the end of

the period in which the acquiston 15 effected because the fair values andfor the cost 1s not known with $ull certainty in such an event the nwial
accounting can be completed using provisional values with any adjustments to those provisional values being completed wathin 12 months of the
acquistion date Addrtionally in determining the fair value of acquisttion-related intangible assets in the absence of market prices for similar assets
valuation techniques are applied These techniques use a variety of estimates inchuding projected future results and expected future cash flows,
discounted using the weighted average cost of caprtal relevant to the acquisition Furthermore management make an assessment of the useful
economic life of acquired intangible assets upon recognition Full details of the fair values of assets and habiliues of acquired businesses are presented
Innote 17

Assessment of the recoverable amounts in respect of assets tested for impairment

The group tests tangble and ntangble assets including goodwailk, for rmpairment on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indications that
amounts may be impared The impairment analysis for such assets s based prinopally upen discounted estimated future cash flows from the use
and eventual disposal of the assets Such an analysis iIncludes estmation of future resulis cash flows any annual growth rates and judgement as to the
appropriate discount rates The full methodology and results of the group's imparment testing 1s presented in note 19

Valuation of retirement benefit obligations

The valuation of defined retrement benefit schemes 1s arrived at using the advice of gualfied iIndependent actuaries who use the projected unit
credit method for determining the groups obligations This methodology requires the use of a variety of assumptions and estimates including the
appropriate discount rate the expected return on scheme assets mortality assumptions future service and earnungs increases of employses and
inflation Fult details of the groups retirement benefit ooligations including an analysis of the sensrivity of the calculabions to the key assumptions are
presented in note 34

5 Revenue
An analysis of the gioups revenue as defined by IASI8 15 as follows
2012 2011
MNotes m £m
Conunuing operauons
Sale of goods 154 218
Rendering of services 7126 6,524
Revenue from construction contracts 221 224
Revenue from continuing operations as presented in the consolidated income statement [ 7.501 6966
Discontinued operations
Sale of goods | 3
Rendering of services 535 676
Revenue from construction contracts 2 3
Revenue from discontinued operations 67 538 682
Cther operaung income
Interest income 12 18
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 82 93
Toral other operaung income 94 H
Total revenue as defined by 1AS18 8,133 7759
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

6 Operating segments

The group operates in two core product areas secure solutions and cash solutions which represent the groups reportable segments For each of
the reportable segments the groups CEO (the chief operating decision maker) reviews internal management reports on a regular basis The group
operates an a worldwide basis and derives a substantial proportion of its revenue PBITA and PBIT from each of the following gesgraphical regions
Europe (comprising the United Kingdom and Ireland and Continental Europe) North America, and Developing markets {comprising the Middle East
and Gulf States Latin America and the Catibbean Africa and Asia Pacific)

Segment information 15 presented below

Revenue by reportable segment

Conunuing Ousconunued Contwuumng DOscontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
2012 2012 2012 2011 201 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Secure solutions
UK and Irefand 1,516 - 1,516 1,252 - 1252
Centinental Europe 1,393 20 1,413 1475 2% 1,504
Europe 2,909 20 21929 272 25 2756
MNorth America 1,311 425 1,736 1,169 483 1652
Middle East and Gulf States 381 48 429 368 74 442
Latin America and the Caribbean 582 2 584 427 4 431
Africa 357 ! 358 346 3 34%
Agia Pacfic 671 25 696 635 22 657
Developing markets 1,991 76 2,067 | 776 103 1 879
Total Secure solutions 6,211 521 6,732 5672 615 6287
Cash solutions
Europe 780 14 794 817 &0 877
MNorth America 114 - 114 106 - 106
Developing markets 396 3 399 371 7 378
Total Cash solutions 1,290 7 1,307 1,294 67 I 36!
Total revenue 7,501 538 8,039 6966 682 7648
Revenue by geographical area
Total Total
080 2011
£m £m
UK and Ireland* 1,963 1708
Continental Europe 1,760 1925
Europe 3,723 3,633
North America 1,850 1758
Middie East and Gulf States 501 504
Latin America and the Caribbean 644 489
Adrica 479 474
Asia Pacfic 842 790
Developing markets 2,466 2257
Total revenue 8,039 7648
Revenue from internal and external customers by reportable segment
Total gross Total gross
segment Inter-segment External segrnent Inter segment External
revenue revenue revenue revenue revenue revenue
2012 2002 012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m &m fm £m £m
Secure solutions 6,737 (5} 6732 6296 &) 6287
Cash solutions 1,307 - 1,307 | 361 - } 361
Total revenue 8,044 {5) 8.039 7657 % 7648

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices

*UK ard Ireland revenue mcludes £1 851m relabng to the UK (2011 £1 591m)
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6 Operatng segments continued

PBITA by reportable segment
C g Cusc Contnuing Dscontnued
operauons operations Total ons operabons Total
2012 2052 2012 2011 2011 2011
&m fm £m £m im £m
Secure solutions
UK and Irefand 15 - 15 19 - 119
Continental Europe 75 “ 7 8i “) 77
Europe 190 e)] 186 200 @ 196
Narth Amerca 76 {1 75 72 ) 88
Middle East and Guif States 33 - 33 3l 6 37
Latin America and the Carbbean 51 - 51 37 (3) 34
Africa 29 - 29 33 | 34
Asia Pacfic 39 2 4| 35 2 37
Developing markets 152 2 154 136 6 112
Total Secure solutions 418 (3) 415 408 8 426
Cash solutions
Europe 78 n 77 88 % 79
North America 5 - 5 2 - 2
Developing markets 52 (3) 49 47 l 48
Total Cash solutions 135 (4} 31 137 (8) 129
Totat PEITA befor e head office costs 553 N 546 545 10 555
Head office costs (37) - (37) “43) - “3)
Total PBITA 516 N 509 502 10 512
PBITA by geographical area
Eurcpe 268 (5) 263 288 (13 275
North America 81 )] 80 74 16 %0
Developing markets 204 n 203 183 7 190
Total PBITA before head office costs 553 () 546 545 10 555
Head office costs (37) - (37) “3) - 43)
Total PBITA 516 7 509 502 10 512
Reconcihation to PBIT
Cantnung Duscontinued Cantinuing Dscontrued
operations operauens Tartal operations operauons Total
2012 1012 2012 pull 2011 201
im £m £m £m £m £m
Total PBITA 516 7 509 502 10 512
Arnortsation and impairment of acquisiion-
related intangible assets {86) 3) {89 (56) (3 (5%
Impairment of assets relating to disposal groups - (35) (35) - (6} )
Acquisiion-related costs (7) - (6] (2 - @
Exceptional tems {133) - (133) {53) - (55)
Total PBIT 250 (45) 245 349 | 350

Continuing PBIT as stated above s equal to PBIT as disclosed in the income statement Discontinued PBIT as stated above 1s analysed in note 7
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

6 Operating segments continued

Segment assets and habilities

The following information is analysed by reportable segment and by the geographical area in which the assets are located

2012 201
Total asses im Im
By reportable segment
Secure solutions 3,620 3632
Cash solutions 1,070 1,103
Head office 294 228
Inter-segment frading balarces 272 {73
Total segrment operating assets 4712 4810
Non-operating assets 904 817
Totat assets 56/6 5627
wn 2011
Total hiabikities £m £m
By reportable segment
Secure solutions (4.259) (1 245)
Cash solutions {212) (202)
Head office {76) (#6)
Inter-segment trading balances 72 173
Total segment operating habilities {1.275) (1320
MNon-operatng liabilites (3.110) (2763)
Total kabidiues {4,385) (4,083)
2012 200
MNon current operating assets im m
By geographical area
UK and Ireland* 1,195 | 231
Continerital Eurcpe 440 472
Europe 1,635 1,703
MNorth America 539 633
Middle East and Gulf States 54 56
Latin Amenca and the Carbbean 315 240
Africa 150 168
Asia Pacific 237 248
Daveloping markets 756 2
Head office 127 122
Total segrment non-current operating assets 3,057 370
Non-operating assets 274 263
Less. Non-current assets held for sale (94) {13)
Total non-current assets 3237 3420

*UK and Ireland non current operating assets incfude £1 158m of assets relating to the UK (2011 £1 206m)

Non-operating assets and habilities compnse finangial assets and habilities, taxation assets and labilrties and retirement benefit obligations

ncluded within operatng and non-cperating assets are £183m (2011 £33m}) and £46m (201 | £2m) respectively relating to disposal groups
classified as held for sale Included within operating and non-operating liabiliies are £36m (2011 £19m) and £16m (2011 £10m) respectively
refating to liabilties associated with disposal groups classified as held for sale Disposal groups are anatysed in note 27
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& Operating segments continued

Other informauon

Impairment Imparment
losses Depreciation Depreaaton

recognised and Capital recognised and Capntal
n income amortisauon addiuons n noome amortisation additions
2012 2002 2012 2011 201 2011
£m £m £m im £m m

By reportable segment
Secure solutions kN 151 192 13 145 257
Cash solutions - 85 84 6 89 86
Head office - 4 7 - | 9
Total 35 240 283 19 235 352
Capital Caprtal
addiuons additions
2012 2011
By geographucal area 20 £
UK and Ireland 59 101
Continental Europe 49 59
Europe 108 160
North America 17 27
Middle East and Guif States 5 4
Latn America and the Caribbean 108 13
Africa 16 13
Asia Pacific 22 26
Developing markets 151 156
Head office 7 9
Total 283 352

7 Discontinued operations

QOperations gualifying as discontinued in 2012 comprise the cash and secure solutions businesses in Pakistan which were disposed ¢f in October
2012 the electronic monitoring justice business In North America which was disposed of inApril 2312 and the US government solutions business
Following a strategic review the group decided to divest its US government solutions business to a parent able to add or create more value than

1t 1$ able to,being a foreign parent with Iimrted control over the business strategy and restricted access to the data required to run the business

successiully The sale 1s expected 1o complete during 2013

Operations qualifying as discontinued in 201 | comprised the cash and secure solutions businesses in Poland, which were disposed of in September

2012 the cash solutions business in Sweden, which was disposed of in February 2012 and the secure solutions business in Russia The UK Risk

Assessrnent business in Afghanistan was classified as held for sale n December 201§ however, upon the extension of a major contract it has been

reclassified as conunuing as at 31 December 2012

The results of the discontinued operations which have been included in the consolidated income statement are presented below

Wit 204

£m m

Revenue 538 682
Expenses (548) {675)
Imparment of assets {35) (6)

Operating loss before interest and taxation (PBIT) (45) ]
Net finance costs “ >
Attributable tax credit/(charge) 6 (2)
Total operating loss for the year (43) G
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations (20) -
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations {63) {&)

The effect of discontinued operations on segment results is disclosed in note 6

The imparment of assets in 2012 relates to the US government solutions business to bring Its net assets down to 1ts realisable value

The impairment of assets in 201 | relates 10 the sale of the Swedish cash business which was sold in 2012 for 1otal proceeds below the carrying value

of its assets
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

7 Duscontinued operations continued

Cash flows from discontinued operahons included in the consclidated cash flow statement are as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Net cash flows from operating actvives 16 b
Net cash flows from investing activities 5 (12)
Met cash flows from financing activities (3 (1
18 2
B Profit from operations before interest and taxation (PBIT)
The income statement can be analysed as follows
2012 012 2012 2011
Ex Olympics Olympics Total Total
Conunuing operations €m £m £m £m
Revenue 7,297 204 7,501 6966
Cost of sales (5.682) (274) {5,956) (5414
Gross profit 1,615 {70) 1,545 1552
Administration expenses (1,237) (18) (1,255) {1203)
PBIT 378 (88) 290 349

Included wrthin administration expenses in the current year 1s £86m of amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets £7m of acquisition-
related expenses and £45m of restructuring costs During 2012 the group undertook a detalled review of the overhead structure across all

reporting levels and geographies in order to maximise efficiency and elminate duplication Restructuring generated a headcount reduction of over
i 500 positicns

In February 2013 the group announced that it had agreed a financil settlement with the London Crganising Committee of the Olympic and
Paralympic Games in respect of the provision of the security workforce for the Londen 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games The terms of the
settlement meant that the group incurred an averall loss on the contract of appreximately £70m (recorded in cost of sales) plus additional costs

mainly relating to chartable donations and external fees of £11m and further sponsorship and marketing costs of £7m both of which are included
within administrative expenses

As explamed in the finanaial review on page 43 the £45 million of restructunng costs and the Olympics contract which made an £88 million
loss have both been treated as exceptional itemns and disclosed separately on the face of the income statement on the basis of their quantum
and ane off nature The graup considers the entire Olympes contract including all directly attributable costs to be exceptional as the scale and
complexity of the contract means it can be distinguished from the group s underlying operations

For 2011 the revenue and PBITA relating to the Qlympics contract s not sufficiently material to require separate disclosure

Included within administration expenses in the prior year 1s £83m of amorusation of acquisition-related intangible assets and a £13m goodwill
impairment charge relating to the group s businesses in Greece £2m of acquisition-related expenses and £55m of aborted acquisition and legal

costs The aborted acquisition costs include debt finance underwriting fees, financing and hedging costs that arose on the proposed acquisition of
IS5 A/S which was terminated on | Novemnber 2011

Revenue and expenses relating to discontinued operations are disclosed in note 7
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9 Profit from operations
Profit from continuing and discontinued operations has been arrived at after char gingf(crediting}

2012 201
tm im
Cost of sales
Cost of nventories recognised as an expense 20 101
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value - 2
Net loss on Olympics contract 70 -
Administration expenses
Acquisiuon-related expenses 7 2
Aborted acguisition costs - 55
Other costs on Olympics 5 -
Sponsorship costs on Olympics 7 -
Restructuring costs 45 -
Amortsation of acquistion-related intangible assets 89 86
Goodwill impairmenit - 13
Amortisation of other intangble assets 24 18
Impairment of goodwil and cther assets relating to disposal groups 35 é
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 127 131
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment and ntangible assets ather than acquistion-related (3) (n
Loss/(profit) an disposal of subsidianies 18 (33}
Impairment of trade recevables 28 13
Litigation settlements | 1
Research and development expendnure 5 6
Operating lease rentals payable 131 143
Operating sub-lease rentals recewable {14) (149
Government grants recerved as a contribution towards wage costs - (1)
10 Auditors’ remuneraticn
2012 2011
£m im
Fees payable to the company’s audrtor for the audit of the company’s annual report and accounts I |
Fees payable 1o the company's auditor and 1ts asscaates for other services
The audrt of the company s subsidiares pursuant to legslation 5 5

Corporate finance services

Fees payable 1o ather audrtors far the audit of the company s subsidianes pursuant to legslation

The Corporate Governance Statement on pages 65 to 7| outlines the compary s established policy for ensuring that audit ndependence 1s not

compromised through the provision by the company s auditor of other services
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

Il Scaff costs and employees

The average monthly number of employees in continuing and discontinued operations Including executive directors was

2012 201
Number Number

By reportable segment
Secure solutions 595,950 589673
Cash solutions 52,178 50078
Not allocated, nduding shared administration and head office 126 153
Total average number of employees 648,254 639904

8y geographical area
Europe 127,136 123,237
North America 59,062 55005
Developing markets 46) 930 461,509
Mot allecated including shared administration and head office 126 153
Total average number of employees 648,254 639904
Their aggregate remuneration, In continuing and discontinued operations comprised

2012 01
m fm
Wages and salaries 4,689 4404
Social security costs 552 553
Employee benefits 21 170
Total staff costs 5452 5127

Information on directors’ remuneration long-term incentive plans and pension contributions and entitlements is set out in the Directors
Remuneration Report on pages 72 to 1

12 Finance income

012 00
m £m
Interest ncome on cash, cash equivalents and investrments I 10
Other interest income I 8
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 82 93
Loss arsing fram change in fair value of der vative finanaal instruments hedging foan notes 6) 22
Gan ansing from fair value adjustment to the hedged loan note items 6 22
Total finance ncome 94 Il
I3 Finance costs
2012 2011
£m fm
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 35 32
Interest on loan notes 83 73
Interest recevable on loan note related dervatves (10) -
interest on obhgations under finance leases 4 4
Onher interest charges 7 4
Total group borrowing costs 19 13
Finance costs on defined retrement benefit obligations 90 20
Total finance costs 209 203

Included within interest on bank overdrafts and loans 15 a charge of £6m (2011 £9m) relaung o cash flow hedges that were transferred from equity
during the year
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14 Taxation

Conunumg Drscontinued Continuing Drscontinued
operatrons operations Torat operations operaTions Total
2012 2012 2012 200 2001 2018
£m im £m £m £m im
Current taxauon expensef{credit)
UK corporation tax 6 - 6 2 - 2
Overseas tax 72 (2} 70 76 3 79
Adjustments in respect of prior years'
UK corporation tax {3) - (3) (10} - (10
Owerseas tax { - ()] &) - 6}
Total current taxation expensef(credi) 74 @) 72 62 3 &5
Deferred taxauon credit {see note 36)
Current year {26) - (26) €] - 3
Adjustments in respect of prior years (6) 4 {10) {6} (N 7
Total deferred taxation credit (32 c) (36) )] n (10
Total income tax expense/{credrt) for the year 42 (6 36 53 2 55
UK torporation tax s calculated at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the period Overseas tax s calculated at the
corporation tax rates prevailing In the relevant jurisdictions
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows
2012 2011
im £m
Prefic before taxation
Continuing operations 175 257
Discontinued operations &% 4
Total profit before taxation 106 253
Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 26 67
Expenses that are not deductible n determining taxable profit g 6
Tax lesses not recognised inthe current year 8 2
Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in non-UK jursdictions 8 5
Mavernent in deferred tax balance due to reducton in UK rate to 23% from | April 2013 ()} 3
Adustments for previous years (14) 29
Total :ncome tax charge 36 55
Effective tax rate 34% 22%
The following taxation {credit)/charge has been recognised directly in equity within the statement of comprehensive income
2012 2011
im m
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive ncome
Change in far value of cash flow and ret investment hedging financial instruments {3) 2
Actuanial losses on defined retirement benefit schemes (32) (12)
Other 3 !
Total tax credited to other comprehensive income a3n 9
I5 Dividends
Pence DKK 2012 201
per share per share £m im
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders of the parent in the year
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2010 473 04082 - 66
[nterim dvidend for the six months ended 30 june 2011 342 02928 - 43
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 20# 1 511 04544 71 -
Irterim dividend for the six months ended 30 june 2012 342 03220 48 -
120 14
Proposed final dwidend for the year ended 31 December 2012 554 04730 78

The proposed final dividend 15 subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meetng If so approved it will be paid on 14 June 2013 10

shareholders who are on the UK register on 17 May 2013 The exchange rate used to translate it nto Danish krone 1s that at 12 March 2013

G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012 103

MRINIBAD)

MR DIB31RAG

FIUBWIIOY 3

2IUELLIBAOD)

SIUBLLIDTELS [BIDURUI4

UOTBULIONU J3DICYSBYS



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

|6 Earmings/{loss) per share attributable to equity shareholder of the parent

2012 2011
im fm

From continuing and disconunued operauons
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 48 181
Wesghted average number of ordinary shares (m) 1,403 1405
Earrungs per share from conunuing and discontinued operations (pence)
Basic and diluted 34p 129
From contunuing operations
Earmings
Profit for the year attnbutable 1o equity holders of the parent 48 181
Adustment to exclude loss for the year from discontinued operations (net of tax) (hcte 7) 63 6
Profit from continuing operations Hl 187
Ezrmings per share from conunuing operations (pence)
Basic and diluted 79 133p
From disconunued operauons
Loss per share frem discontinued operations {pence)}
Basic and diluted (45)p @hp
From adjusted earnings
Earrungs
Profit from continuing operanons Hl 187
Adustment to exclude net retrement benefit finance cost/(income) (net of tax} 6 2
Adjustment to exclude amortsaton and mpairment of acquistion-refated intangible assets {net of tax) 6l 7t
Adpstrment to exdude acquisiion-related expenses (net of tax} 5 I
Adpustment ta exclude excepuional iterms (pet of tax) 115 42
Adjusted profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 298 299
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares (m) 1,403 1405
Adjusted earnings per share (pence) 21 2p 213p

In the cpinion of the directors the earnings per share figure of most use to shareholders 15 that which s adjusted This figure better allows
the assessment of operational per formance the analysis of trends over tme the comparisan of different businesses and the projection of

future earnings

The denorminators used in all earnings/{loss) per share calculations are those disclosed in respect of continuing and discontinued operations
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17 Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions

The group undertook a number of business combinations in the current penod The principal acquistion N subsichary undertakings was the purchase of
a |60% interest inVanguarda Seguranga eVigilincia Ltda' Vanguarda  a securtty personnel, security systems and monitoring services provider in Brazil

A surmrmary of the prowvisional fair value of net assets acquired by geographical location 1s presented below

Deveioping Toral

Europe markets group

Im £m £m

Provisional fair value of net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 10 7 17
Goodwill | 75 76
Total purchase consideration 1 82 93

The following table sets out the provisional fair value to the group in respect of all acquistions made In the year

Fair vatue

4,3

Intangible assets 3

Property plant and equipment |
Trade and cther recevables 7
Cash and cash equivalents 7
Trade and other payables (22)
Provisions ]
Borrowings H))
Deferred tax habiriies 9
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 17
Goodwill 76
Total purchase consideration (paid in cash) 93

Within trade and other recetvables are gross contractual amounts recevable of £8m with £1m of the contractual cash flows from these recaivables
rct expected 1o be collected

Adustments made to identdiable assets and labiities on acquisition are to reflect their fair value These include the recognition of customer-related
intangible assets amounting to £3 Im The far values of net assets acquired are provisional and represent estimates following a preliminary valuation
exercise These estimates may be adjusted to reflect any development in the issues to which they relate

The goodwll arising on acquistions can be ascribed to the existence of a skilled active workforce developed expertise and processes and the
opportunities to obtain new contracts and develop the business None of these mest the criteria for recognmion as intangible assets separable from
goodwill No goodwill acquired in the vear 15 expected to be deductible for tax purposes

From their respective dates of acquisition the acquired businesses contributed £39m to revenues £4m to PBITA and £1m to profit for the part year
they were under the groups ownership If all acquisitions had occurred on | January 2012 group revenue would have been £7 537m PBITA would
have been £518m and profit for the year would have been £72m

Prior year acquisitons

Principal acquistions in subsidiary undertakings in the prior year included the purchase of a (00% interest in Interativa Service Ltda a facilities
management business in Brazil, Munt Centrale Holland BV a coin management service company based in the Netherlands and The Cotswold
Group Limited the UK s market leader in surveifance fraud analyucs inteligence and investigations services The group also atquired the offender
menitoring technology operations of Guidance Limrted and customer contracts from Chubb Greoup Securry Limited and completed the buyout
of 15 Turkish business during the year which was accounted for in equity
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

17 Acquisitions continued

Prior year acquisiuons continued

At 31 December 2011 the far value adustments made agamst net assets acquired were provisional The inrial accounting in respect of acquisitions
made during 201 | has since teen finalised The net assets acquired and goodwill ansing in respect of all acquistions made in the year are as follows

Far value
im
Intangible assets 7
Property plant and equipraent 7
Irventories 2
Trade and other recenvables 17
Cash and cash equivalents K]
Trade and other payables (36)
Current tax habilives ()
Provisions 4
Borrowings {5)
Deferred tax habiles (21)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 43
Goodwill 94
Total purchase consideration 137
Satisfied by
Cash 130
Contingert consideration 7
Total purchase consideration 137

Adjustments made to dentifiable assets and habilities on acquisition are to reflect their fair value These include the recognition of custemer-related
intangible assets amounting to £70m

On completon of the fan value exercise during 2012 adjustiments made to the prowsional calculation of identifiable assets and habilbuies
amaunted to £9m with an equivalent Increase in the reported value of goodwill The comparative consolidated statement of financial position

at 31 December 201} has been restated accordingly

In the year of acquisition n aggregate the acquired businesses contributed £28m to revenues, £4m to PBITA and £2m to profit for the part year
they were under the group’s ownership If all acquisttions had occurred on | January 201 1, group revenue would have been £7,038m PBITA would
have been £509m and prefit for the year would have been £200m

Post balance sheet acquisitions
No significant acquisiions have been eflected between the balance sheet date and the date that the financial statements were authonised for 1Ssue

18 Disposal of subsidiaries

In February 2012 the group disposed of its cash solutions business in Sweden

In April 2012 the group disposed of the electronic monitoring justice business In North America.
In September 2012 the group disposed of s businesses in Poland

In October 2042 the group disposed of s business in Pakistan

In December 2012 the group disposed of s security systems business in the Netherlands

In December 201 | the group disposed of s consumer alarms business in Norway

In December 201 1, the group sold its 50% share of the equity in STC (Mitton Keynes) Lid

The net assets and profit on disposal of operations disposed of were as follows

2012 1011
fm £m
Goodwli 10 -
Property plant and eguipment and mntangible assets other than acquisihon-related 18 1
Other non current assets - 9
Current assets 26 i3
Liabilties (17) %
Net assets of operations disposed 37 4
(Loss)profit on disposal (18) 33
Total consideration 19 37
Satsfied by
Cash receved 25 38
Drspesal costs (6} (n
Total consideration 19 37
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19 intangible assets

Acquisivon-redated intangible assets

Customer

Other

Goodwill Trademarks related Technology intangbles Toul
£m im fm £m m £m
2012
Cost
AL I January 2012 2,275 34 673 19 185 3,186
Acqusition of businesses 76 - 31 - - 197
Addrtrons - - - - 25 25
Disposals (5) n (2) (t2) (10} (30)
Reclassified as held for sale (88) - (14 - - (102)
Translation adjustments {73) - (13) () 1)} {88)
At 31 December 2012 2,185 33 675 6 199 3,098
Amorusauon and aceumulated
impairment losses
At | January 2012 (70) (28) 412) {17 (98) (625)
Amortisation charge - (3) (85) n (24) (113)
Disposals | 1 2 2 & 22
Reclassified as hekd for sale - - 1 - - 1
Transtation adjustments 7 - 9 | 4 21
At 31 December 2012 (62) (30) (475) (5) 1z (684)
Carrying amount
At | January 2012 2,205 261 2 87 2,561
At 3| December 2012 2,123 3 200 | 87 2414
201t
Cost
At ) January 204 2232 34 €08 18 154 3046
Acguisition of businesses 94 - 70 - | 165
Additions - - I - 35 36
Disposals - - - - 4 (C)]
Reclassified as held for sale (t5) - - - ()] {21}
Translation adpstrments (3¢ - (&) | 5 {38)
At 31 Decernber 2011 2275 34 673 19 185 3186
Amorusaton and accumulated
impairment losses

At | January 201 (73) 25 (335 (15) (83) (531
Amortisation charge - 3) 82) ()] (18} (104)
Impairment charge (13) - - - - (13
DCasposals - - - - 4
Reclassified as held for sale g - - - 15
Translation adjustments 7 - 5 (] (7) 4
At 31 December 2011 (70) (28) 412 {17 (98) 625
Carrying amount
At | january 2001 2159 9 273 3 7 2545
At 31 December 2011 2205 3 26| 2 87 2561

Customer-related intangibles comprise 1he contractual and other refationships with customers which meet the critera for identfication as intangible

assets In accordance with IFRS

Goodwill acquired = a business combination s zllocated to the cash-generating units (CGUs) which are expected to benefit from that business
combination The most significant component of goodwill was generated by the merger of the secunty services businesses of Group 4 Falck and

Securicor in 2004 which was accounted for as an acquision of Securicor by Group 4 Falck
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

19 Intangible assets continued

The group tests tangible and intangible assets including goodwill for impairmentt on an annual basis ar mare frequently if there are indications that
amounts may be imparred The annual impairment test 1s performed prior to the year end when the budgeting process Is finalised and revewed post
year end The group’s mpairment test compares the carrying value of each CGU 1o 1ts recoverable amount CGUs are identified on a country leve!
basis including significant business units as per the groups detalled management accounts Under IAS 36 Impairment of Assets an impairmertt

1s deemed 1o have occurred where the recoverable amount of a CGU 15 less than rts carrying value

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined by its value in use which 1s derwved from discounted cash flow calcufations These calculations
includle forecast pre-tax cash flows for a period of five years The five-year cash flow forecasts are based on the budget for the following year

{year one) and the business plans for years two and three the results of which are reviewed by the board, and projections for years four and five, all
of which reflect past experience as welfl as future expected market trends Budgeted and forecast cash flows are based on managements assessment
of current contract portfolio contract wins contract retention and price increases Cash flows beyond year three are projected up to year five at the
lower of the planned growth rate in year three and the forecast underlying economic growth rate for the ecanomies in which the CGU operates

Where the planned growth rate in year three exceeds the forecast underlying economic growth rate, the excess 1s reduced progressively in the
projections for years four and five The table below shows the year three growth rates for the groups significant CGUs Into-perpeturty growth rates
are derved from the expected year five growth rates taking into account the estmated long-term growth prospects of the relevant economic
market that the CGU operates in and generally range between 0% and 5%

Future cash flows are discounted at a pre-tax, weighted average cost of capral which for the businesses based in the UK 1s 7 1% (2011 6 1%) This
UK rate 1s used as a base for caleulating the rates across the group by adjusting for the different financial risks in each country in which the CGUs

operate Pre-tax cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rates derived from calculating the net present value of the post-tax cash flows

discounted at post-tax rates Risk-adjusted discount rates applicable to group entities range from 5 4% in Hong Kong to 71 1% 1n the Democratic

Republic of Congo The discount rates for the groups significant CGUs are disclosed in the table below

The following countries have significant carrying amourits of goodwill

Goodwill Goodwill

Dreount rate Drscountrate Year 3 growth rate®  Year 3 growth rate* 2012 2001

2012 201 2012 201 im £m

United Kingdom 71% 6 1% 28% 41% 706 694
Urited States of America 74% 6£0% 52% 472% 395 415
Brazil 14 8% 187% 87% 87% 157 88
Netherlands 70% 60% 36% 35% 146 149
Canada 6 9% 6 14% 28% 44% 51 53
Hong Kong 54% 49% 73% 74% 39 4
Malaysia 86% 92% 75% 75% 4 44
Estonia 74% 74% 36% 50% 6l &3
Israel 9 4% 94% 20% 13% 34 35
South Africa 14 0% 143% 0% 84% 36 40
Crther (all allocated) 455 583
Total gocdwil 2,123 2205

*Lower of country growth rate per IMF and imphed year three business forecast growth rate

Within the UK the most significant CGUs and their goodwill carrying values are UK Care and Justice (£247m) LUK Cash Solutions (£205m) and

UK Secure Solutions {£102m) Within the US the most significant CGU s US Commeraal Security Solutions with goodwill of £283m

The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow calculations refate to the discount rates used The underlying economic growth rates da not
have a material effect on the calculations of the discounted cash flow With all other variables being equal,a 1% ncrease applied to all group CGUs

{e g increasing the base UK discount rate from 7 1% to 8 1 %) would result n a goodwill impairment to the group of approximately £10m A significant
increase of 3% apphed tc all group CGUs (e g increasing the base UK discount rate from 7 1% to 10 %) would result in a group impairment of
approximately £35m of which £20m relates to Brazil

In applying the groups modet in 201 | the group impaired the goodwill refating to ts businesses in Greece by £13m The challenging economic
aircumstances i the country had resulted in a discount rate of | 6% being applied to the relevant cash flows The remaining goodwili relating to
Greece 15 £14m and given the ongeing economic and poiitical uncertainty in the country there remains a risi of further impairment However
during the current year there has been no further deterioration in the countrys outlook and therefore no further imparment has been required
No mparrment has been identified and recogrised in any of the groups other CGUs for the year ended 3 | December 2012 or for the year ended

31 December 201 | Management believe that there 1s currently no reasonably possible change in the underlying factors used in the impairment
model for ts CGUs which would lead to a material impairment of goodwill
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20 Property plant and equipment

Land and £quipmentand
buildings vehicles Toral
£m im im
012
Cost
At | January 2012 222 1,012 1,234
Acquistion of businesses - | i
Addrions 24 126 150
Disposals (3 (89) (92)
Reclassified as held for sale (3} (15) (7
Translation adjustments ()] {52) (53
At 3| December 2012 240 983 1,223
Depreciatuon and accumulated
impairment losses
At | January 2012 (67} {636) (703)
Deprecation charge (15 (12 (127}
Drsposals 4 65 69
Redlassified as held for sale | 10 I
Transiation adjustments \ - 39 39
At 31 December 2012 {77 (634) {71
Carrying amount
At} January 2012 155 376 53
Ac 3| December 2012 163 349 512
2011
Cast
At | January 201 223 1025 1248
Acquisiion of businesses | [ 7
Addrions 16 (28 144
Disposals €] 573 (108}
Redlassification - (21} (21}
Reclassified as held for sate ()] 25 27)
Translation adjustments 3 (8 (1n
At 3| December 2011 222 1012 1234
Depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses

AL | January 2011 (6l) 611 672)
Depreacation charge {16} (115) (131
Cisposals 6 80 86
Reclassification - 3 3
Reclassfied as held for sale 2 15 17
Translation adjustments 2 8 &
At 3| December 2011 (67) (636) (703)
Carrying amount
At | January 2011 162 414 576
At 31 December 2011 t55 376 531

During the prior year management recfassified certan short-hfe assets such as consumables from within the equipment and vehicles category te

Inventory to more accurately refiect ther usage

The net book value of equipment and vehicles held under finance leases was £57m (2011 £50m) Accumulated deprecianon on these assets was

£116m (2011 £104m) and the depreciation charge for the year was £19m (2011 £15m}

The rights over finance teased assets are effectively securtty for lease labiditries These rights revert o the lessor in the event of default
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Notes to the conselidated financial statements continued

20 Property plant and equipment continued

The net book value of equipment and vehicles includes £34m (201 | £36m) of assets leased by the group to third parttes under operating leases
Accumulated depreciation on these assets was £91m (201 | £88m) and the depreciatron charge for the year was £9m (2011 £11m)

The net book value of land and bulldings comprises of freeholds of £7fm (2011 £66m) long leaseholds of £20m (2011 £19m) and short leaseholds
of £72m (201 | £70m)

21 Investment In joint ventures

At the year end the group owned 59% of the equity of Bndgend Custodial Services Ltd The group jointly shares operationat and financial control
over the operations and 1s therefore entitled to a proportionate share of tts results which are consclidated on the basis of the equity shares held
The groups correctional faciiies in South Africa are under a similar arrangement other than that the groups holding 1s 20%

During 2011, the group sold its 50% share of the equity in STC (Milton Keynes) Lid Up untl the date of disposal ris results were also consolidated
on the basis of equity shares held

The results of each of the jointly controlled operations are prepared in accordance with group accouniting policies Amounts proportionately
consohdated inta the groups financizl staterments are as follows

012 201
Results £m £m
Revenue 36 44
Expenses (32) )
Profit after tax 4 3

Wiz Pl
Balance sheet &m £m
Assets
Non-current assets i6 22
Current assets 6 7
Liabilities
Current labilities (10) (10)
Non-current kabilities (7) (14)
Net assets 5 5

22 Investment In assoclates

The net investment in assodates at 31 December 2012 15 £3m and relates to a non-trading entity in Australia As at 31 December 201 | the net
investment of £9m also included Space Gateway Support LLC and MW-AII Star, both in the USA These associates are undertakings of the US
Government Sclutons business and have been discontinued and reclassified as held for sale during 2012 In total the two asscoates recorded
tevenue of £39m (2011 £60m) and profit of £2m {2011 £3m) for the year ended 3| December 2012

23 Inventories

£m im
Raw materials 16 16
Work in progress 16 13
Finished goods including consumables 9% 94
Total inventories 128 123

24 Investments

Irvestments comprise primarily listed securities of £40m (2011 £44m) held by the groups wholly-owned captive insurance subsidianes stated
at therr far values based on quoted market prices Use of these investments is restricted to the settlement of claims against the group’s captive
insurance subsidiaries
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25 Trade and other receivables

1012 201
im im

Within current assets
Trade debtors 1,234 1,286
Allowance for doubtful debts (46) (67)
Amounts owed by assocated undertakings 2 2
Orther debtors (ncluding tax recevable) 171 180
Prepaymenits and accrued income 88 103
Amourts due from construction contract customers (see note 26) 2 28
Dervative financial instruments at fair value (see note 32) 26 14
Total trade and other recewables induded within current assets 1,497 | 546
Within non-current assets
Derwvative financial nstruments at fair value (see note 32) 8l 106
Other debtors* 48 56
Total trade and other receivables included within non-current assets 129 162

*Other debtors includes amounts recevable under service concession arrangements of £13m (2011 £19m) which are pledged as security against borrowings of the group

Credit risk on trade receivables

There 15 imrted concentration of credit nisk with respect 10 trade recevables as the groups customers are both large in number and dispersed
geographically in over 120 countries The groups largest custormner s the UK Government which represents approximately 10% (2011 5%) of the
total trade debtor balance as at 31 December 2012 Group companies are required to follow the Group Finance Manual guidelines with respect

1o assessing the credit worthiness of potential customers These guidelines include processes such as obtaining approval for credit limits over a set
amount performing credrt checks and assessments and obtaining addrional secunity where required

Credit terms vary across the group and can range from O to 90 days to reflect the different risks wathin each country n which the group operates
There 15 no group-wide rate of provision, and prowvision 15 made for debits that are past due according to local condrtions and past default experience

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debis s as follows

2012 2011

im £m
At | January (67) (73}
Amaounts wr itten off during the year 28 13
Increase in allowance 7) ]
At 3] December {46) (67}

The ageing of trade debtors net of allowance for doubtful debt 1s as follows

2012 2011

im m

Not yet due 88l 846
1-30 days overdue 161 185
30-6( days overdue 70 70
60-90 days overdue 29 37
91-180 days overdue 26 30
181365 days overdue 7 30

Ower 385 days overdue 14 2|
Net trade debtors 1,188 1219

No provision has been made on the above amounts as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the group believes that the

amounts are still recoverable The group does not hold any collateral over these bafances The proportion of trade debtors at 31 December 20172

that were overdue for payment was 319 (2011 34%) The group-wide average age of all trade debtors at year end was 60 days (2011 5% days)

The groups monthly management accounts use the last three months sales of the year to calculate management trade debtor days Using this

calculation the group-wide average age of trade debtors s 50 days (201 | 49 days at constant exchange rates)

The directors believe the far value of trade and other receivables being the present value of future cash flows approxmates 1o therr book value

Included within' not yet due 15 £75m relating to the Olympics contract settlement
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Notes to the consolhdated financial statements continued

26 Construction contracts

Contracts in place at the balance sheet date are as follows

2012 211

£m £m

Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other recenvables {see note 25) 2 28
Amounts due to contract customers incuded in trade and other payables (see note 31) (2) (=)
Net balances relating to construction contracts 20 23
Contract costs incurred plus recogrised profits less recogmised losses to date 3N 320
Less Progress billings (291) (297)
Net balances relating to construction contracts 20 23

At 31 December 2012 advances recerved from customers for contract work amounted to £4m (2011 £5m} There were no retentions held by
customers for contract work at etther balance sheet date All trade and other recewables arising from construction contracts are due for settlement
within one year

27 Duisposal groups classified as held for sale

At 31 Decernber 2012 disposal groups classified as held for sale comprised primarity the assets and labilities associated with the ¢lassified
Gevernment Solutions business in the United States of America which have been subjected to a £35m mparrment charge 1o goodwill to write
down their assets to therr estimated recoverable value

At 31 December 201 | disposal groups classified as held for sale comprised primarily the assets and habilitres associated with the cash solutions
business in Sweden which was disposed of on 27 February 2012 the cash and secure solutions businesses in Poland which was disposed of on
4 September 2012 and the UK Risk Assessment Services business in Afghanistan which has now been reclassified as continuing following the
extension of a major contract

The major classes of assets and hiabilities comprising the operations dassified as held for sale are as follows

2012 2011
im m

ASSETS
Gaoodwill 53 6
Acauisiion-related intangbles 3 -
Property plant and equipment and intangble assets cther than acquisttion-related 3 10
Investment in associates 5 -
Trading Investrnents 1 -
Trade and other recevables 116 17
Deferred tax asset IS -
Cash and cash equnvalents 20 2
Toral assets classified as held for sale 229 35
UIABILITIES
Bank overdrafis - (12)
Bank loans ()] -
Trade and other payables (36) ()
Current tax labiles - 2
Retirement benefit obkgations {13) -
Deferred tax habyity 2 -
Total habihties associated with assets classified as held for sale {52) 2%
Net assets of disposal group 177 6
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28 Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts

A reconcihation of cash and cash equivalents reported within the consohdated cash flow staternent to amounts reported within the consolidated

statement of financal postion 1s presented below

2012 2011
im £m
Cash and cash equwalents 469 433
Bank overdrafts (17} (53)
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts included within disposal groups classified as held for sale 20 (10)
Total cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 472 370

Cash and cash equivalents comprise principally short-term money market deposts, current account balances and group-owned cash held in ATM
machines and at 31 Decernber 2012 bare interest at a weighted average rate of 05% (2011 04%) The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents s
Iimited because wherever possible and In accordance with Group Treasury policy the cash 1s placed with bank counterparties that hold investment

grade credrt ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

The group operates a multi-currency notional peoling cash management system which included over 140 group comparves at 31 December 2012

It 15 anticipated that the number of participants in the group will continue to grow The group met the condrtions of IAS 32 Financial Instruments.

FPresentation allowing balances within this cash pool to be offset for reporting purposes At 31 December 2012 £360m (201 | £303m) of the cash

balances and the equwvalent amaunt of the overdr aft balances were offset

Cash and cash equivalents of £27m (2011 £17m) are held by the groups wholly-owned captive insurance subsidianies Their use 1s restricted to the

settlement of claims agamnst the groups captive insurance subsidianes

29, Bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes

w012 200
£m £m
Bank overdrafts \7 53
Bank loans 345 932
Loan notes* 2,039 i 180
Total bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes 2,401 2165
The borrowings are repayable as follows
Ondemand or within one year 75 100
Inthe second year 86 53
Inthe third to fifth years inclusive 1,059 1065
After five years 1,181 947
Total bank cverdrafts bark loans and loan notes 2,401 2165
Less Amount due for settlement within 12 moriths (shown under current habilities)
— Bank overdrafts {17} (53)
- Bank loans {(18) 47y
- Loan notes (40) ~
(75) (100)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 2,326 2,065
*Loan notes includes £794m (2011 £830m) of private loan notes and £1 245m (201 | £350m) of public loan notes
Analysis of bark averdrafts, bank loans and loan notes by currency
Sterlmg Euros US doltars Others Total
im £m £m £m £m
Bank overdrafts 6 b 7 3 17
Bank loans 137 73 99 36 345
Loan notes 419 895 725 - 2,039
At 3] December 2012 562 969 :£]| 39 2,401
Bank overdrafts 21 24 - 8 53
Bank loans 419 205 263 45 932
Loan notes 419 - 76l - 1180
At 3| December 2014 859 229 1,024 53 2,165

Of the borrowings in currencies other than sterking, £1 078m {2011 £1 032m) s designated as a net investment hedge
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

29 Bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes continued

The weighted average mterest rates on bank overdrafts bank loans and loan notes at 3! December 2012 adjusted for hedging were as follows

2012 200

% %

Bank overdrafts 15 12
Bank loans 35 24
Private loan notes 45 44
Publhc loan notes 42 78

The groups committed bank borrowings comprise a £1 100m multicurrency revolving credrt facility with a maturity date of March 2016

At 31 December 2012 undrawn committed available facilities amounted to £856m (2011 £767m) Interest on all committed bank borrowing
facilities s at prevailling Libor or Euribor rates dependent upon the period of drawdown plus an agreed margin and re-priced within one year
or less

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk The management of this rsk is discussed in note 33

The group issued fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placement market totaling US3550m {£354m) on | March 2007 The notes mature in
March 2014 (§100m), March 2017 ($200m), March 2019 ($145m) and March 2022 ($105m)

The group 1ssued further fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placement market totaling US$514m (£331m) and £6%9m on 15 July 2008
The notes mature n July 2013 ($65m) July 2015 ($150m) july 2016 {£25m) July 2018 ($224m) and (£44m) and July 2020 ($75m)

The group sssued its naugural pubhc note of £350m using its European Medium Term Note Programme on |3 May 2009 The note matures in
May 2019

During 2012 the group 1ssued two further public notes A euro 600m note issued on May 2012 maturing May 2017 and a euro 500m note issued on
December 2012 maturing Decernber 2018

The committed bank facilities and the private loan notes are subject to one financial covenant (net debt 1o EBITDA ratio where EBITDA 15 calcutated
as PBITA plus depreciation) and non-comphiance with the covenant may lead to an acceleration of matur ity The group complied with the financial
covenant throughout the year to 3| December 2012 and the year to 31 December 2011 The group has not defaulted on, or breached the terms
of any materiat loans during the year

Bank overdrafts, bank loans the loan notes 1ssued in july 2008 the loan notes ssued in May 2009 euro 510m of the loan notes ssued n May 2012
and euro 380m of the loan notes issued 1IN December 202 are stated at amortised cost The loan notes issued in March 2007, evro 90m of the
loan notes 1ssued n May 2012 and euro 120m of the loan notes issued 0 December 2012 are stated at amortised cost recalculated at an effective
interest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a fair value hedge relationship

US$265m {£163m) of the loan notes ssued in July 2008 have a far value market gain of £31m (2011 £40m) resulting from the cross currency
swaps fixing the GBP value of this portion of the Ioan notes at an exchange rate of | 975

Eure 325m (£264m) of the loan notes issued in May 2012 have a far value market Yoss of £5m partly resulting from the cross currency swaps fixing
the GBP value of this portion of the ican notes at an exchange rate of | 222 and partly resulting from the cross currency swaps fixing the GBP and
euro interest rates

Euro 350m (£284m) of the loan notes 1ssued in Decemnber 2012 have a farr value market gain of £2m resuluing from the cross currency swaps fixing
the GBP and euro interest rates
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30 Obbgations under finance leases

Present Prasent
value of value of
Minsmum Merurnum mimmum minimum
lease lease lease jease
payments payments payments payments
012 2011 2012 2011
im Lm im £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 20 18 18 16
Inthe second to fifth years indusve 42 51 40 46
After five years 4 2 3 2
66 71 6l &4
Less future finance charges on finance leases 5} (7
Present value of lease obligations 61 64
Less Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current liabiries) (i8) (16}
Amount due for settlerent after 12 months 43 48

It 15 the groups policy to lease certan of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases The weighted average lease term is eight years
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the weighted average effective borrowing rate was 4 9% (2011 5 5%} Interest rates are fixed at the
contract date All leases are on a fixed repayment basts and no arrangements have been entered into for contingant rental payments

The groups obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors charges over the leased assets

3| Trade and other payables

2012 2011
£m £m
Within current habilities
Trade creditors 232 245
Amounts due to construction contract customers (see note 26} 2 5
Amounts owed to associated undertakings 2 2
Other taxaton and socal securty costs 228 23|
Other creditors 433 435
Accruals and deferred income 294 328
Derwatve financial nstruments at far value (see note 32} 5 5
Total trade and other payables included within current liabilities 1,196 125]
Within non-current labilities
Derwvative financal nstrurnents at far value (see note 32) 6 4
Cther credttors 12 15
Tatal trade and other payables included within non-current labilities 18 19

Trade and other payables comprise principally amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit perod taken for trade
purchases is 42 days (201 | 39 days)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

32 Derivative financial instruments

The carrying values of denvative finanoal Instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below

Assets Assets Liabilities Liabdities
2012 011 2012 2001
£m im £m £m
Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 32 40 5 -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 6 9
Interest rate swaps designated as far value hedges 73 77 - -
Commodity swaps 2 3 - -
107 120 1t 9

Less Non-current portion (81) (106) (8) “
Current portion 26 4 5 5

Derwative financial nstruments are stated at fair value measured using techniques consistent with Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy (inputs other
than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset or hability erther directly or indirectly) The source of the market prices is
Bloomberg and in addition the third party relationstup, counterparty banks The relevant currency yield curve is used to forecast the floating rate cash
flows anticipated under the instrument which are discounted back to the balance sheet date This valua is compared to the original transaction value

gving a farr value of the instrument at the balance sheet date

The mark to market valuation of the dervatives has fallen by £15m during the year

The interest rate cross currency and commodity swaps treated as cash flow hedges have the following maturities

Assets Assets Liabilies Liabilites

2012 2011 2012 2011

im £m im £m

Within one year 9 2 1 3
Inthe second year - 10 2 2
Inthe third year 17 - - 2
Inthe fourth year - 23 3 {
In the fifth year or greater B 8 5 {
Total cartying value 34 43 i S

Projected settlement of cash flows (including accrued interest) associated with dervatives treated as cash flow hedges

Assets Assets Liabilivies Liabilihes

2012 2011 2012 200

im £m im £m

Within one year 7 p 7 7
Inthe second year 3 10 6 2
Inthe third year - - 5 2
In the fourth year 17 24 4 -
In the fifth year or greater i7 9 - |
Total cash flows 44 45 21 12

33 Financial risk

Capital management

The group manages its capital structure through an appropriate mix of debt and equrty that supports the develcpment of the group through organic
and acquisiion growth maxamises shareholder returns and minimises the cost of capital whilst maintaining an investment grade credrt rating sc that it

can benefit from good access to debt capital markets on attractive terms

The group has had an investrment grade credit rating since March 2009 when Standard & Poers assessed the group BBB stable Subsequent to

the Clympics contract announcement on |3 July 2012 and the board review in Septernber Standard & Poors revised the rating 1o BBB stable in

November The group will continue to manage rts caprtal siructure so that it retains its investment grade

The groups policy 1s to maintain a net debt to EBITDA ratio of around 2 to 25 times At the end of 2012 the ratio was 2 66 times L 1s expected

that the rat:o will fall back intc the target range next year The group 1s currently well financed has a diverse range of finance prowders and the

matu ity profite 1s long term Borrowings ar e prinaipally in pounds stet ing US dollars and eur os reflecting the geographies of significant operational

assets and profits
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33 Financial sk continued

Liquidity risk

The group mitigates iquidity risk by ensuring there are sufficient undrawn committed faciiies avallable to it For more details of the groups bank
overdrafts bank loans and loan notes see note 29

The percentage of avallable but undrawn committed faciliies duning the course of the year was as follows

31 December 201 | 29%
31 March 2012 25%
30 June 2012 27%
30 Septernber 2012 15%
31 Decermber 2012 28%

To reduce re-finanaing risk group treasury obtains finance with a range of maturities and hence minimises the impact of a smgle material scurce
of finance terminating on a single date

Re-finarcing risk 1s further reduced by group treasury opening negotiations to ether replace or extend any mgor medium term faclty at least
£8 months before its termination date

Maturity profile of loans and borrowings

The contractual maturies of financial assets and habihties together with the carrying amounts in the statement of financial posmion ncluding interest

payments, estimated based on expectations at the reporting date are shown below

31 December 2012

Toul
Carrying Fair cnn:rac?ual Within Over
amount value cash flows | year 2-5 years 5 years
Notes tm £m tm £m £m
Investments 24 56 56 56 56 - -
Dervative financial nstruments
{(interest rate swaps) 2 73 73 8l 18 52 {f
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit and loss 129 129 137 74 52 1
Dernative financial instruments
{commodity swaps) 32 2 2 2 2 - -
Dervative financal mstruments
{cross currency swaps) 2 32 32 3 6 12 14
Financial assets designated as cash flow hedges 34 34 34 8 12 14
Net trade recewables 25 1,188 1,188 1,188 1,188 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 28 469 469 469 469 - -
Orther financal assets 25 13 13 K] - 13 -
Loans and recervables 1,670 1,670 1,670 1,657 3 -
Loan notes {issued March 2007 5 77%-606%,
maturing 2014-22) 29 (409) (409) (448) (20 (249) (179
Financial lrabtlicies designated as fair value hedges {409) (409) {448) (20 (249) {179
Dernative financial instrurments
{interest rate swaps) 32 (6) (6) (6) (3) (3) -
Dervative financial instruments
{cross-currency swaps) 32 ] (5) 5 {3 3) -
Financial habhities designated as cash flow hedges (i (1 (1) 5) {6} -
Loan notes (issued July 2008, 6 09%-7 56%
maturing 2013-20) % (385) (354) {514) (66) (198) (250}
Loan notes {issued May 2009 775%
maturing 2049} b2 {350) (350) (540) (27) {169) (404)
Loan notes (issued May 2012 2 875%
maturing 2017) bi (489) (507) {557) (14) {543) -
Loan notes (ssued December 2012 2 625%,
maturing 2018) % (406} (409) (469) (n (42) (416)
Bank loans 29 (345} (345) (345) (18) (327) -
Overdrafts b} (17) (7 (17} (17} - -
Finance lease labiities 30 1) (81) 61) (18) (40) (3
Trade payables 3 (232) (232) {232) (232) - -
Other labiities 3 (12) (12 (12) - {12} -
Financial habiliies measured at amortised cost (2,297) (2,287) (2,747) (403) {1,.271) {1,073)
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

33 Financial nsk continued

31 December 2011

Carryng Far mma;rﬁ: Within Over
amourt vike cash flows | year 2 Syears Syears
Notes im £m £rm im £m Im
Investrments 24 70 70 70 70 - -
Derwvative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) 12 77 77 85 17 51 17
Financeal assets designated at fair value through
profit and loss 147 147 155 87 51 17
Dervative financial nstruments (commodity swaps) 32 3 3 3 2 | -
Derwative financizl Instrurments (Cross currency swaps) 32 40 40 40 (1 32 g
Financial assets designated as cash flow hedges 13 43 43 I 33 g
Net trade recenables 5 1219 1219 1219 1219 - -
Cash and cash equnalents 28 433 433 433 433 - -
Other financial assets 25 19 19 19 - 19 -
Loans and receivables | 671 1671 1671 1,652 i9 -
Lean notes (issued March 2007 5779%-6 06%
maturing 2014-22) 2% 430y (430) (489) 20 271 (197
Financial labies designated as fair value through
profit and loss 430) (430} (489) (21} @ (197)
Dervative financiad insiruments {interest rate swaps) 3 )] ) {10) (6} (3 ()]
Finanoal habiities designated as cash flow hedges &) &) {10) &) 3 )]
Loan notes (issued |uly 2008 609%-756%
maturing 2013-20) p] (400} {360) (560} 27 (258) (275)
toan notes (issued May 2009 775% maturing 2019) » (350) (393) (567} @7 (109 310
Bank loans 2% (32 (932) (532 47) {885) -
Overdrafts 29 (53) (53) (53} {53) - -
Finance lease labiltties i (64) e4) &4 (16) (46) 03]
Trade payables k] (245) (245) {245) (245) - -
Other labilties 3 (15) (1) (1% - (15) -
Financial kabiliies measured at amorused cost (2,059 (2.062) (2438) 15) (1,313 (708)

The gross cash flows disclosed in the tables above represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to dervative financial labities held for risk
management purposes and which are usually not closed out before contractual maturtty The disclosure shows net cash flow amount for derwvatives that are
net cash-settled and gross cash nflow and outflow armounts for dervatives that have simultaneous gross cash settlement — e g forwar d exchange contracts

Market risk

Currency nisk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business i many currencies Transaction risk 1s hnited since wherever possible each business operates and conducts its financing
activities In local currency However the group presents its consolidated {inancial statements in sterling and 1t 1s in consequence subject to foreign
exchange nisk due to the translation of the results and net assets of s foreign subsidiaries The group hedges a substantial proportion of its exposure
1o fluctuations In the translation into sterfing of ts overseas net assets by holding loans i foreign currencies

Translation adjustmerts anising on the translation of fareign currency loans are recogrised in equity to match translation adjustments on foreign
currency equity investmerits as they qualfy as net investment hedges.

At 31 December 2012, the groups US dollar and euro net assels were approximately 85% and 60% respectively hedged by foreign currency loans
(201 | US dollar 75%, euro 50%)

Cross-currency swaps with a nominal value of £134m were arranged to hedge the foregn currency risk on US$265m of the second US Private
Placernent notes issued in July 2008 effectively fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of | 9750

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £266m were arranged to hedge the foretgn currency risk on euro 325m of the euro public notes
1ssued In May 2012 effectively fixing the stethng value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of 12217

Cross currency swaps with a norminal value of £284m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency risk on euro 350m of the euro public notes
issued in December 2012 effectively fixng the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of | 2332

Assuming a | 9% appreciation of sterling aganst the US dollar and the euro, the far value net gain on the cross currency swaps which hedge part
of the currency loan notes would be expected to fall by £7m
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33 Financial risk continued
Market risk continued

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Borrowing at floating rates as described in note 29 exposes the group to cash flow nterest rate risk which the group manages within phicy imits
approved by the directors Interest rate swaps and 1o a mited extent forward rate agreements are utilsed to fix the interest rate on a proportion
of borrowings on a reducing scale over forward periods up to a maxemum of five years At 31 December 2012 the nominal value of such contracis
was £38m (in respect of US dollar) (2011 £174m) and £73m {in respect of eurs) (201 | £121m), their weighted average interest rate was | 3%
(US dollar) (2011 27%) and 3 2% (euro) (2011 3 6%),and their weighted average period to maturily was three years All the interest rate hedging
instruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in their far value have been deferred in equity

The US Private Placement market 1s predominantly a fixed rate market with investor s looking for a fixed rate return over the Iife of the loan notes
At the ume of the first issue n March 2007 the g1 oup was comfortable with the proportion of floating 1 ate exposure not hedged by interest rate
swaps and therefore rather than take on a ligher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floaung swaps effectively converting the fixed
coupon on the Private Placement to a floating rate Following the swaps the resutting average coupon or the US Private Placement 15 Libor + 60bps
These swaps have been documentad as far value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed interest loan notes with the movements m their far
value posted to profit and loss at the same ume as the movement in the fair value of the hedged tem

The interest on the LS Private Placement notes issued in July 2008 the GBP public notes issued n May 2009 510m of the euro public notes 1ssued
in May 2012 and 380m of the euro public notes issued in December 2012 was kept at fixed rate

All three public notes have a coupon step up of | 25% which 15 tnggered should the credit rating of G45 plc fall below invesiment grade

The care group borrowings are held in US doflar euro and sterling Although the impact of msing interest rates 1s largely shielded by fixed rate loans
and interest rate swaps which fix a portion of the exposure some (nterest rate risk remans A 1% ncrease in nterest rates across the yield curve
In each of these currencies with the 31 December 2012 debt postion constant throughout 2013, would lead to an expectation of an additional
interest charge of £9m in the 2013 financial year

Commodity nsk ond commodity swaps

The groups pringipal commodity risk relates to the fluctuating level of diasel prices particularty afecting 1is cash solutions businesses Commodity
swaps and commodity options are used to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatility Commedity swaps hedging
39 million Iitres of projected 2013 diese! consumption 36 mullion litres of projected 2014 diese! consumption and 21 million Iitres of projected 2015
diesel consumption were in place at 31 December 2012

Counterparty credit risk
The group’s strategy for credit risk management 15 1o set minimurm credrt ratings for courterparties and monrtor these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions the policy imits the aggregate credn risk assigned to a counterparty The utiisation of a credn et 15 calculated by
apphying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and duration of the transaction
The total mark to market value outstanding with each counterparty is also closely monitored against policy imits assigned to each counterparty

For short-term transactions (under one year) at inception of the transaction the financial counterparty must be investment grade rated by erther
the Standard & Poors or Meodys rating agencies For long-term transactions at inception of the transacuen the financial counterparty must have

a minimum rating of BBB-+/Baal from Standard & Poors or Moodys

Treasury transactions are dealt with the groups relationship barks all of which have a strong investment grade rating At 31 December 2012 the
largest two counterparty exposures related to treasury transactions were £38m and £31m and both were held with instrtutions with a long-term
Standard & Poors credit rating of A— and A respectively These exposures represent 36% and 29% of the carrying values of dervative financial
Instrurmnents, with a far value gan at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant loans commments outstanding to G45 plc at

31 December 2012

The group operates a muli-currency notional pooling cash management systam with a whally-owned subsidiary of an A+ rated bank At year end
credt batances of £360m were pooled with debit balances of £362 7m resulting in a net pool batance of negative £2 7m There 1s legal right of set
off under the pooling agreement and an overdraft facility of £3m

At an operating level the mimimum investment grade rating criteria applies Exceptionally where required by local country arcumstances
courtterparties with no or a non-investmenit grade, rating can be approved as counterparties for a period of up to |12 months Due 10 the groups
global geographical footprint and exposure to muttiple industries there s minimal concentration risk.

34 Reurement benefit obligatuons

The group operates a wide range of retirement benefit arrangements which are established in accordance wath local conditions and practices within
the countries concerned These include funded defined contribution and funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes

Defined contribution arrangements

The majority of the retirement benefit arrangements operated by the group are of a defined contribution structure where the employer
contributicn and resulting income statement charge 1s fixed at a set level or 15 a set percentage of employees’ pay Contributions made to defined
contribution schemes and charged to the income statement totalled £107m (2011 £107m)

In the UK following the dosure of the defined benefit schemes to new entrants in 2004 the main scheme for new employees 15 a contracted-n
defined contrbution scheme
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Defined contribution arrangements continued

(45 Government Solutions, Inc s the administrator of several defined benefit schemes G4S Government Solutions Inc 1s responsible for making
periodic cost-resmbursable deposits to the vanious defined benefit schemes as determined by independent actuaries In each instance the US
Department of Energy { DOE ) acknowledged within the contract entered between the DOE and G45 Government Solutions Inc rts responsibility
for all unfunded peasion and benefit labiities Ther efore these schemes are accounted for as defined contrbution schemes

In the Nether lands, most employees are members of industry-wide defined benefit schemes which are not valued on an IAS 19 basis as it 1s

not possible to enufy separately the groups share of the schernes assets and Nabilities As a result the schemes are accounted for as defined
contribution schemes Contributions made to the schemes and charged to the income statement in 2012 totalled £8m (201 £8m) The estimated
amourits of contnbutions expected to be pad to the schemes duning the financal year commencaing | january 2013 m respect of the ongong
accrual of benefits 1s approximately £8m assurmung consistent exchange rates

Defined benefit arrangements

The group operates a number of defined benefit retirement arrangements where the benefits are based on employees length of service In most
cases these are cakulated on the basis of final pensionable pay other than for the smallest of the three sections in the UK and one scheme in the
Netherlands where they are based on career average pay Liabiliies under these arrangermnents are stated at the discounted value of benefits accrued
to date based upon actuanal advice

Under unfunded arrangements, the group does not hold the related assets separate from the group The amount charged to the income statement
in respect of these arrangements i 2012 totalled £4m (2011 £3m) Under funded arrangements the assets of defined benefit schemes are held
In separate trustee-administered funds The pension costs are assessed on the advice of qualified independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method The group operates several funded defined retirerent benefit schemes Whilst the group’s primary scheme s in the UK 1t also
aperates other matenal schemes, primarily in the Netherlands and Canada

For defined benefit schemes the cost of prowding benefits 1s deterrmined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuatiors being
updated to each balance sheet date The discount rate used is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated corporate bonds that have
maturity dates apprexamating to the terms of the groups obhgations

The carrying values of retirement benefit obligations at the balance sheet date are presentad below

2012 200

m £m

UK 412 285
Rest of World 24 10
Net hability on materal funded defined retirement benefit schemes 436 295
Unfunded and other funded defined retirement benefit oblgations 35 49
471 344

The defined benefit scheme in the LK accounts for 95% of the net balance sheet liability on materal funded defined retirement benefit schemes
It comprises three sections the pension scheme demerged from the former Group 4 Falck A/S with total membership of approximately 8,000
the Secunicor scheme responsibility for which the group assumed on 20 july 2004 with the acquisition of Securicor plc with total membership

of approximately 20000, and the GSL scheme responsibility for which the group assumed on 12 May 2008 with the acquisition of GSL with total
membership of approximately 2 000 The LUK scheme was formally actuarially assessed at 5 April 2002 Pension obligations stated in the statement
of financial posrtion take account of future earmings icreases have been updated to 31 December 2012 and use the valuation methodclogies
specified in |AS 19 Employee Benefits

During the prior year the group closed the UK scheme to future accrual Exisung members retained their nk to final salary where appropriate and
their benefits accrued to-date Members have been offered the opporturity to move to a new defined contribution scheme for future pension
benefits There has been no curtaidment gan or less

As at the latest actuanial valuation the partiapants of the UK penston scheme sections can be analysed as follows

Group 4 Falck GSL Securcor

ALS Apri 2009 Scheme Scheme Scheme Tozal
Active partopants

- Nurnber 618 131 1409 3338
- Average age 532 508 519 517
Deferred partiapants

—Number 4,559 537 10352 15448
— Average age 513 484 508 509
Pensicner participants

— Number 2607 208 7878 10693
- Average age 682 &l 699 693
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34 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The weighted average principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows

Rest of
UK World

Key assumpuons used at 31 December 2012
Discount rate 45% 39%
Expected return on scherne assets (as at | January 2012) 57% 44%
Expected rate of salary increases 31% 23%
Future pension inareases (LPIS%) 29% 1%
Inflation 30% 21%

Key assumptions used at 31 December 2014
Discount rate 50% 53%
Expected return on scheme assets (as at | January 2011) 70% 51%
Expected rate of salary increases 3% 24%
Future pension increases (LP15%) 10% 15%
Inflation 31% 21%

In addition to the above the group uses appropriate mortality assumptions when calculating the schemes obligations The mortality tables used for

the scheme in the LK are as follows

= Current and future pensioners Birth year table SIP{M/FJA base allowing for indwidual scaling factors based on analysis of mortality experienced

medium cohort Improvernent factors with an underpin of 1 0% per annum

The amounts recognised on the balance sheet in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as fallows

CBO Assets Asset ceding Toul
im im £m m

2012
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet at beginning of the perod
UK {1,723} 1,438 - (285)
Rest of World (102} 101 9 (10}
Total (1.825) 1,539 (9) (295)
Amounts recognised in Income
Current service cost 7 - —~ N
Settlernent and curtaiment gains 2 - - 2
Finance cost on defined retirement benefit obligations (°0) - - (90)
Expected return on defined retrement benefit scheme assets - 82 - az
Total amounts recognised n Income (95) 82 - (13)
Remeasurements
Actuarial loss on defined benefit cbligaton (7 - - (177)
Actuarial koss on asset - 9 - &)
Change in effect of asset celling - - 9 9
Remeasurement effects recognised in OCl {177) (9 9 (77
Cash
Employer cortributions - 47 - 47
Employee contributions 4) 4 - -
Benefits pard from plan assets 73 (73) - -
Net cash 69 (22) - 47
Other
Exchange rates 3 1)) - 2
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet at end of the period
UK (1.886) 1474 - 412)
Rest of World {139} 15 - 249
Tatal (2,025) 1,589 - {436)
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

34 Reurement benefit obligations continued

DBO Assets Assetceding Total
£m £m £m m

2011
Amounts recogrused on the balance sheet at beginning of the perniod
UK (1 566) t310 (256)
Rest of Worlkd (95) S0 “ %
Total (1661) 1400 “ (265)
Amounts recogrised inincome
Current service cost ) - - )]
Finance cost on defined retirement benefit oblgations (90) - - (50)
Expected return on defined reurement benefit scheme assets - 93 - 93
Total amounts recogrised In iIncome (59) 93 - (]
Remeasurements
Actuaral loss on defined benefit obligation (132 - - (132
Actuaral gan on assets - &4 - 64
Change in effect of asset celing - — 5) {5)
Remeasurement effects recognised in OCI (132 64 (5) 73)
Cash
Employer contribuitions - 48 - 48
Employee contributions ® 6 - -
Benefits paid from plan assets 70 (70) - -
Net cash &4 (16) - 48
Other
Exchange rates 3 @ - |
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet at end of the period
UK (1723 1438 - (285}
Rest of Worid (102 161 €] {10}
Total (1825) 1539 €] (295}
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34 Reurement benefit obligations contnued

The amounts recognised In income are included within the following categories in the income statement

002 201

£m ém
Cost of sales {5) ()]
Administration expenses - 3
Finance income 81 93
Finance costs (90) G0
Totat (13) &)

Actuanial gains and losses recognised cumulatively :n the statement of comprehensive iIncome are as follows

w012 201t

£m &m
AL} January {(326) (253)
Actuarial losses recognised in the year (186} 68)
Restriction to defined benefit asset due to the asset cethng 9 (S)
At 31 December (503) (326)

The contribution from spensoring companies 0 2012 induded £37m (201 | £40m) of additional contributions in respect of the deficit i the

schemes

The asset celing restriction reflects an inability to derive economic value frem an IAS19 surplus in a plan in the Netherlands

The amounts included in the consohidated statement of financial position ansing from the groups obkgations in respect of its material defined benefit

schemes are as follows

Rest of

UK Waorld Toual

£m £m £m
2012
Present value of defined benefit obligations 1,886 139 2,025
Farr value of scheme assets (1.474) {115) (1,589
Deficit in scheme 412 24 436
200
Present value of defined benefit obligations 1723 102 1825
Far value of scheme assets (1438) (on (1539
Restriction to defined benefit asset due to the asset ceifing - 9 9
Deficrt n scheme 285 10 295
2010
Present value of defined benefit obiigations 1 566 95 1661
Farr value of scheme assets (1,310 (%0 {1400)
Restriction to defined benefit asset due to the asset ceifing - 4 4
Defiot in scheme 156 9 265
2009
Present value of defined benefit obiigations 1,547 16 | 663
Farr value of scheme assets (1240 (95) (1 335)
Deficrt n scheme 307 21 328
2008
Present value of defined benefit oblgations 1296 n 1407
Far value of scheme assets (1040) 8h (1121}
Deficit in scheme 256 30 285

G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012 123

MIIAIBAD)

2IUBWIOLIDY manal 8a1eng

FIUBUIACT)

S1ULWDIEILS |BIDUBUILY

UOBULIOJUI JBP(OYIRYS



Notes to the consolidated financiat statements continued

34 Retirement benefit obligations contsnued

The composition of the scheme assets at the reporuing date 1s as follows

Rest of

UK World Totat

2012
Equity instruments 15% 5% 16%
Debt instruments 2% 45% 24%
Property 2% 3% 2%
Cash 10% 2% 10%
Other assets 51% 15% 48%
100% 100% 100%

2011
Equity instruments 10% 34% 12%
Debt instruments 25% 44% 27%
Property 0% 4% 0%
Cash 28% 2% 26%
Other assets 37% ta% 8%
100% 100% 100%

Other assets in the UK comprised a range of dervatives private equity holdings macro-orientated and multi-strategy atternative investments
and a credit portfolio including corperate bond exposure credit long/short funds and distressed debt investments

None of the pension scheme assets are held in the entity's own financial nstruments or i any assets held or used by the entity

For the UK the expected return on assets 1s based on the return targeted under the investment strategy For the rest of the world, the expected
rates of return on indmdual categores of schere assets are determined with respect to bonds by reference to relevant indrces, and with respect to
other assets by ceference to relevant indices of the historical return and economic forecasts of future returns relateve to nflation i respect of assets
of a similar mature The overall expected rate of return s the weighted average of the rates on the individual asset categories

The history of experience adjustments is as follows

2012 01 20i0 2009 2008
Experence adjustments on scheme liabihues
Amount (£m) (2) 1& &1} 8
Perceritage of scheme liabiries (%) - | (2) - -
Expenence adjustments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) 9 (63 3 (1413 {332
Percertage of scheme assets (%) l IS)] - (m {30)

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the schemes during the financial year commencing | January 2013 in respect
of the ongoing accrual of benefits should be approximately £10m and it 1s antiaipated that these will remain at a similar level in the medium term
subject 1o changes in financial condmicns Additional contributions of approximately £38m will also be made 1n 2013 in respect of the defiat in
the schemes

IAS 19 specifies that pension labilities should be discounted at apprepriate high quaiity corporate bond rates The directors consider that

1t 15 appropriate to apply the average of the yields on those AA corporate bonds which most dosely approximate to the timescale of |
the hability profile of the schemes and have therefore used such a rate being 4 5% in respect of the UK schemes at 3t December 2012 !
(495% at 31 December 201 1) The effect of a 0 | % movement in the discount rate applicable in the UK s to alter reported habilities |
{before asscaiated deferred tax) by approximately £32m

Liability calculations are also impacted heavily by the mortalty projections included in the actuanial assurmpuions The weighted average hfe expectancy
of @ male member of the UK schemes currently aged 65 has been assumed as 21 years The weighted average life expectancy at 65 of a male
currently aged 52 has been assumed as 22 years The directors consider on actuanial advice these assumptions to be appropriate to the profile of the
membership of the schemes The effect of a one-year change in this UX Iife expectancy assumption 1s 1o alter 1eporied habities (before associated
deferred tax) by approximately £88m

Pension obhgations in respect of deferred members increase in line with inflation Increases in salaries and increases in pensions-in-payment

generally move in kne with nflation Inflation 15 therefore an important assumption in the calculation of defined retirement benefit labiliues

The effect of 2 0 1% movernent in the rate of infration assumption apphcable in the UK is 1o alter reported hatiies (before assotated deferred 1)
by approximately £15m
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35 Provisions

Employee Clums Ornerous

benefits Restructunng reserves contracts Total

€m £m fm im im

A1 January 2012 17 1 410 13 71

Addrtional provision in the year 7 3 38 4 52

On acquisition of subsidiary - - 6 | 7
Utilisation of provision 7) {n (33) {6} 47)
Urused amounts reversed (vd} - ()] \ “@
Translation adstments (N - ] - (2)

At 31 December 2012 14 3 49 i 77

Includied in current labilities 31

Induded i non-current lizbires 45

77

Employee benefits

The prowsion for employee benedits s in respect of any employee benefits which acerue over the working Iives of the employess, typically ncluding
rtems such as long service awards and termination indemnity schemes

The groups net obhgation in respect of long-term service benefits other than retirement benefits represents the present value of the future benefit
that employees have earned at the balance sheet date less the fair value of scheme assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly
Restructuring

Restructuning provisions iclude amounts for redundancy payments and the costs of closure of activities in acquired businesses and discontinued
operatians Settlement of restructuning provisions 1s highly probable The timing 1s uncertan but 1s generally ikely to be short term

Claims reserves

The claims reserves are held by the wholly-cwned captive insurance subsidiaries in Guernsey and the US which underwrite part of the groups cash
solutions general lability workers compensation and auto lizbility poliaes The provisions are subject to regular actuarial review and are adjusted

as appropriate Settlement of these provisions 1s highly probable but both the value of the final settlements and their timing 1s uncertain, dependent
upon the outcome of ongoing processes to determine both lability and quantum in respect of a wide range of claims or possible claims

Onerous contracts

The onerous contract provision mamly comprises the provision against future habiities for loss-making contracts for ali properties sub-

let at a shortfall for the cost of replacing assets where there 15 a present contractual reguirement and for long-term (dle leased properties
The provision s based on the value of future net cash outflows Whilst the likelihood of settlement of these obligations 1s considered probable
there is uncertainty over ther value and duration
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

36 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilties and assets recogrised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior

reporting periods
Petirement Other
benefit Intangible Tax temporary
obhgaucns assets losses differences Toual
&m £m £m im
At L January 2013 75 (84) 27 45 63
(Charge)/credit to the income staterment (10 25 @ - 10
Acquisition of subsidianes - {21 - - (21}
Chargef(credit) to equay 12 - - (H Il
Transfers/other - [ - | 2
At 31 December 2011 76 5] 23 45 65
At | January 2012 76 79 23 45 65
Credst te the income statement 3 27 5 | 36
Acquisiion of subsicharies - )] - - %)
Credtt to equrty 25 - — 28
Transfers/other - - - 4
At 31 December 2012 104 {61) 28 53 124
Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset where permitted The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
for financial reporting purposes
2012 P
fm £m
Deferred tax labilties / (68) 9D
Deferred tax assets 179 157
Net deferred tax asset included in held for sale 13 -
Total deferred tax posticn 124 65

At 31 December 2012 the group has unutilised tax losses of approximately £485m (2011 £456m) potentially avafable for offset against future
profits A deferred tax asset of £28m (2011 £23m) has been recognised in respect of approximately £106m (2011 £71m) of gross losses

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining £379m (201 | £385m) of gross losses due 1o the unpredictability of
future profit streams in the relevant junisdictions and the fact that a significant proportion of such losses remains unauditad by the relevant tax
authories Included in unrecognised tax losses are gross fosses of £14m which will expire between 2013 and 2022 Other losses may be carned

forward indefinitely

At 31 Decemnber 2012 the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of non-UK subsidiaries for which
deferred tax labilities have not been recognised 1s £1 378m (2011 £1 401m) No hability has been recognised in respect of these gross differences
on the basis that the group 15 in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 15 probable that such differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future

At 3] Decernber 2012 the group has total unprovided contingent tax liabilities of approsimately £5m (2011 £11m) relating to unresolved tax issues

IN various jUI‘ISdICtIOnS

37 Share capital

2012 2011

G45 plc £ c
Issued and fully pad ordinary shares of 25p each 352,667,160 352667160
2012 201

Number Number

Qrdinary shares in issue 1,410,668,639 1410668 639

126 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012




38 Other reserves

Hedging Translation Merger Reserve for Total other

reserve reserve reserve own shares reserves

im im fm £m im

At | January 2011 (32) 164 426 {12 546
Total comprehensive income 6 (54 - - (48)
Own shares purchased - - - (13 {3
O shares awarded - - - 9 9
At 3 December 2011 (26 110 426 (16) 494
At | January 2002 (26) 110 426 (16} 494
Total comprehensive income (8) (60) - - {68)
Own shares purchased - - - (6) (6)
Own shares awarded - - - 2 2
At 3| December 2012 (34) 50 426 (20) 422

Other reserves includes

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow instruments refated to the hedged
transact:ans that have not yet occurred (net of tax)

Translatton reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences anising from the translation of the financial statements of foraign operations, as
well as from the translation of habilties that hedge the companys net investment in foreign operations {net of tax)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve comprises reserves arsing upon the merger between the former Group 4 Falck A/S and the former Group 4 Securttas BV in
2000 and the acquisition of Securicor ple by the group i 2004

Reserve for own shares

An employes benefit trust estabhshed by the group held 7 589 853 shares at 31 December 2012 (2011 6265571 shares) to satisfy the vesiing of
awards under the performance share pfan and performance-related and synergy bonus schemes During the year 221 | 404 shares were purchased
by the trust whilst 885 970 shares were used to satisfy the vesung of awards under the schemes At 31 December 2012 the cost of shares held by
the trust was £20,207,798 (2011 £16,484777) whilst the market value of these shares was £12470928 (2011 £17 029 822) Shares held by the
trust are treated as treasury shares are deducted from equrty do not receve dividends and are excluded from the calculations of earnings per share

G4S plc Annua!l Report and Accounts 2012 127

MIINIBAD)

9dUBULIOLIY MaIA] BaRS

IIUBLLIBAOS)

SIUBWIAIEIS |B1dUBUY

UOIBLLIOJLY 3P|OURIBLS



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

39 Analysis of net debt

A reconcliation of net debt to amounts n the consolidated statement of finanoial postion s presented below

2012 palll
im £m
Cash and cash equnalents 469 433
Investments 56 70
Net cash and overdrafts ncluded within disposal groups classified as held for sale 20 [{lo)]
Net debt (exducing cash and overdrafts} included within disposal groups classified as held for sale 10 -
Bank overdrafts {17) (53)
Bank loans {345) (932)
Loan notes (2,039) (1.180)
Fair value of loan note dervative financial instruments 105 120
Oblgations under finance leases (&N &4
Total net debt (1.802) (i.616)
An analysis of movernernits in net debit in the year 1s presented below
012 201
tm fm
Increase in cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts per consolidated cash flow statement 138 87
Sale of investments - (1)
Mavernent in debt and lease finanang (302) (222
Change in net debt resuting from cash flows (fed) (t45)
Borrowings acquired with subsidiaries U] {5)
Net additions to finance leases 20 (n
Movement in net debt in the year (186} (lel)
Translation adjustments - {29)
Net debt at the beginning of the year (1.616) {1 426)
Net debt atthe end of the year (1,802) {1.616)
40 Contingent liabilities
Contingent labiliues exist in respect of agreements entered Into In the normal course of businass none of which are indnidually or
collectively significant
Detals of unprovided contingent tax habilities are presented in note 36
41 Operating lease arrangements
The group as lessee
At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows
2012 2001
m m
Within one year 133 38
In the second to fifth years inclusive 35 310
After five years i8I 197
Tortal operating lease commutrments 629 645

The group leases a number of 1ts office properties vehicles and cther operating equipment under operating leases Property leases are negotiated
over an average tarm of eght years at rates reflective of market rentals Penodic rent reviews take place to bring lease rentals i bne with prevating

market condrtions Some but not alt fease agreemernits have an option to renew the lease at the end of the lease term Leased vehicles and other

operating equipment are negoliated over an average lease term of four years

Certain leased properties have been sub-et by the group Sub-leases are negotiated on terms consistent with those of the assocated property
The total future minemum sub-tease payments expected 10 be recerved by the group from sub-let properties amount to £10m 2011 £10m)

128 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012




42 Share-based payments

Shares allocated conditionally fall under erher the groups performance-refated bonus scheme or the groups Performance Share Plan (PSP) Shares
allocated conditionally under the performance-related bonus scheme vest three years following the date of grant provided certain non-market
performance conditions are met Those allocated under the PSP vest after three years to the extent that (a) certan non-market performance
conditions are met and {b) certan market performance condriions are met. The proportion of the allocation of awards to these criteria 1s described
in the remuneration report Vesting occurs after the third anniversary of the date the shares were allocated condiicnally To the extent that the
performance criteria have been met and the shares are not forfeted these shares can only be released upen request after the thirc anniversary but
before the tenth annversary

The number of shares allocated condiionally 1s as fellows

Performance Performance

related bonus related bomus
scheme PSP Tozal scheme PSP Towat
2012 2012 2012 2011 201 2001
Number Number Number Number Number Mumber
Outstanding at | fanuary 1,068,455 16,102,450 17,170 905 1525349 14914 806 16440155
Allocated during the year 40,652 5,859.439 5,900,09) 121050 6431172 6552262
Transferred during the year (296,907) (613,518) (310,425) (577984) (2798491 (3374475)
Forfested duning the year - {727.959) (727.959) - (727154) 727154)
Expired during the year - (5,031,187) {(5,031,187) - (1717883) {1717883)
Cutstanding at 31 Decernber 812,200 15,585,225 16,401,425 1068455 16102450 17170905

The weighted average remaining contractual ife of conditional share allocations outstanding at 31 December 2012 was |6 moniths
(2011 19 months) The weighted average share price at the date of allocation of shares allocated condrionally during the year was 277 Ip
(2011 253 0p) and the cortractual Ife of all condisonal allocations was three years

Under the PSP the vesting of half (2011 ene third) of the shares allocated conditionally depends upon Total Shareholder Return (a market
performance condrtion) over the vesting year measured against a comparator group 25% of the allocation vests upon the group s Total
Shareholder Return equalling median performance amongst the comparator group The fair value of the shares allocated subject to this market
performance condition has therefore been reduced by 75%

Total expenses of £nif were recognised In the income statement in the year (2011 £im) in respect of conditional share allocations the calculauon of
which included an estimate of the number of those shares allocated subject to nan-market performance conditions that would vest based upon the
probable achievernent against the performance conditions

43 Related party transactions

Transactions and balances with joint ventures and asscciated undertakings

Transactions between the company and 1ts subsidianes have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note Detalls of
transactions between the group and cther related parties are disclosed below All transactions wrih related parties are entered into in the normal
course of business

Transactions with joing ventures included revenue recorded of £30m (201 £22m) Amounts due to related parties include £2m (201 | £2m)
to asseciates Amounts due from related parties mclude £4m (2011 £5m) from joint ventures and £2m (2011 £2m) from associates

No expense has been recognised in the year for bad and doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by related parties Detaits of principal joint
ventures and associated undertakings are shown in notes 2t and 22 respectively

The group has a fegal interest in a number of joint ventures and joint arrangemenits where the economic interest was divested by the Global
Solutions Group prior 1o its acquistion by GA4S plc The significant transactions wath these entities are

2012 20t

Services/sales to Services/sales to

im m

White Horse Education Partnership bimited 2 2
Integrated Accommodation Services plc 44 45
Fazakerley Prison Services Limited 34 32
Onley Prison Services Limited 14 13
ECD Cookham Wood Limited 13 13
ECD Onley Limited 13 12
Stratus Integrated Services Limited 7 7
UK Court Services (Manchester) Limited 2 2
East London Lift Company Limited I |
Brent Harrow & Hilingdon LIFT Company Lid - I
Total 130 128
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

43 Related party transactions continued

Transactions with post-employment benefit schemes

Details of transactions with the groups pest-employment benefit schemes are provided in note 34 Unpaid contrioutions owed to schemes
amountedto £1mat 31 December 2012 (2011 £1m)

Transactions with other related parties

During the prior year the group completed a transaction 1o sell a property belonging to its Secure Solutions business in Turkey to the then
non-controlling interest for proceeds of approximately £5m This transaction was undertaken on an arm'’s length basis

Remuneration of key management personnel

The groups key management personnel are deemed to be the non-executive directors and those indmduals iInduding the executive directors
whose remuneration is determined by the Remuneration Committee Their remuneration is set out below Further information abour the
remuneration of individual directors inciuded within key management personnel 15 provided in the audrted part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 72 10 81

012 2011

¢ £

Short-term empiloyee benefits 7,253,734 6460187
Post-employrent benefits 104,212 1047125
Other longterm benefits 4\ 819 44997
Share-based payment 132,289 693 220
Total 7,532,054 8,245 524

44 Events after the balance sheet date

No significant post-balance sheet events have affected the group since 31 Cecember 2012

45 Significant investments

The companies listecd below are those which were part of the group at 31 December 2012 and which in the opinion of the directors significantly
affected the group’s results and net assets during the year The director s consider that those comparies not listed are not significant in relation to the
group as a whole A comprehensive list of all subsidiaries will be disclosed as an appendix to the groups annual return

The principal activities of the comparies hsted below are indicated according to the following key

Secure sclutions S
Cash soluuons C

These businesses operate princpally in the country in which they are incorporated

Preduct Country of Uitimate

segrnent meorporation ownership
Subsidiary undertakings
GA45 Solugiones de Segundad S A S Argentina 75%
GA45 Custodial Services Pty Limited 5 Australia 100%
(G4S Secure Solutions AG (Austria S Austria 100%
GA45 Secure Solutions SAMNY S Belgium 100%
(45 Cash Solutions (Belgium) NV C Belgium 100%
Interativa Service Ltda ) Brazil 100%
Vanguarda Seguranca e Viglanca Ltda S Brazi 100%
(G4S Cash Solutions (Canada) Lirmited C Canada 100%
G45 Secure Solutons (Canada) Limited S Canada 100%
G45 Secure Solutions Colombia S A 5tC Colombia 100%
GAS Securrty Services A/S S Denmark 100%
G45 Aviation Services (UK) Lirmited S England 100%
(G45 Care and Justice Services (UK) Limred s England 100%
G45 Cash Centres (UK) Limrted C England 100%
GA5 Cash Selutions (UK) Limited C England 100%
GA4S Integrated Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
G45 Risk Management Limited S England 100%
GAS Secure Solutions (UK) Limited S England 100%
Group 4 Total Securty Limited S England 100%
G4S Uity and Qutsourcing Services (LK) Limited ) England 100%
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45 Significant investments contmued

Product Country of Uttirnate

segment nCorporation ownershp
AS G45 Baties $+C Estoria 100%
(45 Securtty Services Oy ) Fintand 100%
GA45 Cash Solutions § A C Greece 100%
(45 Keszpenziogiszika Kft C Hungary 100%
(A4S Secure Solutions (India) Pvt Limrted” * S India 49%
GAS Secure Solutions (Ire) Limited S Ireland 100%
GAS Secure Solutions {lsrael) Limted S Israel 1%
G45 Securtty Technologies (Jsrael) Limited ) Israel 92%
G45 Kenya Limited S+C Kenya 100%
G5 Securtty Services SAR L $+C  Luxembourg 100%
Safeguards G45 Sdn Bhd®3 5+C Malaysia 49%
G45 Cash Solutions BV C Netherlands 100%
(45 Beheer BV S Netherlands 100%
45 Secure Solutions AS 5 Norway 100%
G45PeruS AC S+C Peru 100%
G45 Secure Solutions (PNG) Limited SHC Papua New 100%

Guinea

&l Magal Service Master Co Limited® S Saudi Arabia 49%
G45 Cash Solutions (54} (Pty) Limied C South Africa 75%
GA45 Secure Sclutions (54) (Pty) Limited 5 South Africa 74%
G45 Secure Sclutions AB C Sweden 100%
G45 Secure Solutions {Thaland) Limred ) Thailand 100%
Group 4 Securicor Security Services UAE (LLC) G4S° 5 UAE 49%
G4S Government Solutions fnc ) USA t00%
G4S Integrated Serwces, Inc. S USA 100%
G45 Secure Solutions (USA) Inc ) USA 100%
G4S Technology LLC ) USA 100%
G45 Youth Services LLC S UsA 100%
Joint ventures (see note 21)
Bridgend Custochal Serwices Limited? S England 59%
Bloemfontein Correctional Contracts (Pty} Limited® S South Africa 20%
Associated undertakings (see note 22)
Space Gateway Support LLC S USA 46%

| GA45S Secure Solutions (india) Pvt. Limiuted has a year end of 31 March

2 Safeguards G45 Sdn Bhd has a year end of 30 june

3 Bredgend Custodial Services Limited has a year end of 30 September
4 Bloemfontein Correctional Contracts (Pty) Limited has a year end of 30 September

5 8y wrtue of sharehclder agreements options pre-emplion rights and other contraciual arrangements the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies

0 as 10 obtain the benefits from the actvities of these companies These are therefore consolidated as (ull subsidares
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Parent company balance sheet
At 31 December 2012

2012 201
MNotes £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets (b 16 12
Investments © 3,051 3051
3,067 3063
Current assets
Debtors ) 2,930 3,280
Cash at bank and in hand 9 36
2939 3316
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdraft {unsecured) {9 {n
Borrowings (unsecured) (® (40} -
Other creditors 0 {2.851) (2887)
(2.900) (2,388)
Net current assets 39 428
Toral assets less current hiabiiues 3,106 3491
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings {(unsecured} &) (1,174) (1451)
Other creditors {f) (2) )
(1.176) (1455)
Net assets 1330 1036
Capital and reserves
Called up share caprial 37 353 353
Share premium and reserves 0] 1,577 1683
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,930 2036

The parent company financial statements were appraved by the board of directors and authorised for 1ssue on |2 March 2013

They were signed on its behalf by

/ —~
ick Buckles Trevor Dighton
Cirector Director
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Parent company reconciliation of movements in

equity shareholders’ funds
For the year ended 3} December 2012

2012 201t
im £m
Retaned profit for the year 24 1,120
Changes in farr value of hedging derwvatives (6) 7
Dwvidends declared {120} {114)
Own shares purchased {6) {13)
Equity-settled transactions - |
Tax on equity movements 2 0]
Net (decrease)increase in shareholders funds (106) 999
Opening equity shareholders funds 2,036 1037
Closing equity shareholders' funds 1,930 2036
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

(a) Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial staterments of the company are presented as required by the Comparves Act 2006 They have been prepared under the
tustorical cost canvention except for the revaluation of certan financial nstruments and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Azcounting
Standards (UK GAAP)

The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis

Exempuons
Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from prepanng a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS | Cash Flow Statements
The cash flows of the company are included within its consohidated financial statements

The company Is also exempt under the terms of the revised FRS 8 Relgted Party Disclosures from disdosing related party transactions with wholly-
owned subsidiaries within the group

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated amortisation and any provision for impan ment. Intangible fixed assets are amortised
on a straght-line basis over their expected economic iife Software 1s amortised over periods up to a maximum of eight years

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset mvestments which comprise investmenits in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less amounts written-off

Financial instruments

fFinancial assets and financial labilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provistons of the nstruments

Externol debtors
Debtors do not carry interest and are stated intrally at their far value The company prowides for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that are
past due n accordance with local conditons and past default experience

Cash at bank and in hand and bonk overdrofts
Cash at bank ang n hand and bank overdrafts comprise cash balances and call deposs

interest-beaning borrowings

Interest-bearing bank overdrafts loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds receved net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are recognised in the profit and loss account on an accrual bass
using the effective interest method

External creditors
Creditors are not Interest-bearing and are stated nwally at their far value

Ampunts owed to/from subsidiary undertakings
Amounts owed to/from subsidiary undertakings bear interest at prevailing market rates

Equity nstruments
Equity Instruments issued by the company are recorded at the value of proceeds receved net of direct ssue costs

Denvauve financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with its treasury policy the company only holds or 1ssues dervative financial instruments to manage the groups exposure to financial
nsk not for trading purposes Such financial risk includes the interest risk on the groups variable-rate borrowings the fair value risk on the goups
fixed-rate borrowings commodity risk in relation to its diesel consumption and foreign exchange risk on transactions on the translation of the
groups results and on the translation of the groups net assets measured in foreign currencies The company manages these risks through a range of
derwvative financil instruments including interest rate swaps, fixed rate agreements, commodity swaps commodity options, forward foreign exchange
contracts and currency swaps
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(a) Sigmificant accounting policies continued

Denvauve financal instruments and hedge accounung continued

Derwative financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet as financial assets or habiibes at fair value The gan or [oss on remeasurement to
far value is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account unless they qualify for hedge accounting Where dervatives do qualify for hedge
accounting, the treatment of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged as described below

Far value hedge
The change in the far value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged item is recogmised immediately in the profit and
loss account

Cash flovs hedge

The change in the fair value of the portion of the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge Is recognised in equity and
subsequently recycled to the piofit and loss account when the hedged cash flow impacts the profit and loss account The ineffectve porton of the
fair value of the hedging instrument 15 recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the company are presented in sterling its functional currency Transactions in currencies other than sterling are
translated at the rates of exchange prevalling on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and habiities which are
denominated in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date Non-monetary assets and habilities carried at far value which
are denominated in other currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the far value was determined Non-monetary ntems
measured at historical cost denominated n other currencies are not retranslated Gans and losses arising on retranslation are ncluded in the profit
and loss account

Taxation

Current tax 15 provided at amounts expected to be pard (or recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all material tirning differences that have originated but not reversed by the balance sheet date Deferred tax
15 measured on a non-discounted basis at 1ax rates that are expected 1o apply In the periods N which the tirming differences reverse based on tax
rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Defarred tax assets are recognised where their recovery s considered
more likely than not in that there wilt be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of underiying timing differences can be deducted

Pensions

The company participates in multi-employer pension schemes in the UK which provide benefits based on final pensionable pay The company 1s
unable to identify its share of the schemes assets and labilties on a consistent and reasonable basis In accordance with FRS 17 Retirernent Benefits
the company treats the schemes as if they wer e defined contribution schemes and recognises charges as and when contributions are due to the
scherme Detalls of the schemes are included 1n note 34 to the consolidated financial statements

Share-based payments

The company grants equity-setiled share-based payments to certan employees The far value of share-based payments « determined at the date of
grant and expensed, with a corresponding Increase in equrly on a straight-hne basis over the vesting period based on the company's estimate of the
shares that will eventually vest The amount expensed s adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the estimate of the number of shares that
will eventually vest save for changes resutting from any market-related performance conditions

Dividends

Dwdends are recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period in which they are paid Dwvidends proposed but not declared are not
recogrised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements

Financial guarantees

The company enters into finanaial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of ather companies within the group The company treats such
contracts as a contingent lability unless and until such time as it becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee

Own shares held by employee benefit trust

Transactions of the company-sponsored emplayae benefit trust are included i the parent company financial statements In particular the trusts
purchases of shares in the company are debrted directly to equity
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

(b) Intangible fixed assets

Software
m
Cost
At | January 2012 12
Addrtions at cost S
At 3| December 2012 17
Amorusauon
At | January 2012 -
Amortsation charge ()
At 3| December 2012 (n
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 16
At 31 Decernber 2011 12
(¢} Fixed asset investments
The following are included in the net book value of fixed asset investrments
Subsidiary undertakings To{f::
Shares at net book value
At | January and 31 December 2042 3,051

Full details of significant investments held by the parent company and the group are detailed in note 45 (o the consoldated financial statements

{d) Debtors

012 201

£m £m

Armounts owed by group undertakings 2,828 314t
Other debtors - 19
Derwatve financal instruments at far value 102 120
Total debtors 2,930 3280C

included within dervative financial instruments at far value 1s £77m due after more than one year 2011 £106m) See note (g} for further detais

Included in other debtors 1s £nil (2011 £3m) with regard to deferred tax comprised as follows

2012 2011

im £m

Employee benefits - ]
Changes in farr value of hedging dervatives - 2
Total deferred tax - 3

The recancihation of deferred tax balances 1s as follows

Total

[4]

At | January 2012 3
Credited to profit and loss @
Charged to equrty in relation to changes in fair value of hedging dervatives n

At 31 December 2012
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{e) Borrowings (unsecured)

The unsecured borrowings are in the following currencies

082 201

m £m

Sterting 419 419

Euro 73 204

US dollar 722 828

Total unsecured borrowings 1,214 1451
The payment profile of the unsecurad borrowings 15 as follows

2012 2011

im £m

Repayable within one year 40 -

Repayable within two to five years 402 505

Repayable after five years 772 942

Total unsecured borrowings 1,214 i45l

Undrawn commuitted facilities mature as follows

2012 2011

im £m

Within one year - 480

Within two to five years 856 287

Total undrawn commtted facilibes B56 767

Borrowings cansist of £73m of floating rate bank loans (2011 £271m) and £1 144m of fixed rate loan notes (2011 £1,180m) Bank overdrafts bank
ioans and loan notes 1ssued in July 2008 and May 2009 are stated at amortised cost The loan notes issued in March 2007 are stated at amortised
cost recalculated at an effective interest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a fair value hedge relationship The directors
beleve the fair value of the company’s bank overdrafts, bank loans and the loan notes issued in March 2007 calculated from market prices
approximates to their book value LS$265m (£163m) of the loan notes issued i July 2008 have a fair value market gain of £31m (2011 £40m)

The fair value of the remaining nates approximates to their book value

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the company 1o cash flow interest rate risk The management of this risk s detalled in note ()

There were no finanaal liabilibes upon which no interest is paid

(f) Other creditors

2012 2001
im £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounits owed to group undertakings 2,817 2849
Other taxation and socal securrty costs | -
Other creditors - i
Accruals and deferred income 3l 32
Derwative financal nstruments at far value 2 5
Total creditors — amounts falling due within cne year 2,851 2887
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Dertvative finangal nstrurnents at far value 2 4
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

(g) Derivative financial instruments

The carrying values of dernvative financial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below

Assets Assets Uabilities Liabyl ties
12 2001 2012 2011
£m Im im £m
(ross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 3 40 - -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 3 6
Interest rate swaps designated as far value hedges 70 77 - -
Commodity swaps 1 3 I 3
102 120 4 g

Less: Amounts falling due after more than one year 77N (106 2 “
Amounts faling due within one year 25 14 2 5

Derwvatwe financial nstruments are stated at fair value, based upon market prices where available or otherwise on discounted cash flow valuations
The mark to market valuation of the dervatives has decreased by £12m (201 | increase £30m) during the year

The witerest rate cross currency and commodity swaps treated as cash flow hedges have the following maturities

Assers Assets Liabiives Liabdities

012 200 2012 00

£m {m £m £m

Within one year 9 pi 2 5

nthe second year - 10 2 2

inthe third year - - - 2

inthe fourth year 17 3 - -

In the fifth year or greater 6 8 - -

Total carrying value 32 43 4 9
Projected settiement of cash flows (including accrued interest) associated with derivatives

Assets Assets Liabihues Labilties

002 201 2012 201§

£m fm im £m

Within one year 7 2 2 7

Inthe second year 2 10 1 3

In the third year - - - 2

Inthe fourth year 17 4 - -

in the fifth year or greater 6 9 - -

Total cash flows 32 45 4 12
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(h) Financial risk

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currenaies The group presents its consolidated financial statements n sterling and it 15 n consequence subject to
foreign exchange risk due to the translation of the results and net assets of ais foregn subsidiaries The company together with G4S International Finance
plc therefore hedges a substantial portion of the groups exposure to fluctuations in the transtaticn into sterling of its overseas net assets by holding loans
in foreign currencies Transfation adjustments arsing on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised In the profit and loss account

Cross currency swaps with a nominal vafue of £134m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency nsk on US$265m of the second US Private
Placement notes ssued in July 2008 effectively fixing the sterling value on this portion of debt at an exchange rate of | $750

Assuming 2 | % appreciation of sterling against the US doliar, the fair value net gain on the cross currency swaps which hedge part of the currency
loan notes would be expected to fall by £2m

Interest rate nsk and interest rate swaps

Borrowing at floating rates as described in note 29 10 the consolidated financial statements exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk which
the company manages within policy lmits approved by the directors Interest rate swaps and, to a limnied extent, forward rate agreements are utilised
to fix the interest 1 ate on a proportion of borrowings on a reducing scale over forward per i0ds up to a maximum of five years At 31 December
2012 the nominat value of such contracts was £nil (in respect of US dollar) (2011 £71m) and £73m (in respect of euro) (2011 £12im) ther
weighted average interest rate was nil% (US dollar) (200 | 48%}) and 3 2% (euro) {2011 3 6 %),and their weighted average period to maturrty

was one year and two months All the interest rate hedging instruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in
thewr far value have been deferred in equity The quantity of interest rate swaps outstanding in the company 1s expected to continue to decline as
Treasury actvity is increasingly conducted by G4S International Finance pic

The US Private Placement market s predominantly a fixed rate market, with investors looking for a fixed rate return over the Iife of the loan notes
At the ume of the first 1ssue in March 2007 the company was comfortable with the proportion of floatng rate exposure not hedged by interest
rate swaps and therefore rather than take on a higher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps effectively converting the fixed
coupon on the Private Placement to a floating rate Following the swaps the resulting average coupon on the US Private Placernent 15 Libor + 60bps
These swaps have been docurmented as fair value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed interest loan notes with the movernents in therr fair
value posted to profit and loss at the same time as the movernent in the fair value of the hedged rtem

The interest on the US Private Placement notes issued in July 2008 and on the GBP Public Bond issued in May 2009 was kept at fixed rate

The core company borrowings are held in US dollar euro and stering Afthough tne impact of rising interest rates s largely shiefded by fixed
rate loans and interest rate swaps which fix a portion of the exposure sorne mterest rate risk remains A [% increase in interest rates across the
yield curve in each of these currencies with the 31 December 2012 debt posttion constant throughout 201 3, would fead to an expectaton of an
addiional interest charge of £3m in the 2013 financial year

Commodity nsk and commodity swaps

The groups principat commodity risk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices particularly affecting its cash solutions businesses The cormpany
acts as a market Intermediary, arranging commodity swaps and commodity options with its relationship banks with back to back deals on identical
terms with its subsidiaries to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatidity

Counterparty credit risk
The companys strategy for credit risk management is to set runimum credr ratings for counterparties and monitor these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions the policy hmits the aggregate credrt risk assigned to a counterparty The utiisation of a credit Imit 1s calculated by
applying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and duration of the transaction
The total mark to market value outstanding with each courterparty 1s closely monitored aganst policy mits assigned to each counterparty

For short-term transactions {under one year), at inception of the transaction, the finangial counterparty must be nvestment grade rated by either
the Standard & Poors or Moodys rating agencies For long-term transactions at inception of the transaction the financial counterparty must have

a minimum rating of BBB+/Baal from Standard & Poors or Moodys

Treasury transactions are dealt with the companys relationshup banks all of which have 2 strong nvestment grade rating At 31 December 2012 the
largest two counterparty exposures relating to treasury transactions were £38m and £30m and both were held with insttutions with long-term
Standard & Poors credit ratings of A- and A respectively These exposures represent 37% (2011 38%) and 29% (2011 27%) of the carrying values
of gerivative financial nstruments with a fair value gain at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant loan commitments outstanding
to G4S plec at 31 Decernber 2012

The company participates in the groups muilti-currency notional pooling cash management system with a wholly-owned subsidiary of an Aa3 rated
bank There is tegal right of set off under the pooling agreement
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

(1) Share premium and reserves

Share Profic and Own

prémum loss accourt shares Total

im fm £m €m

At | January 2012 258 144| (16) | 683
Retamed profit - 24 - 24
Changes in far value of hedging dervatives - &) - )
Dmdends declared - {120) - {120)
Own shares purchased - - &) [(3)]
Own shares awarded - 2 2 -
Tax on equity movements - 2 - 2
At 31 December 2012 258 1,339 (20) 1,577

(1) Auditor’s remuneration

Fees pad to KPMG Audrt Plc and rts assocates for non-audit services 10 the company ttself are not disclosed in its indmdual accounts because the
company s consclidated financal staterments are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

(k) Staff costs and employees

012 201

Number MNumber

The average monthly number of employees of the company during the year was 49 51
Total staff costs including directors emoluments, were as follows

2012 201

im £m

Wages and salares - 1
Total staff costs — '

Certan G45 plc staff costs are now borne by G4S Corporate Services Limited and are reported within the separate financial statements of
that company
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() Share-based payments

The group has one type of equrty-settled share-based payment scheme in place being the condtronal allocations of G4S plc shares An employee
benefit trust established by the group holds shares to satisfy the vesting of conditional allocation awards Reserve for own share disclosures relevant
10 the company are presented within note 38 1o the consohdated financial staterments Share-based payments dsclosures relevant 1o the cornpany
are presented within note 42 to the consolidated financial statements

(m) Related party transactions

Certan disclosures relevant to the company are presented within note 43 1o the consolidated financial staterents Company transactians with
group undertakings primariy consist of royalty charges central service charges group insurance recharges and loan transactions

There were no material transactions with non-wholly owned group undertakings in 2012 {2011 none)

(n) Contingent habilities

To help secure cost effective finance faohties for its subsidiaries the company issues guarantees to some of its finance providers
At 3] December 2012 puarantees totaling £493m (2011 £583m) were in place n support of such faciities

The company also guarantees the debt obligations of G45 International Finance plc At 3| December 2012 contngent habilies of £1 06 1m were
outstanding In support of such debt obligations

The company 1s included in a group registration for UKVAT purposes and 15 therefore jointly and severally liable for afl other UK group companies
unpaid debts in this connection The iability of the UK group registration at 31 December 2012 totalled £19m (2011 £21m)
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS DOCUMENT 15 IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTICN

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document or the action you should take, you should immediately consult your
stockbroker, bank manager, sokator, accountant or other independent professional adviser authorised under the Financral Services and
Markers Act 2000 if you are resident in the United Kingdom or, if not, from anocther appropriately authorised independent financia
adviser If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in G485 ple, please send this nouce and the accompanying documents
to the person through whom the sale or transfer was effected so that it can be passed on to the purchaser or transferee

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annuat General Meeting of G45 plc will be held at Salters Hall, 4 Fore Street, London EC2Y 5DE
onThursday, é June 2013 at 2 00pm in order to consider and, f thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions

Resolutions | to 17 and Resclution 20 will be propased as ordinary resolutions Resolutions 18, 19 and 21 will be proposed as special resolutions

| Torecene the financal statements of the company for the year ended 3t December 2012 and the reports of the directors and auditor thereon.
2 To receve and approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2012

To dedare a final dvdend for the year ended 3| December 2012 of 5 54p (DKK 0473} for each ordinary share in the capital of
the company

(%)

4 To elect Ashley Almanza (member of the Risk Committee) as a director

5 To elect John Connolly (member of the Nomination and Risk Committees) as a director

6 To efect Adam Crozier {member of the Audit and Nomination Committees) as a director

7 To elect Paul Spence (member of the Audit CSR and Risk Committees) as a directer

8 e elect TimWeller {member of Audrt and Risk Committees) as a director

9 Tore-elect Nick Buckles (member of the Risk Committee) as a divector

10 To re-elect Mark Ellott {(member of the CSR, Nomination and Remuneration Compmittees) as a director
Il To re-elect Winnie Kin Wah Fok {member of the CSR and Remuneration Cormmittees) as a director
12 To re-elect Grahame Gibson as a director

I3 To re-elect Mark Seligman (member of the Audtt and Rermuneration Committees) as a director

4 To re-elect Clare Spottiswoede (member of the CSR and Remuneration Commitiees) as a director

15 To re-appowrt KPMG Audit Ple as audror of the company to hold office unil the conchuisien of the nesa Annual General Meetng
of the company

& To authorise the directors to determine the remuneration of the auditor

|7 That the directors be and are hereby generally and uncondrtionally authonised pursuant to and in accordance with section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 {"the Act”) to exercise all the powers of the company to alict shares in the company or grant nghts to subscribe
for, or convert any security into, shares n the company

{) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £117.555 000, and

(1} comprising equrty securties {as defined in section 560 of the Act) up to a further aggregate norminal amournt of £1 17 555,000 provided
that they are offered by way of a rights issue 1o holders of ordwiary shares on the register of members at such record date{s) as
the directors may determine where the equrty securities respectively attrbutable to the interests of the ordinary shareholders are
proporticnate {as nearly as may be practicable) to the respective numbers of crdinary shares held or deemed to be held by them on
any such record date(s), subject ta such exclusions ar other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedent o deal
with treasury shares fractional entitiements, record dates, shares represented by depositary receipts, legal or practical problems ansing
under the laws of any terrttory or the requirements of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter,

provided that this authority shall expire on the date of the nexd Annual General Meeting of the company save that 1the company shak

be entrtled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of such authority which would or might require relevant securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the directors shall be entrtled to allot relevant securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if this
avthority had not expired, and all unexpired authorities granted previously to the directors 1o 2llot relevamt securities under section 551
of the Act shall cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual General Mesting {save to the extenit that the same are exercisable
pursuant to section 551 (7} of the Act by reascn of any offer or agreement made prior to the date of this resolution which would or
rught. require shares 1o be allotted or rights to be gramed on or after that date)
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|8 That the directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to section 570 of the Act, subject 1o the passing of Resolution 17 above, 1o allot
equity securmies (as defined in section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authorty conferred by Resolution §7 above as if section 561
of the Act did not apply to any such allotment. provided that this power shall be imned to

(1) the allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer or 1ssue of equity securities {but in the case of the authority granted
under paragraph (1) of Resolution 17 above, by way of rights 1ssue only) to or in favour of the holders of shares on the register
of members at such record date(s) as the dwectors may determine where the equity securities respectively attnbutable to the
interests of the shareholders are proportionate (as nearly as may be practicable} to the respective numbers of shares held by them on
any such record date(s} but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient
n relation to fractionat entitiements treasury shares, record dates, shares represented by depositary receipts, legal or practical
problems arising under the laws of any territory or the requirements of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any
other matter and

(1) the allotment {otherwise than pursuant 1o sub-paragraph (1) above) of equity securruies pursuant to the authority granted under
Resclutiors | 7(1) above up to an maximum nominal amount of £17,633,000

and shall expire on the expiry of the general authority conferred by Resolution |7 above unless previously renewed, varied or revoked
by the company 1n general meeting, save that the company shall be entitled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of such power
which would or might require equity securities to be aliotted, or treasury shares to be sold, after such expiry and the directors shall be
entitled to aliot equrty securitias or sell treasury shares pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had

not expired

All previcus unuthsed authorties under section 570 of the Act shall cease to have effect at the conclusien of this Annual General Meeung

I9 That the company be and s hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 704 of the Act, to make market
purchases {within the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of ordinary shares of 25p each in the captal of the company on such terms
and in such manner as the directors may from time to time determine, provided that

(1} the maximum number of such shares which may be purchased is 141,066 000

) the rmunimum price which may be paid for each such share 1s 25p (exclusive of all expenses)

(1) the maximum price which may be paid for each such share 1s an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an ordinary share in the company as derved from The London Stock Exchange Daly Official List for the five business
days immediately preceding the day on which such share is contracted to be purchased (exclusive of expenses), and

{v) this authority shali, unless previously revoked or varied, expire at the conclusian of the Annual General Meeting of the company to
be held n 2014 (except in relation to the purchase of such shares the contract for which was entered into before the expiry of this
autherity and which might be executed wholly or partly after such expiry)

20 That in accordance with sections 366 and 367 of the Act, the company and all companies which are subsidaries of the company during
the period when this Resclution 20 has effect be and are hereby unconditionalty authonsed to

{1) make poltical donatians to political partes or ndependent election canddates not exceeding £50 000 in total,
() make political donations to political organisations other than political parties not exceeding £50,000 in total, and
(i) incur poltical expenditure not exceeding £50,000 in total,

(as such terms are defined in the Act) during the period beginning with the date of the passing of this resclution and ending at the
ronclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the company provided that the authorised sum referred to in paragraphs {1}, (1}
and {1} above may be comprised of one or more amounts in different currencies which for the purposes of calculating the said sum
shall be corverted into pounds sterling at the exchange rate published in the London editien of the Financial Times on the date on
which the relevant denation s made or expenditure incurred {(or the first business day thereafter) or if earlier, on the day in which
the company ertters into any contract or undertaking in relation to the same

21 That a general meeting of the company, other than an Annual General Meeting, may be called on not less than 14 clear days notwee
By order of the board

Peter Dawnd
Secretary
26 March 2013

The Manor

Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RHI0 SUN
Company No 4992207
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

MNotes

Shareholders are entrtled to appoint a proxy 1o exercse all or any of their nghts to attend and to speak and vote on their behalf at the
meeting A shareholder may appont more than one proxy in refation to the Annual General Meeting provided that each proxy 1s appointed
1o exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
company A proxy form which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy Instructions accompanies this notice

Detalls of how to appont a proxy are set out In the notes to the enclosed proxy form In order to be valid an appointment of proxy
must be returned with any power of attorney or any other authority under which it 1s executed by one of the following methods in
hard copy form by post to Caprta Registrars, PXS, the Registry, 34 Beckenham Road Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU,in hard copy form to
that address by couner or by hand during usual business hours, or in the case of CREST members by utiising the CREST electronic
proxy appointment service as described in paragraphs 8 and 9 below In each case the form of proxy must be received by the company
no fater than 2 00pm on 4 June 2013 To change your proxy Instructions you may return a new proxy appointment using the method
set out above The deadline for receipt of proxy appointments also applies in relation to amended nstructions Persons listed on the VP
Securities register should follow the instructions on theirVoting Request Form

The return of a completed proxy form, other such instrument or any CREST Prosxy Instruction will not prevent a shareholder attending
the Annual General Meeting and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so

Any person to whom this notice 1s sent who s a person nominated under section 146 of the Act to enjoy informatien rights

{a "Nominated Person”) may, under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was neminated, have a night
to be appointed (or to have someone else appeinted) as a proxy for the Annual General Meeting If a Nominated Person has no such
proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise 1t he/she may, under any such agreement, have a nght to give instructions to the
shareholder as to the exerase of voting nghts

The statement of the rights of sharehciders in refation to the appointment of proxies n paragraph | above does not apply
to Nominated Persons The rights deseribed n this paragraph can only be exercised by shareholders of the company

To be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting {and for the purpose of the determination by the company of the votes
they may cast), shareholders must be regstered in the Register of Members of the company at 530pm on 4 June 2013 (or,in the event
of any adiournment, at 5 30pm on the date which 1s two working days before the time of the adjourned meeting) Changes to the Register
of Members after the relevant deadline shalt be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend and vote at the meeting

As at 25 March 2013 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this Notice) the company's issued share
caprtal consisted of 1,410 668 639 ordinary shares carrying one vote each Therefore, the total voting nights i the company as
at 25 March 2013 was 1,410 668 €39

CREST members who wish 1o appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the
procedures described in the CREST Manual (avallable via wwweuroclear com/CREST) CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored
mermbers, and those CREST members who have appointed a servce provider(s) should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s) who will be able to take the appropniate action on ther behalf

In order for a proxy appeintment or instruction made using the CREST service to be vald the appropriate CREST message (a "CREST
Proxy Instruction™) must be properly authentiated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Irefand Limited's specfications and must contan
the information required for such instruchion, as described inthe CREST Manual The message, regardless of whether it constitutes

the appointmenit of a proxy or s an amendment to the instruction given to & previously appownted proxy must in order to be valid, be
transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s agent (ID RAIQ) by 2 00pm on 4 June 2013 For this purpose, the time of receipt will be
taken to be the time (as determined by the time stamp applied to the message by the CREST Application Host} from which the ssuers
agent 1s able to retrieve the message by enquiry 1o CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST After this time any change of instructions
to proxies apponted through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, therr CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited
does not make avallable specal procedures in CREST for any particular message Normal system timings and imstations wall, therefore apply in
relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. it 1s the responsibility of the CREST member concemed to take (o, f the CREST member
is.a CREST personal member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a voting service provider, to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting
service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmrtted by means of the CREST system
by any particular time In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting system providers are
referred, n particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical imrtations of the CREST system and timings

The company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the arcumstances set out n Regulation 35(9) (a) of the Uncertficated
Securites Regulations 2001
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Voting on all Resolutions will be conducted by way of a poll rather than a show of hands This 1s a more transparent method of voting
as shareholders’ votes are to be counted according to the number of shares held As soon as practicable following the Annual General
Meeting, the resulis of the voting at the meeting and the numbers of proxy votes cast for and against and the number of votes actively
withheld in respect of each of the Resolutions will be announced viz a Regulatory Information Service and also placed on the company's
website wwwg4s com

Any corporation which s a shareholder can appoint one or more corporate representauves who may exercise on 1ts behalf all of its
powers as a shareholder provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares

Under secuon 527 of the Act members meeting the threshold requirements set out in that section have the right to require the
company to pubhsh on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to (1)) the audit of the company’s accounts {including

the audrtor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the Annual General Meeting or (i) any circumstance
connected with an auditor of the company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports
were laid in accordance with section 437 of the Act The company may not require the sharehclders requesting any such website
publcation to pay its expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Act Where the company s required to olace a statement
on a website under section 527 of the Act 1t must forward the statement to the company’s auditor not later than the time when

it makes the statement available on the website The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any
statement that the company has been required under section 527 of the Act to publish on a website

Any shareholder attending the meeting has the right to ask questions The company must cause to be answered any such question
relaung to the business being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given If {a) to do so would interfere unduly
with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information, {b) the answer has already been given on
a website In the form of an answer to a quastion or {¢} it 15 undesirable In the interests of the company or the good order of the
meetng that the question be answered

Under sections 338 and 338A of the Act, members meeting the threshold requirements in those sections have the right to require
the company (1) to give, to members of the company entitled to receive notice of the meeting, notice of a resolution which those
members intend to move {and which may properly be moved) at the meeting, and/er (i) to include in the business to be dealt

with at the meeting any matter (other than a proposed resclution) which may properly be ncluded i the business at the meeting
A resolution may properly be moved or a matter properly included in the business unless () (in the case of a resolution only)

1t would, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reason of any inconsistency with any enactment of the company’s constitution or
otherwise), (b) 1t 1s defamatory of any person, or (¢) it s frivolous or vexatious A request made pursuant to this right may be in
hard copy or electronic form must identify the resolunon of which notice 15 10 be given or the matter to be included in the business,
must be authenticated by the person(s) making 1t and must be received by the Company not later than 24 April 2013 being the
date six clear weeks before the meeting and (in the case of a matter to be included in the business only) must be accompanied

by a statement setting out the grounds for the request

A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 31 1A of the Act can be found at www gds com

Any electronic address or web site address 15 provided in this Notice of Meeting solely for the purpose stated expressly herein and may
not be used to communicate with the company other than for such purpose  Notwithstanding any telephone number fax number
or email address that appears on this document or elsewhere nesther the company nor Capita Registrars will accept voting instructions
received via media other than post, electronically via the Share Portal service or by CREST Proxy Instruction i accordance with the
notes above
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Recommendation and explanatory notes relating to business to
be conducted at the Annual General Meeting on 6 June 2013

The board of G4S plc considers that the Resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting are iikely to promate the success of the
company and are in the best interests of the company and its shareholders as a whofe The directors unanimously recommend that you vote in
favour of the Resolutions as they mntend to do in respect of ther own beneficial holdings

Explanatory notes in relation to the business to be conducted at the Annual General Meeting are set out below

| Financial statements of the company (Resolution 1)

The charman will present the financial statemertts of the company for the year ended 31 December 202 and the reports of the directors and
audrtor thereon to the Annual Generat Meeting

2 Remuneration report (Resolution 2)

It 1s mandatory for all lsted comparues to put their directors’ remuneration report to an advisory shareholder vote As the vote 1s advisory it does
not affect the actual remuneration paid to any individual director

3 Final dividend {Resolution 3)

A final dwidend of 5 54p (DKK 0473) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2012 1s recommended for payment by the directors
If the recommended final dwidend 15 approved, it will be paid on Friday 14 June 2013 to all ordinary shareholders who were on the register of
members at the close of business on 17 May 2013

4 Election and re-election of directors (Resolutions 4 to [4)

Resolutions 4 1o 8 deal with the election of those directors who have been or will have been appointed since the company's last Annual General
Meeting and whe in accordance with the companys articles of association will retire and stand for election

Resolutions 9 1o 14 dea! with the re-election of the other directors in accordance with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code
which provides for all directors of FTSE 350 companies to be subject to re-election by shareholders every year Lord Condon, Mr Dighton and
Mr Lerenius wiil retire from the board at the conclusion of the meeting and so are not seeking re-election

Biographies of each of the directors seeking election or re-election are set out on pages 54 te 57 apart from MrWeller whose biography appears
on page 64 and Mr Almanza whose biography 1s set out below Mr Almanza will join the board with effect from | May 2013 and,in accerdance with
the company’s articfes of association and being eligible, will retire and offer limself for efection at the Annual General Meeting which will be the first
such meeting since his appointment

The board has confirmed following a performance review that all directors standing for re-election continue to perform effectively and demonstrate
commitment to ther roles

Biography of Mr Ashley Almanza

A chartered accountant by training Mr Almanza who holds an MBA from London Business School held a number of serior roles at BG Group from
1993 to 2012, including Chief Financial Officer from 2002 to 2011 and Executive Vice President from 2009 to 2012 He was previously chairman

of the Hundred Group of Finance Directors Mr Almanza has experience as a long-serving FTSEIQO chief financal officer as well as broad-ranging
international experience and strong finance skills

Mr Almanza is currently a non-executive director of Schroders plc and a member of the Advisory Board of Oxford Unwersity Centre for
Business Taxation

5 Reappointment of auditor and auditor’s remuneration (Resolutions 15 and 16)

Resolution |5 relates to the reappaintment of KPMG Audit Plc as the company’ auditor to hold office until the next Annual General Meeting of the
company Resclution |6 authorises the directors to set the auditor's remuneration

6 Authority to allot shares (Resolution [7)
Resolution |7 seeks shareholder approval for the directors to be authorised 1o allot shares

At the last Annual General Meeting of the company held on 7 June 2012,the directors were given authority to allot ordinary shares in the capital of
the company up to a maximum nominal amount of £235 110000 Of this amount 470 220000 shares could only be allotted pursuant to a nghts
Issue This authority expires at the end of this year's Annual General Meeting

Resolution | 7 will 1f passed renew this authority to allot on the same terms as last year's resolution The board considers 1t appropriate that

the directors be granted the same authority to allot shares in the capital of the company up to a maxmum nominal amount of £235 110000
representing approximately 66% of the companys 1ssued ordinary share caprtal as at 25 March 2013 (the latest practicable date prior to publication
of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) Of this amount, 470,220,000 shares (representing approximately 33% of the companys issued ordinary
share capital) can only be allotted pursuant to a rights 1ssue The authorty wil fast until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting in 2014

The directors do not have any present intention of exerasing this authority In accordance with best practice if the directors were to exercise this
authority so as to allot shares representing more than one third of the current caprtal of the compary they would all offer themselves for re-election
at the following Annual General Meeting although as noted in 4 above 1t 1s the directors current intention te stand for election annually in any event

As at the date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting the company does not hold any ordinary shares in the capstal of the company in treasury
However,the 7 589 853 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust and referred to on page 127 (note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements) are accounted for as treasury shares
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7 Dusapplication of statutory pre-emption rights (Resolution 18)

Resolution 18 seeks shareholder approval to gve the directors authority to allot shares in the capital of the company pursuant to the authority
granted under Rescluton 17 for cash without complying with the pre-emption rights in the Companies Act 2006 (the Act ) n certain
orcurmstances This authorty will permit the directors to aliot

(a) shares up to a nominal amount of £235 |1 10000 (representing approximately 66% of the companys issued share caprital) on an offer to existing
shareholders However unless the shares are allotted pursuant to a rights issue (rather than an open offer} the directors may only alfot shares
up to a norminal amount of £117 555 000 (representing approximately 33% of the company s ssued share capital) (in each case subject to any
adjustments such as for fractional entitternents and overseas shareholders as the directors see fit) and

(b} shares up to a maximum nominal value of £17 633 000 representing approximazely 5% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the company as at
25 March 2013 (the latest practicable date prior to publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) otherwise than in connection with an
offer ta existing shargholders

As with Resolution 17 the terms of Resclution (8 are the same as last year's resolution

The directors confirm their intention to follow the prowisions of the Pre-emption Group's Statement of Principles regarding cumulative usage

of authorrties within a rolling three-year period The Principles prevde that compariies should not 1ssue shares for cash representing more than
75% of the relevant companys 1ssued share caprtal in any rolling three-year period other than to existing shareholders without prior consultation
with sharenolders

The authority contained in Resolution |8 will expire upon the expiry of the general authority conferred by Resolution 17 (1e at the end of the next
Annual General Meeting of the company)

8 Purchase of own shares (Resolution 19)

Resolution 12 seeks to renew the company s authority to buy back its own crdinary shares in the market as permitted by the Act The authority
lrmits the number of shares that could be purchased to a maximum of (41 066 000 (representing a little less than 10% of the company s issued
ordinary share capital as at 25 March 2013 (the fatest pracucable date prior 1o publication of the Notice of Annuz! General Meeting)) and sets
minimum and maximum prices This authority will expire at the conclusion of the company’s Annual General Meeting in 2014

The directors have no present intention of exercising the authority to purchase the companys crdinary shares but will keep the matter under
review, taking into account the financial resources of the company, the companys share price and future funding opportuniues The authority will be
exercised only if the directors believe that to do so would result in an increase in earnings per share and would be In the interests of sharehciders
generally No shares were purchased pursuant to the equivalent authoriy granted to the directors at the companys last Annual General Meeting

As at 25 March 2013 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) there were no options over the
ordinary shares In the caprtal of the company

9 Political donations (Resolution 20)

Resolution 2015 designed to deal with the rules on political donaticns contained i the Act Under the rules political donations to any political
parties, independent election candidates or political organisations or the incurring of political expenditure are prohibited unless authorised by
shareholders in advance What constitutes a political donation a pelitical party a political organisation or palrical expenditure 1s not easy to
decide as the legislaton 1s capable of wide interpretation Sponsorship subscriptions, payment of expenses paid leave for employees fulfilling
public duties and suppert for bodies representing the business community in policy review or reform may fall within this

Therefore, notwithstanding that the company has nat made political donations requiring shareholder authority in the past, and has no intention
either now or in the future of making any such political donation or Incurring any such pofitical expenditure In respect of any political party political
orgamsation or mdependent elecuon candidate, the board has decded 10 put forward Resciution 20 which is the same as the resclution on this
subject which was passed at the company's Annual Generat Meeting held on 7 June 2012 This will allow the company to support the community and
put forward its views to wider business and government interests without running the risk of being in breach of the law This authority wilf cover the
peniod from the date Resolution 20 1s passed until the condusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the company As permitted under the Act,
Resolution 20 also covers poiitical donations made, or poliucal expenditure incurred by any subsidiaries of the company

10 Period of notice for calling general meetings (Resolution 2()
Resolution 21 1s a resoltion 1o allow the company to hald general meetings (other than Annual Generai Meetings) on |4 days notice

Before the introduction of the Companies (Sharehelders Rights) Regulations 2009 on 3 August 2009 the minimum notice period permitted by the
Act for general meetings (other than Annual General Meetings) was F4 days One of the amendments made to the Act by the Regulations was to
Increase the minimurn notice perod for general meetings of listed companies 1o 21 days but with an ability for companies to reduce this period back
to 14 days (other than for Annual General Meetings) provided that two conditions are met The first condition 1s that the company offers a faciity

for shareholders to vote by electronic means This condition 1s met 1f the company offers a faciity accessible to all shareholders to appoint a praxy

by means of a website The second condrtion 15 that there 15 an annual resolution of shareholders approving the reduction of the minimum notice
peried from 2| days to 14 days

The board is therefore proposing Resolution 21 as a special resolution 1o approve 14 days as the mimimum period of notice for all general meetings
of the company other than Annual General Meetings The approval wilf be effective until the companys next Annual General Meeting when it 1s
ntended that the approval be renewed The board will consider on a case by case basis whether the use of the flexibility offered by the shorter
notice period 1s merited taking into account the circumstances, including whether the business of the meeting s time sensitive
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Group financial record

(A4S plc was formed in 2004 from the merger of the securtty businesses of Group 4 Falck and
Securicor: Since that time, the group has delivered strong financal performance and shareholder
returns as demonstrated by the following financial record

Dividend

Since 2005 GA4S has delvered average dvidend per share grawth
of 14 2% per annum

+57% +14.2%

In dividend In dividend per share Graph removed
per share in 2012 from 2005 to 2012

Earnings per share**

Since 2005 GA4S has generated average adjusted earnings per share
growth of 97% on a compounded basis

+34%  +9.7%

EPS in 2012 EPS CAGR* from 2005 to 2012 Graph removed

Revenue™*

G4S revenues have grown by an average of 8 5% since 2005 The
group strategy for enhanced growth has helped deliver strong
underlying organic growth together with capability-adding acquisrtions
1o help drive growth in the future

+8 . | % +8 .5% Graph removed

Revenues in 2012 Revenue CAGR*
from 2005 o0 2012
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Profit before interest, tax and amortisation™*

Operating profit, defined as profit before interest tax and
amortisation has grown by an average of 107% since 2005 The
increase N operating profit has been driven by strong revenue
growth a strong cost focus and an improving business mix with
our higher growth businesses such as government and Developing
markets having higher than the group average margins

+60%"  +10./%

PBITA n 2012 PBITA CAGR* from 2005 to 2012

Revenue from developing markets

Graph rermoved

Qur global presence market shares and experience of working in less
developed markets s unrvalled in almost any industry it means that
we know what it takes 1o be successful in these markets and are well
positioned to maximise the structural growth opportunities as they
deveicp over tme

+10% +20./%

Organic growth Revenue from Developing markets
from Developing markets CAGR* from 2005 to 2012
n 2012

2005-2012 share price performance

Graph removed

From 2005 to the end of 2012 the G45S share price has increased
108 5%, cutperforming the FTSE 100 by 73% (see page 78 for its
comparative TSR performance against that of the FTSE 100 and our
bespoke peer group)

+{08.5% +9.19%

A4S share price GAS share price
since 2005 CAGR* from
2005 to 2012

* CAGR i compound average growth rate

** 2011 and 2012 at 20) 2 exchange rates excluding the Ofympic Games contract and
adpusted for discontinued and dvested busnesses 2005-2010 as reported

Gragh removed
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General information

Financial calendar

Results announcemenits

Half-year results — August
Final results — March

Dividend payment

Interim paid — |9 October 2012
Final payable — 14 June 2013

Annual General Meeting
6 June 2013

Corporate addresses

Registered office

The Manor

Manor Royal

Crawiey

West Sussex RH10 9UN
Telephone +44 (0) 1293 554 400

Registered number
4952207

Auditor

KPMG Audtt Pl
15 Canada Square
Londen E14 5GL

Stockbrokers

1P Morgan Cazenove
125 London Wall
London EC2Y 5A)

Crtigroup Clobal Markets Limited
Citigroup Centre

Canada Square, Canary YWharf
London EI4 518

Financial advisors

JP Morgan Cazenove
125 London Wall
London EC2Y S5A)

Barclays Caprtal

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

tondon E14 488

G4S website

www g4s com
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General shareholder
information

Registrars and transfer office

All enquines relating te the administration
of sharehaldings should be directed to

Captta Registrars

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road

Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Telephone within the UK 087 | 664 0300
{calls cost 10p per minute plus network
extras) from cutside the UK

+44 20 8635 3399

Fax. +44 (0) 1484 600911

Emal ssd@capraregistrars com

Secure share portal

www capitashareportal com

Piease note that beneficial owners of shares
who have been nominated by the registered
holder of those shares to receve information
rights under section 146 of the Companies
Act 2006 are required to direct all
communications to the registered holder of
their shares rather than to the company or
the company’s registrar

Capita share portal

The share portal s an online faclty provided
by the company's registrars, Caprta Registrars,
for shareholders to manage their holding
securely online reducing the need for
paperwork. By registering for a free portal
account, shareholders are able to access a
range of online facilities 24 hours a day
including those described below

View account holding details

Allows shareholders to access their personal
account, shareholding balance share
transactian history, indicative share valuation
and dividenc payment history tt also enables
shareholders to buy and sell shares.

Change of address, bank mandates,
downloadable forms

Allows shareholders to update their postat
address and complete change or delete bank
mandate nstructions for dwdends Avwide
range of shareholder information, ncluding
downtoadable forms such as stock transfer
forms 1s also avalable

Online proxy voting
Provides shareholders with an online proxy
voting mechanismm to cast proxy votes

Dedicated helpline

Caprta Registrars also has a helpline to help
users with all aspects of the service
Telephone (from the UK} 0871 664 0391
Calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras
ines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm

Monday to Friday)

Telephone

(outside the UK) +44 (0) 20 8639 3367
Emall shareportal @capra.co uk




GA4S plc

The Manor
Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex
RHIO 9UN

Telephone +44 (G)1293 554 400
Emall investor@g4s com

Registered in England No 4952207

For further information visit our website

wwwgds com
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